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NOTICE OF THE 13" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 13" Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of
DMI Finance Private Limited (“the Company”) will be held on shorter notice basis on Fri-
day, October 29, 2021, at Express Building, 3rd Floor, 9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New
Delhi- 110002 at 1230 hours onwards to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To receive, consider and adopt the:

a. Annual Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2021, and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon; and

b. Annual Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2021, and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

To appoint M/s. S.N. Dhawan & Co (Firm Registration Number: 000050N/N500045), as
Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consid-
er, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 141 and 142 and other ap-
plicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules made there under
Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (“SAs”)
of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) (including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for time being in force) dated April 27, 2021
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI Guidelines™) and Articles of Association of the
Company and all other rules, regulations, guidelines, notifications, clarifications and circu-
lars, if any, issued by any Statutory/Regulatory Authorities, as may be applicable, and as per
the recommendation received from the Board of Directors of the company, M/s. S.N.
Dhawan & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045),
who have offered themselves for appointment and have confirmed their eligibility to be ap-
pointed as Statutory Auditors, be and is hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of DMI Fi-
nance Private Limited (the ‘Company) for a consecutive term of three financial years (2021-
22 to 2023-24), to hold office from the conclusion of the 13" Annual General Meeting
(‘AGM) till the conclusion of the 16" AGM of the Company, subject to the fulfilment of the
eligibility norms each year during its tenure at such remuneration plus taxes, out-of-pocket,
etc., as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Au-
ditors, the auditors shall also provide the relevant certificates at a price agreed along with
statutory audit fees as may be required under various statutory or regulatory requirements.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board be
and hereby severally authorize Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee and Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh,
Jt. Managing Directors and/or Mr. Sahib Pahwa, Head-CS & Compliance of the Company to
take all actions and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as they may, in their abso-
lute discretion, deem necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect including but not limited
to intimating the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) or any other regulatory authority as applicable
for such appointment and to do all acts, deeds and things in connection therewith and inci-
dental thereto as they in their absolute discretion deem fit without being required to seek any
further consent or approval of the members or otherwise to the end.”

Date: October 27, 2021 By the Order of the Board
Registered Office: Place: New Delhi For DMI Finance Private Limited
Express Building, 3rd Floor,
9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar
Marg, New Delhi-110002
T: +91 11 41204444 Sd/-
F: +91 11 41204000
email: dmi@dmifinance.in H
U65929DL2008PTC182749 . Sahlb Pahwa
Head- Compliance and Company Secretary
A24789

Express Building, 3" Floor, 9-10,
Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi- 110002
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Notes:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL

GENERAL MEETING (THE “MEETING”) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND
THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A person can act
as proxy on behalf of member not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company.

The instrument appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited at the registered of-
fice of the Company any time before the commencement of the Meeting. A Proxy Form
is annexed to this Report.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meet-
ing are requested to send a duly certified true copy of the Board Resolution authorizing
their representatives to attend and vote at the AGM.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding-
maintained u/s 184 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the
members at the AGM.

Members/ Proxies should fill in the attendance slip for attending the AGM. Attendance
slip and the proxy form as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is enclosed with
the Notice.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the
order of names will be entitled to vote.

The relevant documents referred to in the proposed resolutions are available for inspec-
tion at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on working days ex-
cept on holidays, upto the date of the AGM.

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register
their e-mail address for receiving all communication from the Company electronically.

Landmark for location of meeting is Passport Seva Kendra, ITO. Route map of the loca-
tion is attached with the notice.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The following statement sets out all material facts relating to certain Ordinary Busi-
ness and Special Business mentioned in the accompanying notice:

Item No. 2:

The members are hereby informed that the Reserve Bank of India vide its Circular
dated April 27, 2021, has issued the Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central
Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBS),
UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) (‘RBI Guidelines’), regarding appointment of
Statutory Auditors in Banks including NBFCs and FAQs released subsequently. The
guidelines will be applicable to the NBFCs with asset size of 1,000 Crore and more
for Financial Year 2021-22 and onwards in respect of appointment/ re-appointment
of Statutory Auditors. Pursuant to the said guidelines to protect the independence of
the auditors, the Company shall appoint the Statutory Auditors for a continuous pe-
riod of three years subject to the firm satisfying the eligibility norms each year. Fur-
ther, an audit firm would not be eligible for re-appointment in the same entity for six
years (two tenures) after completion of full or part of one term of the audit tenure. In
view of the above RBI Guidelines, the Company has adopted a Policy for Appoint-
ment of Statutory Auditors (‘Policy’).

The members of the Company at the 12" Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on
September 15, 2020 has appointed M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Ac-
countants (Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013) as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a consecutive term of five financial years (i.e., 2020-21 to 2024-25) till
the conclusion of 17" Annual General Meeting. However, in accordance with the
RBI Guidelines, one Audit firm can conduct Statutory Audit of not more than eight
(8) NBFCs. In compliance with the said Guidelines, M/s. Walker Chandiok and Co.
LLP has expressed their inability to continue to hold the office of Statutory Auditors
and tendered their resignation with effect from October 25, 2021.

Further, on the basis of recommendation of the Audit Committee and considering the
profile, experience and specialization in the audit of banking and financial service
sector, the Board of Directors through circular resolution passed on October 27,
2021, has appointed M/s. S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm
Registration No. 000050N/N500045), as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
consecutive term of three financial years (2021-22 to 2023-24) to fill the casual va-
cancy subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing AGM.

Further, in terms of RBI Guidelines and Company’s policy and on the basis of rec-
ommendation of Board of Directors of the Company, the appointment of M/s. S.N.
Dhawan & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
000050N/N500045), as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the consecutive term
of three financial years (2021-22 to 2023-24), starting from conclusion of this AGM
till the conclusion of 16" AGM of the Company, recommended to the shareholders
for the approval at the AGM subject to the fulfilment of the eligibility norms each
year at such remuneration plus taxes, out-of-pocket, etc., as may be mutually agreed
between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditors, the auditors shall
also provide the relevant certificates at a price agreed along with statutory audit fees
as may be re-quired under various statutory or regulatory requirements.
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M/s. S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP have confirmed that the appointment, if made would
be within the limits specified under Section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013
and are not disqualified to be appointed as Statutory Auditors in terms of the provi-
sions of Section 139, 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereun-
der. Further, the Company has also received an eligibility certificate from M/s. S.N.
Dhawan & Co LLP in Form-B as prescribed under the aforesaid RBI Guidelines on
Appointment of Statutory Auditors.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends the resolution set out at item no. 2
for the approval of Members as an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their rela-
tives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolu-
tion set out at Item No. 2 of this Notice.

The details of the transaction can be accessed at the registered office of the Company
during the business hours i.e. between 0900 Hrs to 1800 Hrs.

Date: October 27, 2021 By the Order of the Board
Place: New Delhi For DMI Finance Private Limited

Sd/-

Sahib Pahwa

Head- Compliance and Company Secretary
A24789

Express Building, 3" Floor, 9-10,

Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi- 110002
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PROXY FORM

DMI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered office: Express Building, 3 Floor, 9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi- 110002
Phone: +91-11-49834444, Fax- +91-11-41204000
Website: www.dmifinance.in
CIN: U65929DL2008PTC182749

MGT-11 - Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member (s):
Registered Office: Registered address:
Express Building, 3rd Floor, E-mail Id
9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar . . .
Marg, New Delhi-110002 Folio No/ Client Id:

T: +91 11 41204444 DP ID:
F: +91 11 41204000

il: dmi@dmifinance. . . . .
E@;‘ZQSL'ZOO?;;?E;ZQ I/We, being the member (s) of ............ shares of the DMI Finance Private Limited, hereby
appoint

1. Name:
E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature:

Or failing him

2. Name:
E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature:

Or failing him

3. Name:
E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 13th Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on shorter notice on Friday, October 29, 2021, at
Express Building, 3rd Floor, 9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi- 110002 at 1230
hours and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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Resolution Resolutions Optional*

Registered Office:

Express Building, 3rd Floor,
9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar
Marg, New Delhi-110002
T: +91 11 41204444

F: +91 11 41204000

email: dmi@dmifinance.in
U65929DL2008PTC182749

No.

For Against

Ordinary Businesses:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the:

a. Annual Audited Standalone Financial Statements
of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2021 and the Reports of the Board of Directors
and the Auditors thereon; and

b. Annual audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2021 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

To appoint M/s. S.N. Dhawan & Co (Firm Registration
Number- 000050N/N500045), as Statutory Auditors of
the Company and to fix their remuneration.

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

Signed this...... day of......... 2021
Affix
Revenue
Signature of shareholder Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Notes:
1.

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commence-
ment of the meeting.

A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in
the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such per-
son shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

*This is only optional. Please put an ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resolu-
tions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against
any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she
thinks appropriate.

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person
if he so wishes.

In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but
names of all the joint holders should be stated.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

DMI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered office: Express Building, 3 Floor, 9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi- 110002
Phone: +91-11-49834444, Fax- +91-11-41204000
Website: www.dmifinance.in
CIN: U65929DL2008PTC182749

Please fill attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall
Joint shareholders may obtain additional Slip at the venue of the meeting.

Name and address of the shareholder/Proxy:

Folio No.:
ID & Client ID*;
No. of Shares held:

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 13" Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held on shorter notice basis on Friday, October 29, 2021, at Express Building, 3rd Floor,
9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi- 110002 at 1230 hours.

Signature of the Shareholder or Proxy**:

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.
**Strike out whichever is not applicable
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

11th Flocr, Tower [,

One International Cenler,
5 B Marg, Prabhadevi (W),
Mumbai - 400013
Maharashira, India

T+ 22 GG26 2699
F +81 22 G626 2601

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of DMI Finance Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audiled the accompanying standalone financial statements of DMI Finance Private Limited
('the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Stalement of Profit and Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) in the manner
50 required and give a true and fair view in conformily with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its profit {including other comprehensive income), its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on thal date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143{10) of the
Act, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statemenls section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAl") together with the
athical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of tha Act
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requireaments and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of Matter - COVID 19

We draw attenlion to Note 38 of to the accompanying financial statements, which describes the uncertainty
refating to the effects of Covid-18 pandemic on the Company's operations as at 31 March 2021, Our opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Kay Audit Matters

Key audit mailers are those maiters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these maltters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matiers (o be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Use of information processing system for accounting and financial reporting

The Company relies upon information processing
systems for recording, processing, classifying, and
presenting the large volume of ransactions enlered into
by the Company. The Company has put in place IT
General Controls and automated IT Confrols o ensure
that the information produced by the Company is
reliable. Also, during the current year, the management
carred oul changes to the IT infrastructure and
accounting system to implement moratorium  relief
extended during the year to the customars. Among
ather things, the management also uses the information
produced by the entity's information processing
systems for accounting and the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements,

The Company’s accounting and financial reporting
processes being dependent on automated controls
enabled by IT systems impacts key financial accounting
and reporting iterms such as loans, interest income,
impairment on loans amongst others. The controls
implemanted by the Company in its IT environment
determine the integrity, accuracy, completenass and
validity of dala that is processed by the applications and
is ultimately used for financial reporting.

Since our audit strategy included focus on entity's
information processing systems relevant to our audit
due lo lheir pervasive impact on the financial
statements, we have determined the use of information
processing system for accounting and financial
reporting as a key audit matter for the current year
audit,

Qur key audit procedures on this matter included,
but were not limited, to the following:

a) Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
information processing systems, 1T General
Controls and automated IT controls for
applications, databases and operating
systems relevant to our audit;

Obtained an understanding of the changes
that were made to the |T applications during
the audit period on account of moratorium
relief extended lo its cuslomers;

b)

Involved IT specialists (auditor's expert) for
performance of the following procedures:

c)

i) tested the IT General Controls around user
access management, changes to T
environment and segregation of duties
around program  maintenance, Security
administraticn and owver key financial
accounting and reporiing processes; and

i} tested the Company's periodic review of

access rights. We also tested requests of

changes fto systems for approval and
authorization

iii} tested the automated controls like interfaces,
configurations and information generated by
the entity’s information processing systems
for loans, interesi Income and other
significant financial statement items,

d) Obtained wrilten representations from
management and those charged with
governance on whether IT general controls
and autoemated IT controls are designed and
were operaling effectively during the period
coverad by our audit.

Page 2 of 11

Clertwal fercinlanks

Offgae 1t Hangrivny, Chendgarh, Chenral, Gerugram, Hydorahad, Kochi, Kolbaala, Mumhal, Maw Deiti, Snala and #ona

Wiaker Ghandioi & Co LLP 6 raglslered
with lmiled liablity wilk identification
numbar AAC-2085 and has ils negistered
ulfice at L-41, Connaught Circus, Culer
Circle, Mew Dalhi, 110001, fndia




DMI Finance Private Limited

Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Kay audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected Credit Losses on loans (ECL) and implementation of COVID-19 relief measures
{Refer Note 3{m) for the accounting policy and Note 7.1 for the related disclosures

As at 31 March 2021, the Company has financial assels
{loans) amounting to Rs. 31,413.61 millions. As per Ind
AS 109- Financial Instruments, the Company is
required to recognise allowance for expected credit
losses on financial assels.

Expecled credit loss cannot be measured precisely
but can only be estimated through use of statistics.
The calculation of expacted credit losses s complex
and requires exercise of judgement around both the
timing of recognition of impairment provisions and
estimation of the amount of provisions required in
relation to loss evenls.

The Company has developed customized models to
derive key inputs used to determine the amount of ECL
such as probabilty of defaull (PD) and loss given
defaull (LGD). The result from these models is then
applied to the exposure at default (EAD] to arrive at tha
amount of ECL. In the process of developing the ECL
models, a significant degree of judgement has been
applied by the management in respact of following
matters:

a) Staging of loans and estimation of behavioral
life and thereby determining the criteria for a
significant increase in credit risk.

b} Estimation of expected loss from historical
observations.

¢} Estimafion of losses in respect of those loans
which had no/ minimal defaults in the past.

d) Selection of macro-economic facltors and
estimating their impact on ECL model; and

e) Estimation of the expected realizable values of
underlying collaterals.

Qur audit procedures in relation to expected credit
losses were focused on obtaining sufficient
appropriate audit evidence as to whether the
expected credit losses recognised in the financial
statements were reasonable and the related
disclosures in the financial statements made by
the management were adeguate. These
procedures included, but were not limiled, to the
following:

a) obtained an understanding of the model
adopted by the Company including key inpuls
and assumptions for calculation of expected
cradit losses including the impact of COVID 19
on the assumptions and how management
calculates the expecled credit losses and the
appropriateness data on which the caloulation
is based,

b) tested the design and operating effectiveness
of the key controls over completeness and
accuracy of the key inputs and assumptions
considered for calculation, recording and
monitoring of the impairment loss recognized;

c) obtained the policy on moratorium  and
restructuring of loans approved by the Board
of Directors pursuant to the RBI circulars and
ensured such policy is in compliant with the
requirements of the RBI circular;

d) evaluated the appropriateness of the
Company’s determination of significant
increase in credil risk in accordance with the
applicable accounting standard considering
the impact of COVID-12 on account of banefit
axtended by the Company to select borrowers
and the basis for classification of varicus
exposures into various stages.

e) As modelling assumptions and parameters are
based on historical data, we assessed whether
historical experience was representalive of
current circumstances and was relevant in
view of the recent impairment losses incurred
within the portfolios.

f) tested the accuracy of inputs through

substantive procedures and assessed lhe
reasonableness of the assumptions used;
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DMI Financa Private Limited

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Implementation of COVID-19 relief measures

During the current year, RBl announced various relief
measures for the borrowers which wera implamented by
the Company such as "COVID 18 Regulatory
Package- Asset Classification and Provisioning”
announced by the RBl on 17 April 2020 and RBI circular
on “Asset Classification and Income Recognition
following the expiry of Covid-19 regulatory package”
dated 7 April 2021 (collectively referred to as ‘the RBI
circulars’), and "Resolution Framework for COVID-18
related Stress” (the ‘Resolution Framework') dated &
August 2020, which have been collectively considerad
by the management in identification, classification and
provisioning of loan assets for impairment.

The management has considered the impact of COVID-
18 on arriving at the provisions as at the balance sheest
date on account of significant increase in credit risk on
borrowers given additional support by the Company
which wera impacted due to COVID-19. The basis of
eslimates and assumptions involved in arriving at the
provisions during the year were monitored by the
Company perodically and significantly depend on
future developments in the economy due to COVID-19
including any new relief measures’ announcements by
the RBI.

Considering the significance of the above matter 1o
the standalone financial statements, the degree of
management's judgment involved and additional
complexities involved in the current year on account of
ongoing impact of COVID-19 and since the matter
required our significant attention to test the
calculation of expected credit losses, we have
identified this as a key audit matter for current year
auditl.

We also draw attention to Note 38 of the accompanying
standalone financial staterments, regarding
uncertainties involved on the dus to outhreak of
COVID-19 pandemic with respect to the measuremant
of expecled credit loss on such loan assets which are
significantly —dependent on  uncertain  future
developments, as the same is fundamental to the
understanding of the users of financial statements.

g)

h)

k)

developed a point estimate by making
reference to the expected credit losses
recognised by entities that carry comparable
financial assets;

tosted the arithmetical calculation of the
expected cradit losses;

on test «check  basis, lested the
reasonableness of estimates of expected
reglizable values of underlying collaterals;

assessed the appropriateness and adequacy
of the related presenlation and disclosures in
the accompanying financial statements In
accordance with the applicable accounting
standards and related RBI circulars and
Resolution Framework; and

representations  from
management and those charged with
governance on whether they believe
significant azsumptions used in calculation of
expected credit losses are reasonable.

obtained  written

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the infarmation included in the Directors Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this

auditor's report.
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will nol express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When wa read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is 2 material misstalement therein, we are requirad
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Govarnance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors,
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and Fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company In accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that wera operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statemants that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
Brror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends o liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realislic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also respongible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenis as a whole are free
from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nol a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material missiaternent when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregale,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsa!

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audil evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral;
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

e  Obtain an understanding of internal conltrol relevant to the audit in order to design audil procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial confrals with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
eonclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial stalements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditar's report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease o continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amaong other mallers, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audil.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably ba thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters thal were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
maftters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosura
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should nol be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public Interest benefits of such cormmunication.

Other Matter

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 were audited by the
predecessor auditor, S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those
standalone financial stalements vide their audit report dated 3 July 2020.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable,

As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ('the Order') issued by the Central Government
of India in tarms of section 143{11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A a statemant on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we repaort,
to the extent applicable, that:

a)

i)

c)

d)

e}

f)

a)

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial statements;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesald standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS spacified under section
133 of the Act;

an the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls with reference Lo financial statements of the Company
as on 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date and our report dated 21 June 2021 as per Annexure B expressed
unmaodified opinion; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i)  the Company, as detailed in note 42 to the standalone financial stalements, has disclosed the impact
of pending litigation on its financial position as at 31 March 2021;

i) the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
wara any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2021;

iii) there were no amounts which wera required to be transferred to the Inveslor Education and
Pratection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021; and

v} the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes were
applicable for the period from 8 Movember 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not relevant to
these standalone financial statements. Hence, reporting under (his clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Regist?ﬁun Mo:001076MNM5S00013

)

™

-

Manish Gujral
Partrner
Membership No: 105117

UDIN:2110511TAAAADU3479

Place: Mumbai
Date: 21 June 2021
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Annexura A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of DMI Finance Private
Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the
books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we report that:

i)

i)

i

V)

wi)

a)

b)

)

vii) a)

b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipmeant
under which fixed assels are verified in a phased manner over a period of 3 years, which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assels.
In accordance with this program, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no
material discrepancies were noliced on such verification.

The Company does not hold any immovable property (in the nature of *Property, plant and
equipment'). Accordingly, the pravisions of clause 3{i) (c) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{ii) of the
Order are not applicable.

The Company has nol granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limitad
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section
189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(ii)(a), 3{iii}{b) and 3{iii)(c) of the Order
ara not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 in respect of
guarantee. Further, in our opinion, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered
under Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments and security.

In our opinion, the Company has nol accepted any deposits within the meaning of Seclions 73
lo 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{v) of the Order are not applicabls.

The Central Governmeant has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s services. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3{vi) of the Order are not applicable.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of cusloms, duly of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited to the appropriate
authorities, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Statement of Disputed Dues

Mame of | Mature Amount Amount paid | Period to which the Forum where
the of dues | (Fin million) | under protest amount relates dispute is

statute (% in million) pending

Income- | Incoma- 2.26 Mil Assessment year Commissioner of
tax Act, tax 201718 Income Tax-
1961 Appeal (CIT{A))
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financlal Statements

Annexure A ntd

wiii}

ix)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

xiv)

=)

wvi)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or financial
institution or debenture holders during the year. The Company did not have any outstanding
loans or borrowings payable to government during the year.

The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer. in our
opinion, the term loans were applied for the purposes for which the loans were obtained, though
idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in liquid
investmants, payable on demand.

Mo fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audil.

The provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to
the company since the company is not a public company as defined under Section 2(71) of the
Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3{xi) of the Order are nol applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of Clause 3(xii)
of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and
188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial
statemants etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment! private placemant of shares. In
respect of the same, in our apinian, the Company has complied with the requirement of Section
42 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder. Further, in our opinion, the amounts so raised
have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. During the year, the Company
did not make preferential allotment/ private placement of shares/ fully/partly convertible
debentures.

In aur opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors
or persons connacted with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and such registration has been obtained by the Company.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:001076MN/N500013

Manish Gujral

Partner

Membership Mo 105117

UDIN: 21105117AAAADU3479

Place: Mumbai
Date: 21 June 2021
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statemants

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of DMI Finance Private
Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Independent Auditor's Report on the Internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act')

1) In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of DMI Finance Private Limited
(‘the Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial stalements of the Company as at that dale.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2} The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the inlernal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note')
izssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the ICAI'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as raquired under the Acl.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

3 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemnal financial conlrols with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audil in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by tha ICAI preseribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance MNole require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4} Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such intermnal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
malerial misstatement of the financial staternents, whether due to fraud or emor,

5) \We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6) A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) perlain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance

Page 10 of 11
Chaulened Acoountanis Wialker Chandick & Go LLP 15 reglslered
with rrited lability with identification
Cffcasin Bangahn, Ghandigarh, Chenmai, Guregtam, Hyderahad, Kochi, Kolkals, Mombai, Sew Delhi, Mokds snd Puna number AAC-2085 and hag ils regislanad

affice at L-41, Cernawghs Circus, Culer
Girche, New Dot 110001, Inda



DMI Finance Private Limited

Annexure B {Contd)

thal transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
{3) provide reasonable assurance regarding pravention or timely detection of unauthorised acqguisition,
use, ar disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial stalements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7)

Because of the inharent limitations of intemal financial controls with reference to financial staterments,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of conirols, material
misstaternents due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evalualion
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements lo fulure periods are subject to
the rizk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
becausa of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorale.

Opinion

8)

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial stalements and such controls were operaling effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial staterments criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo:001076MN/MN500013

4

Manish Gujral
Fartner
Membership No105117

UDIN:21105117 AAAADU3479

Place: Mumbai
Date; 21 June 2021
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D Finance Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet Ac at pMarch 31, 2021
(&l amaunt In Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Motes As at March 31, 2021 A at March 31, 2020

ASSETS
Financlal assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 4 147626 1,14900.89
Bank balance other than cavh and cash eouivalents g 261721 15.20
Trade receivalbleas & G404 33,65
Loans F) 3141561 13,3515
Inweslmesnts & 18.488.52 15,294,048
Other financial assels 9 203585 L6623
Han- financial assets
current tax assels 1} 214.38 154,51
Defierred tax assets net] 11 573,29 L ]
Broperty, plant and cquipmeant 12 1768k 3E7.53
Intangible assets 13 22ED Fhs
Other non- financial assets 14 91.66 104.32
Asqets held for s2le 15 1E0.ES 189.8%
TOTAL ASSETS 56,157.94 5161710
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financlal Hahdlitles
Trace payables 14
[i] total outstanding dues of ricro enterprises and small enterprises 11075 J6.EH
{11} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre entergrises and sinall 19495 161.37
anterprises
okt securities 1% 18,551.6%9 22.797.57
Burrowings (other than dabt securities) 18 142348 3,091, 28
other financiad liabiltties 19 E29.87 A75.38
Non financial llabilitles
Prowisions 20 L 3795
Other non-linancial lasilities 1 33657 21442
EQILITY
Frquily share capital 22 6,436.58 5,582.94
Gilkhar eguity 23 FRATEAR 15,167,317
TOTAL LIARILITIES AND EQULITY e = 56,157.94 51,617.10

supnmzry af significant accounting policies and accamparying notes are an integral part of the financal statoments

This &5 the Balance Sheet reforred ta in our repoart of even date

For Walker Chandiol & Cao LLP Far and an hahalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registradion Mo, (OADTEMN/M500013 DMl Firnance Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
'l .
Manizh Gujral raja Chanakya Singh
Partner (/i Managing Directar)
semborship Mo, 105117 DMz D2G13460 I OZEG117D
1
Hace: HEW D‘ELHf Place: waDN
Date June 21, 2021 Date: Juni 1, 2021
G A
b L :
e
(rishan Gapal
hief Financial Officer]

Flace: purmbai Fleczen: GURU&RHM

Dates June 21, 2021 ) Date: June 21, 2021 Date: June 21, 2021



Dl Finance Private Limitad
Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
[all Amount in ®s. I omlllkons, unless otherwise stated)

Pates Fur the year March  For the year hdarch

31, 2021 31, 2020

Revenue from operationg
Interest incame 14 5,910,694 607TRA5
Feas and commission incame 5 3z 5203
et gain n falr valie changes 24 5491.04 21537
Tobal revenue lrom operations 7,540.47 6, 35585
Other income 27 104.04 ]
Totalincoms= 764451 6,446,149
Expenses
Finance costs 28 1,570 ud 1,455,010
Eeps and commission expenss 29 LA LY A43,03
Impairment an fnznciad instruments 30 2 maE ia 1,533,104
Ernpioyern benefits rxprnss 51 [ZEER ] 573,35
Deproclaticn and amartization iz R TE, 40
Other expenses 3 Hi212 F21.53
Tatal expenses 7332.49 510245
Profit before tax EAEN A 1,343.69
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax li 344,12 SAROT
|2) Deferred tax credil 16 [7%4.18] (19527}
Profit for the year 223,08 ‘030.83
Other camprehenslve incame
al ltems that will not he reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement of defined henefit lan o4 (2.00}

Incoae tax relating fo above item [061) Q.50
b} Items that will be reckassifled ta profit or foss

Changes i fair value 421 {537
Actuarlal Galm
Lrave Encashment

Incame tax relating o above item 11.05) 24.00
Other comprehensive Income 4.5H [¥2.87}
Total comprehensive ncame for the year 23806 S18.02
Eariniiegs per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 per share] 34

Basic (Fa.] n.as 1.78

Diluted (Rs.} n.3z 1.77

Summary of signilicant accounting palicics and accompanying noles sre an integral part of the financlal statements

This iz the S1atament af Prodit 2nd Loss referred to inogur repart of =ven date

far Walleer Chandiak & Co LLP For and an Belall of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration Ma. 001076RME00013 L:MI Finance Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

i e
wy Bins)
wrraja ;al'aﬁaky;m

Manfsh Gujral
f It Managing Drectar]

Partner

mierthership Mo, 105117 | 1M DZEQLLTD
il
prce: NEW DELHT place: LOMNDON
IFate: lune 28, 2021 Chate: e 21, 2021
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& Krighan Gopal
|ef Financial Officer)

Flage! Mumbial Flace: &UKU(?I Eﬁ”
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Dl Finaice Private Limited

Standalone Cash flow stateiment for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amaunt In Rs, In millions, unless otherwlse stated)

¥ear ended
March 31, M21

Vear nded
taarch 31, 2000

A Cash flow from operating actisitles:
Profit befare tax aiz.o2 1,343,569
Adpustments for
Depraclation and amartisation i TEAD
Natga-hﬂn.‘-alr walia changes {53104 {2253
Fmpsirrment on finarcisl nstromants 28487 1,533.14
Interest =xp=nse for leasing arrangemerls ) M 2738
Effackhes fritercst mabe sdjrstraant far finarclal Bstrient s 15.81 ERE]
Ermplorges stock eption axpaisas 75.78 030
Qperating prodit hadeess warking capital thanges 2,770 2,820.50
Changes in working capital
[incraaz=] in lim=ncisl and other assats 2,005 28) |13.530.68)
Increase in fnancal and other lizbilties 22014 475.67
Decrease én non finzncial assets Gh5 134,61
Increzse In non fimenoial lizbilities 14176 23020
Total of changes In working capttal {1,630.73) [12,691.75)
Direct tawes pald [net of refundsh [Aud.oup |592 78]
Mt eash Plow ganerated frem § {used fn] operating aclivities [A) TI.ET 110,455.53)
B Cash flow fram investing activitias:
Infiow {putlow) an acronng of @
Furghasa of Froaeity, plant and sgulpmant (30.64] 1396 44)
{lnciuding capial wark-in-aragrass]f intangibla
assats
Sale af Property, plant and eguiprenk - 1.04
Purehasz of Invastraent (met) [2,593.36) &A% 60]
tevarment of fixed depas®s (net) (252010 _ .
Het cash flow wsed in Inwesting ackivities (B] {3.276.01) _(5,850.04)

L Cash flow fram financing acklwitles:

Pracesd from issus of 2quity shares (induding 9,/85.22 1, TRA.08
share premium]

Pracssds fram dehbt seouriics 500 21, 305.00
Pracaads from bank barrowings 70n.00 SE0.00
Rapayisent af cash eradit - {332.86)
Fspayrsat af dabt sacuritias 14,750,m0] £4,300.00%
Repaymrsal al bank herresings {2,355,.33| (2,914 54)
Leass payimenis . [=mit8) 154500
Met cash flow generated from fimancing activities [C) 383071 17 06628
Mt Increase in cash and cash eguivalems (ArEC) 1,285.37 761341
Cash and cash eguivalents a5 at 1he= Deginning af the year 1,1%0.0% 42058
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 247020 1,190.85
Plodes:

1] Companents of cash and cash equivalents As gt March 31, 2001 A gt March 31, 3020
Cagh an liargd [ial'] 0.1x
Balanca with banks

Im elivinitd areatnts 2 1ucsy 255 47
Im canh cosclit 3e5.20 27531
Total ash and cash enuvalents 2476260 1,150.89

| Cash flow siatemen] bas besn prapared wndar Indinact method as set cutin the B0 &5 7 "Cash Flow Statement™.

3] kardisclosure of ireesting 2nd financing sbiviting that do e pegquine the uis of cash and cash equivalints, refier note 43

Sumenary af significant aczounting polizies ard srcompanying noles sre an ezl parl of the linecial daiameants

This Is the Cash Flow Statemnent referred 1o 10 sur repart of even date
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A, Equity share capital {refer nute 22)

DM Finance Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended March 31, 2021
[All Amount in Rs. In millions, undess otherwizse stated)

Memretahip Mo, 105117

o~

A
[yt

Place: Mumbai
Cratem: Jure 271, 2020
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off

DIK: (G2 3460

Plaps: M E'w DELH;

Date) June 31, 3021

| Ishad Gopal
{Chicf Financial OHicer]

Crate: fun= 21, 2021
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Place:

rajs Chanakyd Singh
Managing Direckary
s DECO117E

o, AZATED

Farticulars 1 fis at Aprll 1,2019 E|IBI\2&_I;|_ ng b year i Az ak fdarch 31,2020 __El'.mné; during the year | As at March 31,7021
Enuity share capital 5,200.58 45334 | 5,502,94 B43.64 G,436.58
b. Other equity |refer note 23)
Particulars IT.!!-E':E: and surplus e o Total
Satutary Share option Sacurities premim Capital redemption Betained carnings
reserde s 45- outstanding rescrun
1€ of RBI fct account

| Balance a3 on April 1, 2019 11131 1504 12,905.76 .21 - 276805 146,514.37
Frofit for the yaat = = - 490,85 200,89
Other Comprahenshr Incame far the year - - 3 {zan [72.87]
Share aplions exercizad during the year - 35.54 a - AR54
Promium an corverslon of OCFSs - T1LIR - - T1.76
Premium onissue of equily shares - - 1,564.75 - 1,564.75
Defarrad taw Sanllity roversed an CODsATORS: - - - 54.37 54.37
Transfer 1o statutary reserve 20153 - - 1201.53) -
{Balaice a5 o March 31, 2020 93281 &6.58 14,547.77 1.2 1,538.91 1%,167.31
Prafit for the year - : 213.08 223,08
Jther Comarehensive Fncoems Far She year - - - - 4,88 4,90
Tramafer (o djsedial redenie £4.52 - - 4462} -
Share aptiens exercized during the year 3 7437 - 7437

Pramium on issue of aguity shares - S| 8,947 55 - - RA47.5%

Balamca as nn March 31 2021 9F .46 140.55 2349535 #1.21 3,722.35 2B,417.32
Summany of ggaificant acoaunting pelicles and accompanying nates are an integral part of the fmancal statements

This is the Statemznt of Change in Couity referred Lo in cur reporl of =ven date

Far Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For andl o behalf of the Bosard of Directors of

Firm Regizleatian Mo, OL07EN,MNE000E3 DoAl Flmance Private Limited

Chartared Accountants 2
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DMI Finance Private Limited
MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(al

(b}

3

Corporate information

DMl Finance Private Limited {the “Company®} is 2 Company domiciled in India as a Privale Limited Company. The
Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India {"RBI") as a non-deposit accepting non-banking financial
company or NEFC-ND under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The Company is engaged in the business of providing loans to corporate and unsecured persanal loans,
Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance In preparation of financial statements

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended frafm time
to thme).

The standzalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 were authorized and approved Tor issue by
the Board of Directors on lune 21, 2021,

The standalene financial statements have beeh prepared on a histarical cost hasis, except for fair value through ather
camprehenzsive income (FYOCH instruments, other financial assets held for trading and financial assets and liahilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value.

Presentation of flnancial statements

Tha Campany presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity, Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally
reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when Ind AS specifically permits the same
orit has an unconditionally legally enforceable rights to offset the recognized amounts without being contingent an
future events. Slmilarly, the Company offsets the income and expenzes and reports the same on a nat bazis when
permitted by Ind AS specifically,

signifleant aceounting policies

(a} Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of Standalone financial statements in conformily with Ind AS reguires the management to make
Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
and accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liakilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions Lo accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptlons and cstimates
could result in the outcome requiring @ material adjustment te the carrying amounts of assets or liahilities in future

periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimalion, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the mast slgnificant effect on the amounts recognized in the finandial statements is

ineluded in the following notes;

i} Impairment loss on financlal assets
Judgment Is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining an impairment allowance for loans and advances. In estimating these cash flows, the Company makes
judgments sbout the borrower’s financial sllualloh. These estimates are based on assumptions abaul # number of
factors such as credit quality, level of arrears etc. and actual results may differ, resulting in fulure changes to the
impairment allowance. Refer note 6.1 for further details of the increased uncertainty relating to the estimation of
impairment of loan portfolio due ta the Impact of the pandemic as at Mach 31, 2021

i) Business Model Assumption

Classification and measurement af finzncial assets depends an the results of the 5PP1and the business model tests.
The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective, This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including how the performance of the assets Is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks Lhat
affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company menitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised priar to
their maturlty to understand theceason for their dispasal and whether the reasans are consistenl with the plijoct
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring Is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether
the business maodel for which the remaining financial assets are held cantinues ko be approprizte and if it is not
appropriate whether there kas been a change in business model and so a prospective change 1o the dassification
of those assets.

iii) Defined employee beneflt assets and llabilitles
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial waluation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developiments in the futurs, These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates, Due to the complexities invalved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined henefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting data.

iv) Share Based Payments
Estimating falr value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
radel, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimale alse requires determination of the
mast apprapriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend
vield and making assumptions about them.

v} Fair value measurement

The fabr value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid Lo transfer a lability
in an orderly transaction in the principle {or most advantapeous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions {i.e. the exit price) regardiess of whether that price is directly observable ar estimated using
another valuation technigue. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance
theat cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow {"DCF*) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observabla
markets where possible, but where this is not feazible, 2 degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values,
ludgerments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about thesea factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

(k) Caszh and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprises cash in hand, demand deposits and time deposits with original maturity of less

than three months held with bank, debit balance in cash credit account.
(e) Recognition of Income and expense

i) Interest income
The Company earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue is recopnized to the extent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Interest revenue is recognized using the effective interest methed (EIR). The effective interest method calculates the
amortized cost of a financial instrument and allocates the interest income. The effective inlerest rate Is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a sharter periad, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or liability, The calculation takes into
aceount all contractual torms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment aptlons) and includes any fees or
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future

cradit losses.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other
than eredit-impaired assets, When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and s, therefore, regarded as Stage
¥, the Company calculates the interest to the extant recoveralble, If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-
impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income.

il} Interest expense
Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part aof the carrying value of the financial liability
and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions
payable to arrangers and other expenses, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue

of a financial liability.
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{d)

le)

i} Other charges and other interest

Iv)

iif)

Ovardue charges including penzl interest is recognized on realization basis.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

Leases
The Company assesses al conlract inception whether a contract is, or containg, 2 lease. That s, IT the contract conveys

the right to control the use of an identified asset for a perad in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company Iz lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets, The Company recognizes lease liahilities to make lease paymenls and right-nf-use assets
reprasenting the right to use the underlying assels.

Rlght-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset ls avallable for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets Includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The right-of-use assets are also subjact to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in
Section m (i) Impairmeant of non-financial assets,

Lease Liability
At the commencement date of the lease, the Compary recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of

Ipasa payments to be made over the Jease term. The lease payments include fixed payments {including in substance
fived payments) less any lease incentives receivable, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value

guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinahble. After the
commencement date, the amount of leass liabilitiss is increased Lo reflect the aceretion of intarest and reducad for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilitics is remeasured if there is a modification,
achange in the leass term, a change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
i an index or rate used to determine such lease payments).

Short Term Lease
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption ta its short-term leases (i.e, those leases that have

a lease term of 12 months or lass from the commencement date and do not contain 2 purchase option}. Lease
payments on shart-lerm leases arc recognised as and when due,

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and Intangible assets

PPE

PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreclation and impairment losses, it any. Cast comprises the purchase
price, barrowing cost If capltalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its waorking
candition for Its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebate are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fived assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
procecds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the

assets is derecognized.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assels are carried at cost less accumulated amertization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally penerated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure
ix reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
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{f)

(2]

{h]

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as tha difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.,

Depreciatlon and amortization

Depreciation

Depreciation on PRE is calculated on a written down value (WD) basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful
lives of the assets, prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 which also represents the estimate of
the useful life of the assets by the management,

PPE costing upta Rs5.5,000 individually are fully depreciated in the yoar of purchase,

Thie company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its fived assets,

Useful lives estimated by Rale of Depreciation
the management (years)

Furniture and fixtures 10 25.89%

Camputers 3 63.16%
Wehicles 1 31.23%
Office equipment 5 A% 07

Leasehold improvements and allied office eguipment’s are amortized on a straight-line basis over useful life
estimated by management.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of PPE are reviewed at each finandal year end and
adjustad prospectively, if appropriate,

Amaortization

Intangible assets are amortized an a WOV basis a period of five years from date when the assels are available for use.
The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets are reviewed at the end of cach finanzial
year,

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

A provislon ls recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Pravisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to thelr present value and are determined based on the
best pstimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date,

Cantingent llability is disclosed for {1} Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly
within the control of the Company ar {2) Present obligations arising from past events where it is nat probable thatan
outflow of resources will be reguired to settle the abligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are nol recegnised in the finzncial statements.

Retirement and other employee benefits
Post-employment benefits are classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under a defined
contribution plan, the Company's only obligation is to pay a fived amount with no obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employes bencefits, The related actuarial and
investment risks fall on the employee, The expenditure for defined contribution plans is recognized a3 expanse during
the period when the employee provides scrvice. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Enmpahfsgbﬂga
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provide agreed benefits to the employees, The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Company. The
present valua of the defined benefit obligations is calculated using the projected unit credit method,
The Company operates following cmployee benefit plans:

i} Employee Provident Fund

Rotirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no abligation,
ather than the contribution payable to the provident fund, The Company recopnizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as expenditure when an eamployes renders the related service.

Il) Gratulty

In accordance with the Paymeant of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment ta eligible
employees, at retirement or termination of employment basad on the last drawn salary and years of employmeant
with the Company. The Company's obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is
provided for hased on actuarial valuation.

Met interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used Lo measure the defined benefit
chligation to the nel defined benefit liability or asset. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ fram actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-lerm nature, these
liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a
carresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCHin the period in which they poour. Re-measurements
are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

iii] Leaves

Erztitlements to annual leave are recopnized when they accrue to the employees, Leave entittements can be availed
while In service of employment subject to restriction on the maximum number of accumulations. The Company
determines the liahility far such accumulated leave entitlemants on tha basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary at the Year end.

Taxes
Tay expense comprises current and deferred tax,

Current income tax
Current Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the

taxation authorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1961, Income Computation and Disclosure Standards and
other applicable tax laws. The tax rates and Lax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted at the
reparting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside prafit of loss is recognised outside profit or
loss [either in other comprehenslve income or in equity]. Current tax [tems are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCH or directly in aguity.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the lax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reparting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unusad tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax cradits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reparting dale and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax assel Lo be
utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets sre ro-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probahle that fulure taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected Lo apply in the year when the asset
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il

(k)

Deferred-tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss i recognised outslde prafit or loss {either in other
cotmprehensive income ar in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
gither in OCI ar directly in equity.

Defarred tax assets and deferred Lax liabilities are offsetif a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against eurrent tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation autharity,

Earning per share

The Campany reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholdars by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the peried. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of
an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share
during the reporting year,

Far the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attibutable to equity
sharsholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Share based payments

Cquity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar serviees are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at tha grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a correspanding Inerease in eguity, At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its astimate of the
number of eguity instruments expected to vest. The Impact of the revision of the ariginal estimates, if any, is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised eslimate, with a
carresponding adjustment 1o the Share option outstanding account,

The dilukive effect of cutstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings pershare,

Financial instruments

A financial instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financlal asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initigl recognition and measurement

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initizlly recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument. Loans and advances
ta customers are recognised when funds are disbursed to the customers. The classification of finandal instruments
at initial recognition depends an their purpose and characteristics and the management's intention when acquiring
them. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair valae plus, In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
walue through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and Subsequent measurement

Ear purpases of subsequent measurement, financial assets are clazsified in four categories;

¢ Debtinstruments/Loan portfolio at smortized cost

s Debtinstruments al falr value through other comprehensive income (FYTOC!)

= Equity Instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
[FyTOCH e
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Debt Instrurments/Loan porifolio ot amortised costs

A ‘debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

*  The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flaws,
and

#  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specilled dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (3FF1) on the principal amount outstanding.

Buslness model: The business madel reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows.
That is, where the Company's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets, the same is
measured at amartized cost or where the Company’s objective is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash
flows arising from the sale of assets, the same is measured at fair value through otheor comprehensive income
[FVTOCI). If neither of these s applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets
are classified as part of ‘other’ buziness model and measured at FYTPL.

SPPI: Where the business madel is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows (e measurad at amartized cost),
the Company assesses whether the financlal instrurments” cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
Interest (the "SPPItest’). In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are
consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.2. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money,
credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that i= consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where
the contractual terms Introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arranpsment,
the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, The amertized cost, as
mentioned abowve, is computed using the effective interast rate mathod,

After inftial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured 2t amartised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method less impairment. Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or
pramium on acqulsition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included in
Interest income in the statement of profit or Inss. The Insses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement

of profit and lozs.

The measurement of credit impairment is based on the three-stage expacted credit loss model described in Note:
Impairment of financial assets {refer note 3 (M)}

Debt Instruments at FYOCT

& ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCH I both of the following criteria are met:

The oblective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and fair value changes
relating to market movements selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent PP

Debl instruments included within the FYTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting dale al fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income [(OC1). Howewer, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain orloss in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCH s reclassified from the
equity to Statement of Profit and Loss, Interest earned whilst holding FYTOC! debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the IR method.

Equity Investments and Mutual funds

All aguity Investments inscope of Ind AS 103 are measured at fair value. Eguity instruments which are held for trading
are classified as held at FYTPL, For all ether cquity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to
presant in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value, The Company makes such election on
zn Instrument-by- instrument hasis. The classification is made on Inltial recognition and is irrevocable,

If the Company decides to classily an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIL There iz no recycling of the amounts from OC) to Statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within eguity,
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Financial Ligbilities
Inltial recoghition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost. A1 financial labilities are recognized initially at fair
value and in the case of loanz and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,

Subsequent measurement

Financlal liabilitles are subsequently carried at amortized cast using effective interest method,
Reclassification of financial assets ond liobilities

The company doesn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exeeptional
circumstances in which the acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.  Financial liabilities are never
reclassified.

De-recognition of financial asset and financial liability

Financial Assets

& financlal asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is de-
recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Company also de-
recognises the financial asset if it has transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

= It has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financal asset
ar

- ltretains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full withoet
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arranpements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of a financlal asset {the 'original asset’), but assumes a contractual ohlipation to pay those cash flows to one or
more entities (the 'eventual recipients'], when all of the following three conditions are met:

- The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual reciplents unless it has collected equivalent
amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent
plus accrued interast at market rates.

= The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the cventual recipients.

- The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material delay.

In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash eguivalents
including interest earned, during the perlod between the cellection date and the date of required remittance to the
eventual recipients. & transfer only gualifies for de-recognition if either;

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the aszet
or

- The Company has neither transferred nor retalned substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

The Company cansiders control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ahility to sell the asset
in its entiraty to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that sbility unilaterally and without imposing
additional restrictions on the transfer. When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
tisks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the
Company's continuing invalvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated Hability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Company has retained.
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On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between: {3) the carrying amount {measured at
the date of derecegnition) and {b) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any naw liahility
assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit ar loss account,

Financial Liabilitles

Financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires, Where
an existing financlal Hability Is replaced by another from the same lender an substantially different terms ar the
terms of an existing liability are substantizlly modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the ariginal liability and the re-cognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying
amaunts |s recognlsed In the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets
Owverview of principles for measuring expected credit loss {“ECL") on financial assets

Ir accordance with Ind A5 109, the Company is required to measure expected credit losses on its financial instruments
designated at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive incoma. Accordingly, the Company is
required to determine lifetime lasses on financial instruments where credit risk has increased significantly since [ts
arlginatien. For other instruments, the Company is required to recognize credit losses over next 12 month period,
The Company has 2n option to determine such losses on individual basiz or eollectively depending upon the nature
of underlying portfolio. The Company has a process to assess credit risk of all exposures at each year end as follows:

Stage |

These represenl exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reporting date. The Company has assessed that all standard exposures (Lo, exposures
with no overdues) and exposure upto 30 day overdues fall under this category. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the
Company measures ECL on such assets over next 12 months,

Stage ll

Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classified onder
this stage. Based on cmpirical evidencs, significant increase in credit risk s witnessed after the overdues on an
pxposure exceed for @ period mare than 30 days. Accordingly, the Company classifies all exposures with overduss
exceeding 30 days at each reporting date under this Stage. The Company measures lifelime ECL on stage [l loans.

Stage il

All exposures having overdue balances tor a period exceeding 90 days are congidered to be defaults and are classifled
under this stage. Accordingly, the Company measures lifelime losses on such exposure. Interest revenue on such
contracts Is calculated by applying the effective Interest rate to the amartized cost (net of impairment allowance]
instead of the gross carrying amount. The method is similar to Stage 1 assets, with the probabillity of default set at

10055,

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Campany applies the same principles for
assessing whether there has been a significant Increase in credit risk since initial recognition,

Methodology for calculating ECL
The mechanics of the FCL caloulation involve the use of following key elements:

Frobahility of defaull {PD) - The probability of default is 2n estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time harizan
{12-month or lifetime, depending upon the stage of the asset). PD estimation is done based on historical internal data
availtable with the Company.

Exposure at default (EAD) - It represents an estimate of the expasure of the Company at a future date after considering
repayments by Lhe counterparty before the default event occurs. The outstanding balance as at reporting date is
consldered as EAS by the Company. Considering the PD determined above factors in amount at default, there is no
separate requirement to estimate EAD.

Loss given default (LGD) - It represents an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event of default
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Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-econamic developments occurring in the
economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there 15 any relationship betweaen
key economic trends like GOP, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation ete.
with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company basad an its internal data, While the internal estimates of
PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, termporary overlays are embedded
in the methadolopgy to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

Definltlon of default and cure

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 11l (credit-impaired) for ECL
calculations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments. The Company may
also classify a loan in Stage Il if there is significant deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or an
assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately detrimental effect on the loan
repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of whether an instrument is in default, the Company also
considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in ar non-repayment of the loan. When such events occur,
the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the borrower as defaultaed and therefore
assessed as Stage I for ECL calculations or whether Stage |l is appropriate.

Classification of accounts into Stage Il |s done when there is a significant Increase Incredit risk since initial
recognition, typically when contractual repayments are mare than 30 days past dus,

It is the Compamy's policy Lo conslder a financial instrument as ‘cured” and therefore re-classified out of Stage N or
Stage |l when none of the default criteria which resulted in their downgrade are prasent.

Collateral repossessed

The Campany's policy is to sell repossessed assets, Mon-financial assets repossessed are transferred to asset held for
sale at fair value less cost to sell ar principal outstanding whichever is lower at repossession date.

Write-offs

Financizl-zssets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Comparny has stopped puorsuing the
recavery. IF the ameount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated
as an addition to the sllowanee that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoverios
are credited to prafit and loss account.

Man-financial asset

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at cach balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based
an internal/external factors, An mpairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset excecds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset, In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken inte account, if available, If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at falr value at each balance sheet date using various valuation
technigques,

Falr value is the price at the measurament date, at which an asset can be sald of paid to transfer a liability, in an
orderly transaction belween market participants at the measuremeant date.

The Company's accounting policles require, measurement of certain financial / non-financlal assets and liabilities at
fair values (zither on a recurring or non-recurring basls). Also, the fair values of financial instruments measured at
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The Company s required to classify the fair valuation method of the financial / non-financial assets and liahilities,
gither measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which
reflacts the sipnificance of inputs used In the measurement).

Accordingly, the Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in tha circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available to measure Tair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable Inputs and minimizing the
use af unobservable inputs.

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy described as follows:

v Leval 1 financlal instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access 1o al the measurement date, The
Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on
the balance sheet date,

o« Lovel 2 financial instruments - Those whera the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived
from directly or indirectly abservable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

s Level 3 financial instriments - include one or more unohservable input where there is little market activity for
the asset/llability at the measurement date that is significant to the measurement as a whole,

Dividend

The Campany recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised
and the distribution is no lanper at the discretion of the Company, Final dividends on shares are recorded as a fiability
on the date of approval by the sharehaolders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration
by the Company's Board of Directors,

Fareign Currency Translation
Foreign currency transactions and balances

Initial recognition:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currancy and the forelgn currency at the date of the transaction.

Converslon:

Foreign currancy monatary items are reported using Lhe closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms
of historical cost denominated in a forelgn currency are reported uwsing the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction; and non-maonetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a
fareign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

Exchange differences:

Exchange differences arising on the seitlement of monetary items, or on reparting such monetary [tems of Company
at rates different fram those at which they were initially recorded durdng the year, or reported in previous financial
statemants, are recognized as income or a5 expenses in the year inwhich they arise.
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4 Cash and cash equivalents

Az at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Cash on hand .08 D.12
Balance with banks

- balance in cash credit accounts 368,80 22530

- balance In current accounts 2,106.38 96547

2,476.26 1,190.89

5 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months® 26721 1520

267,21 15.20

* Deposlts being lien marked against corperate eredit cards and bank guarantee.,

6 Trade recelvables

Unsecured considered good 54.64 33.65

54.64 33.65

Less; Impairment lass allowance -

Total 54.64 33.65




7 Loans

i)

]

W

{4 Term Ioans
Corporate loans
Consunter s
Total (A} Gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total {&) Met

(B}

DMl Finance Private Limited

Motes to the 5tandalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(A Amaunt In Rs. v millions, unless otherwise stated)

Secured by tangible assets and intangible awets

Unsacured

Tatal (B} Graszs

Less: Irmpairment loss alfowance
Total (B} Met

[C) Sector

Public sechor

Others

Total [C) Gross

Less: Impairment koss allowanes
Total {C) Net

(o}

In India

Cutside India

Total (D) Gross

Less: Impairment lass allowance
Takal (D] Met

As al Mareh 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Amortised cost Farir value Total Amortised cost Fair value Total
thraugh other through other
camprehensive comprehensiva
Ingorne - n iI'I_I:lJITIE
FERTTRT 142.83 13,807.74 17,451.35 170,76 12,582.01
19,528.10 - 19,528.30 ety - 22,141.27
33,293.25 142,83 43,436.08 34,602.52 120.76 3472338
101787 460 2,022.47 1,365,972 3.85 1,360,77
31,275.38 138,23 31,413.61 33,236,650 116,91 33,353.51
13,764,595 147,83 13,907.78 1246125 10008 12,.582.01
19,528,30 19,528.30 22,141.37 72,141,27
33,203,375 142,83 33,436.08 34,602.52 120,76 34,73.28
201787 4,60 202247 1,365.92 3.5 L3gu iy
31,275.38 138,23 31,413.61 33,236.50 116.91 33,35351
33,791.35 14381 13,436,080 14,502.57 120,76 34,723,28
33,293.25 142,83 3343608 34,602.52 120,78 34,723,258
L0187 AED 202247 138802 EN: 1,368.77
31,275.38 138.23 3141361 33,736.60 116.01 33,353.51
11,793.75 142,13 13,436.08 14,602.52 12076 34,723.2F
T =S 142,83 33,136.04 34,602.52 120,76 34,723.28
7,017.87 4.50 2,022.47 1,365,591 3HE 138057
31,275.38 138.22 31,413.51 13,236,600 116.91 33,353.51

Lozns and receivables are non-derivative financial assels which generate a foed or varizble interest income for the Company. The carrying vabie may be alfecled by
changes In the credit risk of the counterparlies,

Secured Loans granted by the Company are securad by eguitable mortgage/registered mortgage of the property and/for undertaking to create a security and/for
personal guaranlees andfar lypothecation of assets and/or receivabies and/for pledge of sharesfdabenture units and other securities.

The Company has granted certaim loans to cmployers amaunting to Rs. 12,14 milllons In current year (previous year: 8. 18,81 millions)

Corporate boan portfolic inclides non-coavertible debentures of Ks, 2,385,138 millions [previcus year: Rs. 2,426.45 millians)

During tha year, the Company invoked the shares pladged as securlty against the Hon-performing loan given fo one of the borrower. The managsment of the
Company intented to recaver the oulslanding duss fram the said borrower. The management of the Company, if required 1o recover, shall sale these shares and
after recovering #ll the cvesdues an the laan the Company intend to refund the surplus (il any) te Lhe said borrower.
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Barch 31, 221 l March 31, 2020
Condurner loans - —_ S
Stage 1 Stage 2 Sapge 3 Tatal | Stagel I Stage 2 Stape 3 Taodal
Gross carnyling amoliin 18,164.57 134374 19,528.30 | 20,656.64 11935 0075 | 2514127
Leses Impaliment boss allawance E2.&7 3154 A0a.01 20657 14365 29078 | CA00d
Met carrging amaunt 18,102.10 1,0221%9 - 10,124,729 20A50.07 1,051.19 | - | X 50126
March 31, 2021 tarch 31, 2020
Corparate loans S ———
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stape 3 Taotal Stage 1 Stape 2 Stage 1 Tatal
Gm:s__n_:rl_rr!eng ameint 12,836,322 - 107158 13,907.78 10,282.55 T,218.12 1,181.34 12,582.01
Less: Impairment loss allowance HR1,04 - 63743 1,618.46 152.18 624 551,34 7.7
Metcarrying amount 11,855.1% o | 43013 | 13,289.32 | 10,130.36 1,151.88 S30.00 | 11,8522
Surnsniary of cradil substilules and compulsory convertible debenlures by slage distribation is as follows: .
i Mlarch 31, 2025 naarch 31, 2020
Credit substitutes and compulsory convertible debentures o B
Stage 1 Stage 7 Stage 3 Tolal Slape 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Erogs carrylig amalint 2,Z65.67 280,64 351 2.393.29" EI0TRT A3R 00 2,526.E7
Lessz impalrment lase allowanze 3236 2.57 25029 i L i 4 2340 3 17ras 0095
Met carrying amount 1,923.40 278.06 10170 2,303.17 216467 . 16145 232532

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount in relation to consumer 2nd corparate lending {ewcept crodit substitutes and compulsony comvertifole debentures) is, as

Tallows: )
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cansumer lpans =3
Stage 1 Ltage 2 stagn 3 Tatal Sfage 1 Slage 2 Slage ¥ Tatal
Gross carrying amout opening balance 20,656,649 1,193.85 290,78 | 2214127 9,533.8E 44722 161,36 | 10,142.45
Mew Aty originated, Metted off for repayvinents and loans]  (1,839.60) [4B3.70) [380ET)| (2612.07) 1LO07428 EQGA0 I3 | 11953881
i b, i ar
Transfers [rom Slage 1 [EIE.DE) 678.04 | - - (45270 1716 174.54 -
Transfers [ram Slage 2 44,80 lf-'l'ﬁ.ElJ:I'l - - 37R.32 MZE. 76| 5044 -
(Transfers lrom Slage 3 o 034 E {111} - 12236 b83 (123.630 -
Grosd carrying emount dosing balance 18, 184.57 1,303,713 | - 19,528.30 | 20,656,69 1,193,855 200,78 | 22,041,37
March 31, 2021 Narch 31, 2020
Corporate loans = e | s ——s A e
Stagn 1 Stage 7 Stagn 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
| Gross carrying amaun ing balancs 10,282.55 | 121812 108134 | 1258201 10369.10 §13.96 564.37 | 11,647.43
Mew fzsets ariginated, Metted oll for repaymenls and loaas 1,335.55 (1.7E] 1,325.77 LOy7s 51.11 [194.03) 934.58
|=recomnized during the wsar
Transfers from Stag= 1 - - - '| [1,7%3.04) TI6.RA 496,18 -
Transfers from Stage 2 1,218.12 11,218.12] - B | - [423.81) 423,81 | -
Translers from Stage 3 - - IR 59 {:‘(IFI.'-‘I'-J,‘] -
Gross carrying amount closing balance 12,835.22 LUF1.56 | 1300778 | 10,2HLES 1,718.12 1,081,349 | 12,582.0
MAn analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount of Byesiments In relation to Credit Substitutes and Compulsory Coavertibie Debantures is, as follows:
March 31, 2021 Barch 31, 2020
Particulars
Staga 1 Staga 2 tage 3 Tatal Stage 1 Stagr 2 Stagr 2 Tafal
[Gross carrying amount opening balance 2,187.67 - 33000 | 7,526.67 | 303hae 357 12 3,377.54
Mew Asosts originated, Metted ofl for repsymenis snd loans IhME.R4 12499 3463 (B LA [352.12) ELUE- kA
derepopalsed during the year —
Translers [rom Slage 1 |H0.EL) FHOLES  (A3s.00] =5 1800 =
Translers rom Stage 2 2 = =il - -
Translers from Slage 3 A = __E= e | &
Grogs Carrying amaunt clasing balance 2265467 280454 35199 2,895 249 2, 187.67 - 339,00 2526.67

MUMEA

SO ARG
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A analysls of changes b the ECL allowanees o relation Lo consumen and corpoeate lending (2xcept Cradit Substdutes and Cormpalsary Comeertilile Delertises) i, s lollows:

March 31, 221 March 31, 2020
Consumer loans T — e
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 1 Tatal Stage 1 Stape 2 Stape 3 ] Tolal
Gruss chrrying Brount opening balance o HEG5T 14255 290,78 50,01 7036 1.26 16136 | 19198
Chanpe in ECL due Lo change in CCL rrodel rate 1249.25) BTN AN 53.46 1036 09 - 11.35
Mew hssels originated, Melted oil for repayments ond loans|  [101.95) a4q)|  1saeEn | 1,38m37 36076 16113 23721 76010
|derecaanzed during the vaar ot
Tranzle=rs from Slap= 1 [3.07) 16225 - 15518 {207.93] 3338 17454 -
Translers from Stags 1 0.2l = ¢1h?1] ] [1m.51]) 375 [54.23}] S0.4d -
Transless from Stape 3 - 0.Ca = | iR 1.23 012 {1.35] =
Welle Ol - - | iLairse| (1Eavs) : 350421 331.2)
Gross carrylig amaunt closing balance B2.A7 321.54 =] anaed | HGST 14766 700,78 540,01
! March 31, 2021 J March 31, Z{I‘IZD
Carporate loans ¥ e
HMage 1 Shape 2 Shape 3 Tatal r Stage 1 LStage 2 Stage 3 Taotal
Gross carrying amount opening balance o 15218 | 2624 |  55i34 12997 110,67 3567 ¥50.19 106,43
Change in ECL fue to change in COL model rate 395,60 BE25|  amiAm 024 574 nos 3641
Mew Assets originated, Wetted off for repevments and loans 070z i )| apamn 34789 138,700 107 60 SEE.E0
|derecagnis=c during the vear =1 E—\ . o SR
Transfers fram Stage 1 - - - - [B3m.21) 13,88 375,73 x
Transfers from Stzge 2 6.2 26.24] - z L [iE7ad)|  1%7.a0 | ;
Translers from Stags 3 - - - - 145 R -|27115} =
Write Cifs = - = - - 2 29265, (291.65)
Grass carrying amount closing balance TE1.04 : 637,93 | LGLEAG 152.19 26.24 S51.39 | 71837
An analysis of changes in the ECL allowances of Investrmend in relativn (o Credil Subslilutes and Cornpuliary Converlible Debentures is, as Follaws:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars
Sape 2 Sap=3 Stage 2 Stage 1 Tatal
JECL allowance opening balance . 177.95 4529 . an.75
Change in ECL due to change In ECL model rate b.52 [3.25)
ECL on new adsets originated, netted off for repayments and loans b Gamr| [P 13345
|darecagnlsed during the year - - -]7_ — - —
Transfers from Stage 1 ‘ ) : =5
Transfers fram Stage 2 B = = 7 = z = 7 =
Transfers from Stage 3 _ = = = = g 3 2 z 7
e o —— : - 2 - - - 5 - :
ECL allowance dosing balance 242,26 2.57 250,29 505,12 23.00 s 177.05 200,05
7.2 Colbateral

I ease of carparate tarm lsanc the Company s in the business of exlerding secured loens mainly backed by morlgaps of property {residential or cormemerclal).

in addition to the above mentionad collateral, the Company halds other types of ollateral and credt enhancemeints, such as cross-collaterabizsation on other assets of the
horrower, share pledge, guarantess of parentfoldingfarosg companies, personal guaraptees of prometers/partners/proprictors, hypothecation of receivables via cscrow
accobnt and wthers

in Its normal coeese af husiness, the Company doss not physically repossess progesles of othier sssets, bl recovery elforts are made an delivauent laans through coffechian
exacutives, slong with legal mesns Lo recover due loan repayments,

Ones contractual lean repayments ara more than 90 days past due, repassession of progerly may be initizted under the orovisions of the SARFAES] Act 2002, Re-poss=sied
property 15 disposed of in the manner prescribed in the SARFAESE act o recover substanding debt,
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A Investmedts

Amortlsed cost Aj fair valus At Falr value Subrtatal

Tetal

Others*
s at March 21, 2021 ihrough profit and thraugh oqll.gr
lings fomprehensive
Incomne
la} -y
gty fnstroments
Findesbmerds in Subsidiaries f Assoclates
Equity shares in Ok Sdaraprinent Sevices Private Limited L - = 0S5 035
Lguiy shares in DRAE Altermatives Mials | iniled - - = Y 4393
Enprily sharas in Ddd Capttal Privabs Limibed - - - ) fE-r]
Ofhers
Equity shases ian T8 Cansumner Credd Private Limated - - a7 3.7 £l
bquity shares I MecHally Blaral Frgimeseimg Comnpany Limted N 50 - 513 - 25.02
Lquity shares in Flash Eleckranles Prisate Livaibed A0 A 304 .40 5 4,40
Cruity shares in Alchemist Azt Recanstructon Cemgany Linited - AIE I Pl ) ' 6,20
Prafarante shares
Investmenls fn Subsidiasies f Associanas
Campalsorily convertibde proferance shares in DRALCapital Private - 1298 = KIERE S HMITR
Limibed
Aurlual Ty
1,844,321 unlts In HOFC Liquid Fuind - Diract Flar - Giowih y T.AG1.24 = TAGL2a 7,461,374
1,853 23 onits In 5351 Uguid Fund Direct Growth (%L kA &,100.55 - 6,100.55
213, M8 ynit= i Daroda Pioneer Liguid Fund - Flan B Growth 505, M4 505.24 2 505.24
L1666, LT wnls in BICT Prugienbal Liguid Fured Divect Plan Growth 50774 %07.74 507,94
Deht Instruments
%00 units of State Bank of Endla Serles - 1F non corveertisle debenhane 5IR.75 - - 52675 - 36,05
500 Compulseey corvartible debentures in Hash tlectrondcs India R2E.A7 HIG.AT 236.47
Privata Lialad of face walue Rs 00000 each
Cradit Subshilutes
477 tnlts of Panchsliaal Busiitach Privabe Limited of facn valie s TIULRS - .3 2B1.53 o JA15E
1,000,000 Tully prid up:
500 wrts of Radian® Polymirs Private Uimited of face vafus Rs 396.12 - 506,12 - 59617
100 00 ully paid ap
G2% unsis of Aahejs ieon Exdartasinment Prieate Dimded cof Tnce walue Fray - 1r49.08 252,00 A52.00
Rs 1,000,000 fully pald up
TOE ilints of Salia Fetata Divalispes Privata Uisdted of face value Rz FEEAd FARD ®i1.24 B11.24
100,000 fally paird wp
211 unlts af Fantary Bulldwed Frivaie Umied of face value Rs d|.821 o7 30.B8 30.84
1,000,000 fulky paiil in
Other instrurnents
Senumity raceipls i Alchemizg XY Trusd . 15451 . 1411 - 104.11
Uit o DI ARF Simdial Dppenli wa Sl - 11.0k 11.01 11.00
Total (4] Gross 2 A00.R0 15,10R.78 186003 10,076 70 f.04 A9003.64
Less: Impairrment loss allowance £03.36 192,86 545,57 57513
Total (4] Het 152363 15,105.78 1576.17 18,481.53 [T 1p 43252
{B)
liwsestments owtside Indlz 5 * Z 2 - =
Investments in indta 2100.89 15.106.78 1.863.03 19,076.70 5 15,083.64
Todal (5] Grass 2,100,839 1510678 186508 1907640 G5 1%,683.64
Lz Bnpalrmant loss allewance Az - 192 KR 505.12 E 89513
Total [B] Fct 1,698.63 15 405,75 1,676.17 1% £E1.58 .54 18,488.52
= 4% cont
Hodes:

i} Cruelit salititabes are part of francing acthitizs,
fil] Refer note 7.0 far mevement of ECL and gross canying amewsnl of (OO amE RODS.




Dl Finance Privabe imidtad
Motes Lo the Staivdalone Flisaiscial Statements far the year ended Mareh 31, 2021
{all Amount In Rs. In millflons, unless otherwise stated)

Anoetisad casl A% Faie value g fair value Subdotal by ® Tutal
fharcugh profit and through ather
A st Masch 31, 2020 s comgrehiEniive
income
LY o -
Equity instruments
Fnuaskniaeds i Sydaidiaries f Associales
Equity shares In kAl Marageismn] Sarvites Feiusts Dmdlal S - s e
Liguity shares in DR Alternzbues Frivate Limibsd - = I 4.5 4.35
Enily sharss in DA Capital Frivate Umiged - - - - X D93
OEers
Equitty sharzs bn D8E Conswmier Credit Private Linded - - 316 ERT - 1,16
Couily shares an MeNally Bhzrat Engineering Company Liniked 3 ] - 7.20 .20
Couily sharas o Flash Elecironics Private Limitad 3 5 P00 A0 H) I50.00
Eyusily sharas m Alchemizt fsset Beconslrucbon Company Lanilad IFAAN 236,30 . 226.200
Profarance shares
Invesimsents in Subsidiasics § Assaclates
Lompulsenly comvartisle praference sharez in ORI Capikal Frivate - 303.30 2 K 1% 3% ] & a0z.30
Lntizad
Mutoal linds
1,B63,020 urdts In HOFC Ugiekd Fand - Dirset Plan - Growth Opkion 7,301.53 . 7,3H.53 - 7,300.53
1%,00,348 units In 581 Uguid bund Direct Growth ERAAN ] 4,664.61 - A,664.61
156 unils o Baroda Pioneer Liguid Fund - Plan B Geoath N3k - 0aG (331
Dt ingbruments
7,300 Compaalsery corvertislz debenfures in Flash Clectromics indis - - kR 773.17 77347
Private LinsSed of Tacs vakae Be 0000000 fully pasd up
Credit Substitutes
AT ianls of Panchshee| Difdiech Privabe DHmited of face valie Bs ITAER - Bk IR0 - A0S0
1,000,000 ully padd up
S0 usmils of Radiant Pelymers Privata Limited of faze value Bs 24108 541,08 5a1.ca
1, ueo, 000 fully pedd ap
£2% units of Hahela leen Entzrtalnment Frivate Limited of face valus 166,53 S 17246 338,99 - EELR
P 3,000,000 Tully pald i
570 urats of Saba Catede Develaper Pricale Lmniiad of Tace wakie B I=Z 09 E=3.14 50423 £04.33
1,000,000 fully pard up
Oehar Insirymaants
Eacurtty recelpts in Alzheryist ¥ Trost . 18500 155.00 135.00
Units of 201 &1F Specal Gpportunities Scheme a0y 1050 - 141,80
Tolsd |A} - Gross T 1,333.92 11,472.00 1,682.91 15,482 £3 6.20 15,435.03
Lass: Impairsent foss allowance L0640 5455 200.35 = UMD
Tatal {a} et 1,227.52 Azareon 1,5088,36 15,2878 &1 15,9800
L]
irrezstments outside india = k: = 2 : =
svesimznls in indis Pt 1,333.02 11.472.00 16E2.91 15,488.33 [ i) 1545503
Talal {B) - Grass 133382 12.472.00 14E2.51 15,988.8% [%1] 15,4%5.03
Eese: Imgadmeznt boos 2losance 10690 - 55 J00.A5 200.84
Total {B) - Met 107,52 1347200 1.5ER.38 15,287.28 G20 1525408
* At cost
Mates:

1) Creda subsbtutes ave part al financing achvibos
lily R=fer note 7.1 Ta; enavemant of FCL and grass carrying amount of CODs and 805

)
FULRAL ;"’U I'E
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Dl Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
fall smount In Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

8 Other financial assets (at amortized cost)

0

B

s at
Mtarch 31, 2021

As at
parch 31, 2020

Security deposit 2117 FARLL
First Inss default guarantee recoverahlc 1,114.E3 44.51
Dthers LR SDU3H
Tatal 2,035.85 56613
Current tax assets
Advance Income-tax (net) 114.79 154,51
214.39 154.51
Doforred tax assets
Deferred tayx Habliivy
Falr value of financial Instruments A2.40 75.07
Difference in income recegnition on unrealized gain an mutual fund isvestments 49,48 16.75
Tobal deferred tax liabilities 152,28 91,82
Deferred tax asset
Prowision far employes banefits 14.78 oah
Difference in written down value as per Companies Act and Incorme-tax Act BdT 5.81
EIR adjustrment for processing fee WaE -
Listsility ngainst leases 7.d4d 186
Impairment loss allowanca BAD S0 366,51
Carry forward of intorost disallowed u.s 340 1567 25067
Gross deferred baw asset 125.57 411.60
Net Deferred Tax [Liabilityl) Asset 57329 319.78
Movement of deferred tax assets A% at Charged)) credited  (Charged)/fcredited s at
March 31, 2020 to statement of to other March 31, 2021
praofit and loss comprehensive
income
Liabilities
Fair velue of fingncial Instrumants Lo 6,67 106 R2.A0
Difference in income recognition on unrealized galn on mutual fund investments LTS 5273 - 59,48
Assels
Provision for employes benaofits 955 5.34 {0.51) 14,28
Gifference inwritten down vales as per Companies Act and Income tax Ack 5.91 0.56 - 6,47
Elf adjustment for processing foe - 30.81 - 3081
Linhility againat l=ases 3.6 3.48 - 7.44
Impainnant loss allowance 6651 274,39 ° RA0.90
Carry forward of interest disalinwed under seclion 948 5467 - - 25,67
Total (net] 319.78 255,15 (L.67) 573.24
Movement of deferred taw assets As at Charged)yf credited  [Charged]/credited Asat
march 31, 2019 o statcrment of to other March 31, 2020
prafit and loss camprehemnsive
income [ other
eguity
Lialsilitias
Interest component on CC0and COPS 54.58 - {54.58)
Fair value af financial instrumenls 118.94 [1%.87) 124,005 75.07
Diflarencs in income recognition on errcalized gain on mutual fund investiments 15,25 150 B 16.75
Aswets
-
Prowislon far employes benefits .52 353 050 8.55
Difference in written down vialue as per Companles Act and Income-fax Act 414 L7 591
Liability against leases 186 - 3.96
lmpairment loss allowance 194 86 17165 - G651
Carry forward of inlerest disallowed under sectlon 948 .68 [4.01} 3567
Trtal jmﬂ 45,43 19527 T0.0B 315,78
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Ml Finance Private Limted
Notes to the Standalone Finandal 3tatements for the Year endod March 31, 2021
[all Amount in Rs. Im miflons, unless otherwise stated)

12 Praperty, plant and equipment

Furniture and Catnputers Vehirles Offlce equipmant Lease hold Right-af-wsa asset Total

_fistures Irprovements R
Gross canrying antount
Balance as an April 1, 2019 1.59 1940 A2 15.06 1233 - 114.80
Re-classifcation adjustment inR2) [2.33) - iL&5% - - (30}
Addilions n.5a .72 = 15,64 68.0L 29151 38872
[ispozals - = [ 1 - - - [1.06]
Balance as at March 31, 2020 147 2879 536 31,39 141.24 203,01 502,16
&dditions D1l .52 = n4: 3 G S.40
lispasals - L - ¥ - 5 -+
Ralanca as at March 21, 2071 1LB8 3731 5.36 31,85 141.24 293.91 511,56
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2019 0.5% 1371 4.08 874 17.54 44,65
Re-classificatlon adjustrzent 0.03) [1.33] - 0.06 - {130
Charge far the year 0.13 T.4D nH 537 12.40 45,04 72.27
Diaposals B = R - - . L0}
Balance as ak March 31, 2020 0.9 19.78 3.79 15.1% 29494 45 34 111.63
Charge for the year o 176 048 7.23 1643 e TOL0T
Dispasals = : = - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 .51 27.54 427 22.42 4637 3.0 184.70
Met block
At March 31, 2020 1] o.0d 1.57 1620 111.30 24R8.67 4553
At March 31, 2021 098 9.77 108 344 a4.87 21071 136.86

13 Intanglble assats
Software Total

Gross carrying amount
Balance as at April 1, 2019 B.B3 B.63
Re-classlication adiustment Rl ]
Additlons B3 L]
Dispasals -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 15.66
Addelitions 2425
Dilsposals — ey
Balance a3 et March 31, 2021 18.91 39.591
Amortization
Balance as at April 1, 2019 268 LGE
Re-classifcation adjusiment 130 130
additians 413 4.13
Disposals - =
Balanco a5 at March 31, 2020 1L a1
Additions .00 .00
Dispasals - :
Balance a5 at March 31, 2021 17.11 17.11
met block
At March 31, 200 .55 7.55
At March 31, 2021 21.80 22,50
Muotes

i} There are no pending contractual commitmants to be execuled on capital acoount.
li} During the presious vear, some of the assets were rechassified as oflice equipment and intzngibia assets from furalture & ftures and compaters,
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DM Finance Private Limted

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{all Armount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

14 Other non- financial assets

15

1&

17

&

-

Capilal advance

Prepaid expenses

Balances with statutory f governmant authorities
Ceferred rent expenses

Other non-financial asseats

Total

Assets held for sale

Assats under settlement

A at Az at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

6,13 9.14

"I 4540

- 49.149

0.10 0.10

0,73 049

a4_66 104.32

189.85 18984

185.85 185,85

These assets represent assets acquired from the Company's borrowers s a part of Company's risk management strategy. in these cases, the Company
had entered into settlement agreemoent as o prudent mepsure by the management wherein Lthe borrower was approached and there was a mutuzl
consensis batween the Company and borrower to transfer the asset in the name of the Cormpany toeards settlement of the loan amaownt,

Trade payables

Tobal putslanding dues of Micro Enterprizes and Small Enterprisas * 110,75 F8,68
Total cutstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 154,55 161.37
Total 305.70 2:40.05
* Detalls of total outstanding dues of Micre Enterprises and Small Enterpriscs are as follows:

Particul Asat As at
i - Alarch 31, 2001 | March 31, 2020
The principal armount gnd the interest dye thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each R —_—

Accounting year. iy :

The amaunt of interest paid by the buyer in tarms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts

of the payment made to the supplier beyond the sppointed day during =ach accounting year.

Tha amaunt of interest due and payable for the pericd of delay in making payment {which have been paid but

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under tha MSMED Act,

A0,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining ungaid at the end of each accounting year. - -

The amcunt of further Interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years, until such dale when the

interest dues as above are actually paid Lo Lhe srmall enterprise for the purpose of disallowance a5 a deductible

exwpendiiure under sectian 13 of the MSMED Act, 2006,

Debt securities {at amortised cost)

Mon convertible debentures {refer note 17.1) 18,551.00 20,547.57

Optionally convertible debentures [refer note 17.2) - 2,2500.00)
18,551.69 12, 797.57

Sprired ** A%H.69 4,/84.57

Unsecured 18,053.00 18.,053.00

Total 18,551.69 23, 797.57

Deht secarities in india 18,551.69 2,757

Daht securities outside India - >

Total 18,551.69 22,797.57

Secured against exclesive floating charge by way of hypothecation of leans and recesvables of the Company of Be. 225 millions (previous year Rs. 7,620.21

rillians}.
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DM Finance Private Limted
Maotes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(&Il Amount In Rs. In milllons, unless otherwise stated)

18 Borrowings (other than debt securities) (at amaortised cost)

Az at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Securad®
Term loans

From banks 1,181.1%9 AHEARS
Liahilitias against leasad assets 2.y PRGEA5

1,423.43 3,001.28

Borrowings In indla 1,424,489 3,081.78
Borrowings outside India )
Total 3 1,423.48 3,091.28

*Secured agsinst exclusive flopting charge by way of hypothecation of lnans and recelvables of the Company to the extent of Rs. 2,337.07 millions
(Previous year: B, 4,651 98 milllons).

Terms of repayment of borrowings 25 on March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Lender Repaymeznt Rate of interest Securiby cover Outstanding a5 on | Dukstanding as on
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
HIFC Bank 16 quarterly HHS1 1370 | 131.04
instaliments
HOFC Bank 12 monthly »HY12% 133% - 18&.70
installimenis N
Kotzk Mahindra Bank 12 quarterly =512 133% £ 49 96
instaliments
Uniion Bank af Indla 14 quarterly e L 133% - 24835
Installments ol e
Unien Bank of india 14 guarterly =EM=12% 133% 7A7 A54.014
installments
AL Small Finance Bank 36 monthly =EHe12% 110% .52 162.22
installments
ALl Small Finance Bank 36 monthly »6M<12% 1105 - 191.21
installments
South Indian Bank 14 quarterly »hMh 1A% 133% 85,61 170154
Installments
Lakshmi Wilas Bank-ill 12 fquarterly =EM=e12% 133% = 166.02
installments
Bank of Barada-| 16 quarterly =6H=12% 135% 454,24 T37.9R
installments
Bank of Baroda-2 16 guarterly = 19 133% 457,05 =
_ installments
Hinduja Leyland Finange 36 manthly »B%12% 110% - A27.27
Inskallments
SIDE] Fmanthly 2B 12% 125% 20,00
Installments
Total 1,181.20 2,A24.83




DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

19 Other financial Nabilities

Interest accrzed but not due

- Debt securities

- Borrowings other than debt securities
Expenses payabla
Other financial liabities

20 Provisions
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensation absences

21 Other non-financial liabitilies
Statutory dues payable
Others*

Total

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

156.43 215.41
0.67 6.34
95.28 57.29
377.49 196,34
629.87 475.38
22,78 17.08
33.95 20.87
56.73 37.95
44.65 AN57
251.92 174.05
336.57 214.62

* Include processing fee refundable to channel partners, advance received from borrowers and amount collected from

borrowers as Debt service reserve account {DSRA),
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DI Finance Private Limited
Maotes ta the Standalone Financial Staternents for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amount Bn Rs. In milllans, unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares Amaunt Ma. of shares Amiount
Authorized share capital
Euqusity shiares of Rs. 10 each A6, 50,000,000 ,4650.00 Q6,50,00,000 9,650.00
Carnpulsorily corvertible preference shares of Ra. 10 earh 350,00 000 3500 1,540,080, 600 35000
1,00,00,00,000 161, 004 ) 1,00,00,00,000 10,004.00
Issued, subsoribed and paid up
Fully calted-up and paid-up
Eguity shares of [s. 10 each G, L35 533 6, 42036 G609 79,166 5 589,79
Sub tetal (8] 54,20,35 533 E,d420.36 55,089,79,166 5.589.79
Partly calted-up and pald-up
Equity shares of Ry, 10 mach 573,15 40 1622 e e 3.15
Sule total [B) 5. 7315 40 16.22 5,73,15,400 3.15
Total [a+8) #3,93,50,933 643658 61,62,54,566 5,592.09

The reconclliation of equity shares outstanding at the bepinning and at the end of the reporting year

Balance at the heginning of yrar 61,6274, 566 550204 Sa050 80y 5,203.58
Shares ssued during the vear 8,30,56,367 R357 7.52,79,465 1R2.79
Shares imswed pursant bo converdion of compulsanily convertilds prelesisnce - 2,00, 56,804 HHLE Y
shares

First call rromey called on parky paid wpe shares 13.407 - "
Balanca at tha end of yaar B%,53,50,933 6,436.58 &1,62,94, 504 5.592.94

Ehares held by holding Campany

As at March 31, 2021 A= at March 31, 2020
No. of shares % helding No, of shares % holding
DRI Lirited 51,9883 B03 T4.54% 431 80 356027 F1LER
51,98,80,603 T4.34% 43, 85,39, 423 LI

fa per records of the Company, Including its realster of sharehobders! members and other decdarations received fraim sharehalders regarding beneficial interest, the abowr
sharsholding répresents both legal and beneficial awnerships of shares.

Details of sharehalders holding more than 5% shares in the Companmy

Mame of the shareholder " hsatMarch 31,2001 A3 at March 31, 2020

M. of shares % holding Mo, of shares % holding
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up
DAl Limnited 519880603 #.34% 13,85,39,922 T1.23%
M5 Ganesha S.A. 6,47 35,441 9.26% 6,47,35,441 10L50%
®IWVZ (refer || balow] 5. 7315400 R.20% 5,73,15,400 9.30%

Maoke; As por records of the Company, induding ils regisler of shareholdarsf members and other declarations recetved from shareholders regarding beneficlal interess, the
ahowe sharchalding represents hoth legal and benelicial ownerships of shares.

Dupring the presioas year, 57,315,400 eguily shares of Re. 10 each issued on parthe-pald up basis where subscription amount being receied on allotrpent was ks, 32,01
millians a5 paid up valee of Rs. 056 per share inelusive of premiem of Rs, 0.51 per share calculated proportionatefy. Further during the current year, the Beard of Directors
of the Company rmade the first coll of Bs. 232 per egquily shares (including Rs. 2.09 per share on account of security premium) on 57,315,900 partly pald eguity shares.
Accordingly, the Compary recerved an amaunting to Bs. 133,13 rmillicn.

puring the current year, the Company has issued £3,056,267 equily shares compaising of 80,999,681 of Rs. 10 per share at s, 116.36 per share [including premium of As,
106,36 per share) and 3, 106,B86 couity shares of Bs, 10 per share al Rs. 113,34 per share {including Rs. 103.34 ger share). The amount recefved on these ksues agoregates
L s, Lo s, 9,65E.08 million.

The Company had zseed 3,7783,195 Compulsorily Convertible Frofeeence Shares ["CCFSY) namaly Series B, Series O, Series D, Sevies E, Series F and Series G to dilferent
haliders from Lirse bo me. A5 per the terms of lssue of COPS, the COPS were converted into 2,00, 56,8004 crdinary equity shares of the Company an Movembies &, 20489,

Rights, praferances and restrictions
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs10 per share, Cach holder of equily shase is entitled bo one vote per share. The dividend proposed

by the Board of Directors ks sulject to the approval af the shareholdess in the snsuing Annusl General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the halder of
sguily shares will be entitled 1o recelva remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all peeferential armaants. The distribution will Be i praportan e e number
af the equily shares held by the sharehobders.

Aggregate nurber of sharaes issued for consideration other than cash during the five years
The Company has nat issued any shares purseant Lo a contrack withaut payrnent being receieed in cash nor allotted as fully rJald up by the way of kanus shares and there

has not heen any by back of shares in the current period and the immediately preceding four years.




23 Other equity

Securities premium

DMl Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All Amount in Rs. In milllons, unless otherwise stated)

Capital redemplion reserve
Statutory resenve ufs 45-1C al RBI Acl
Share option outstanding account

Retlained earnings
Total

Securlty premium

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

23,495,145 14,517.77
B1.71 8121
a77.46 932084
140.95 66.58
3,722.35 3,538.01
28,417.32 19,167.31

Securities premium represents premium recelved on issue of shares. The amount s utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act 2013

Capital redemption reserve
The same had been created in accordance with provisions of the Campanies Act 2013 on buy back of shares

Statutory reserve u/fs 45-1C of RBI Act
The reserve Is ereated as per the provision of Section 45 (IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, This is a restricted reserve and no appropriation

¢an be made from thiz reserve fund except for the purpose as may be prescribed by Reserve Bank of India.

Share eptlon outstanding account
The reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the options issued to employees of the Company and subsidiary companies under Company’s

employves stock option plan.

[This space has been intentionally l=ft hlank)
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DM Finance Private Limited
Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(all Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Interest income

Year ended March 31, 2021

Year ended March 31, 2020

On financial assats
measured at
Amortised cost

On financial assets
measured at falr
value through OCI

On financial assets

measured at
Amaortised cost

On financlal assets
measured at fair
value through QCI

Interest an portfollo lnans £,394.70 12.35 5, 776.94 6547
Interest on investments 2B6.79 175,86 18257 155,58
Interest on deposits 34.94 = 5.49 -
6,716.43 194.21 5,916.00 162.05
Taotal Interest income 6,910.64 6,078.05
Fees and commission income Year ended Year ended

Commission on card reload
Cthers

Met gain on falr value changes

Met gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss
Ivestments

Analysis of falr value changes
Realized

Unrealised

Total

Other income

Cost sharing from group companies
Miscellaneous income
Total

Finance costs
Interest
- on non convartible debentures
- on bank term loan
- on bank cash credit
- on delayed deposit of statutory ducs
- on leasing arrangements
Other borrowing cosls
Total

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

18.48 45,28
20.31 6.75
38.79 52.03

591,04 22577
591.04 225.77
35503 202.87
23R.01 22.90
591.04 225.77
104.04 90.27

: 0.0
104,04 90.29
1,6599.45 952,03
14175 396,28
0.32 10.42
081 0.20
7454 20.86
£3.07 75.21
1,929.94 1,455.00




DI Finance Private Limited
MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All Amount in Rs, In millions, unless otherwise stated)

29 Fees and commission expense Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Selling parlner commission 90363 243,03
.. a03.63 B43.03
30 Impairment on financial instruments _;Eﬂ-r ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020

On financial On financial 0 financkal On financial

instruments instruments Instruments instruments

measured at falr measured at measured at fair measured at

value through Other  Amortised cost  wvalue through Other  Amortised cost
Comprehensive Comprehenslve
Income Income
Loans 0.75 B51,95 1.65 77e.71
Investments 92,31 29586 71.72 48,48
Write offs - 1,801.87 - 631,58
Total 99.06 2,749.68 73.37 1,459.77
2.848.74 1,533.14

31 Employee benefits expense

Lalarles, wages and bonus 574.90 493,27
Contribution to provident and other funds 79.95 24,14
Share based payment to employees 7578 40.90
Staff welfare expenses 18.26 15.04
Total £98.99 573.35

32 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment 70.07 72.27
amortisation of Intangible assets 9.00 4.13
79.07 76.40

33 Other expenses

Advertisement expenses 18.87 13.30
Legal and professional fees 35328 163.47
Travelling and conveyance axpenses 4.40 2857
Auditor's remuneration (refer note 33,1} 4.04 3.78
IT expenses 145.65 5ROo1
Rates and taxes 1.55 246
Rent 12.65 8.51
Director's sitting fee 0.56 0.16
Corporate social responsibility [refer note 33.3) 2362 21.30
Repair and maintenance 7.30 12.29
Insurance expense .10 004
Credit evaluation fee 116.07 315.49
Credit rating fee 2.05 5.10
Customer onboarding cxpenses .28 12.88
Miscellaneous expenses 179.90 221.27

Total B72.12 621.53
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DMI Finance Private Limited
MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In millians, unless otherwise stated)

Auditor's remuneration {excluding applicable taxes)
- a5 auditors

- far tax services
- for other services

Corporate soclal responsibility [CSR)

Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
3.05 2.85
.03 0.29
0.95 0.84
4.04 3.78

In respect of Carporate Social Responsibility activities, gross amount required to be spent by the Compzny during the year was Rs, 23.62
millions in FY 2020-21 [Previous Year Rs. 21.30 millions} and Company has spent Rs. 23.62 millions in FY 2020-21 (Previous Year Rs. 21.30

millllons).

For the year ended March 31, 2021 Amount spent Amount unpaid Total
Constructionfacquisition of any asset = T
On purpose other than above 23.62 - 23.63
For the year ended March 31, 2020 Amount spent Amgunt unpaid Total
Construction/acquisition of any asset - 5
Cn purpese other than above 21.30 - 21.30

Earning per share (EPS)

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders

Met profit for the year for basic EPS
Dilutive impact of convertible Instruments
Met profit for the year for dilutive EPS

MNominal value of equity shares {In Rs.)

Welghted-average number of equity shares for basis EPS
Effect of dilution

Convertible instruments

Weighted-average number of equity shares for dilutive EP5

Baslc EPS
Dilutive EPS

Year ended March  Year ended March
31, 2021 31, 2020
223.08 950.89
223.08 990,89
223.08 990,49
10,00 10.00
£3,55,56,623 55,60,99,064
28,00,936 23,00,936
69,64,77 457 55,89,00,000
0.35 1.78
0.32 1.7




Drl Finance Private Limited
Motes to Standalone Financlal Staternents for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs., In millions, unless otherwise stated)

35 Retlrement benefit plan

Defined contribution plan
& defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions; there iz no legal or constructive obligation ta pay further
contributlons. The azsets of the plas are beld separately from those of the Company in a fund under the control of Lrustees.

The total expense charged to incoma during the current year B, 818 millions {previous year: Rs. 6.69 millions) represents contributions payabile to e
plans by thie Company ok rates specificd in the rules of the plan,

Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defined benafit gratulty plan. feery employes whio has cormpleted five years or more of service gets a gratulty on departure at 15 days
salary {last drzwn salary) for each completad year of service. The scheme is unfunded.

Frovision for enfunded Gratuity for 2ll employees is Dased wpon acluanal valuations carried cut at the end of every financial year, Major drivers in
actuarial assumptions, typically, are years of service and employea compenzatlon. Pursuant 1o the issuance of the Indian Accounting Standard (Indas) 19
on 'Employee Benclils’, commilmenls are actuarially detcrmined using the Projected Unit Credit' Method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial
assumptions are accounted for Inthe "Other comprebensive Income™,

The following tables summarisa the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounes
recognisad in the balance sheat for the respective plans:

Changes in the defined benefit obligation: As at a5 at
Margh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Halance at the beglnning of the year 17.08 825
Current service cost B84 G619
Interest cost 1.15 .64
Remeasurement [gain} /loss [2.44] 2.00
Balance at the end of the year 22.78 17.08
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and lass is as under: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current service cost G529 6.10
Interest cost on defined beneflt obligation A% 0.G4
Met Impact on profit before tax H.14 6.E3
Amount recognised in the other comprebenzive income: Year ended March  Year ended March
31, 2021 31, 2020
Return on plan assels [excluding amounts includad in net interesl expense) -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demoaraphic assumplions [0.01)
Actuarial changes arslng fram changes in financial assumptions - 212
Experence adjustments [2.44} .11}
Impact on other comprehensive lncome {2.44] 00

The principal assumptions used in delermining gratulty and post-amployment benelit obligations for the company’s plans are shown below:

Economic assurnptions

Year ended
farch 31, 2021

Year ended
MWarch 31, 2020

Dizcount rale G.76% BB
Futwre salany increazes 6,005 E.00%

Demographic assumptions
G0 o]

Retlrement age
Martality rates inclusive of provision for disablity

100% oof LALR (2017 100% of La8ra {2013-

14} 14)
Attrition at ses dwithdrawal rate)
(i1 wpte 30 years RIS 3.00%
(I} Fram 31 to A4 years 2.00% 2.00%
[iii) Abowve 44 yaars 1.00% 1.000%

Mote: The discount rale is generally based wpon the markel yields avallable on Governmant bonds at the sccounting dale relevant to currency of henefit
payments for a term that matches the liabilitics, Salary growth rate is Company's long Lerm best estimate as to salary increases and tekes account of
inflation, seniority, promoticn, busisess plan, HA policy and other relevant factors on long term basis as provided in relevint agcounting standand.




DI Finance Private Limited

Maotes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Sensitivity analysis for gratulty lizbility

Impact of the change in discount rate
Impact due toineresse of 0.50 %
Impact dus fo decrease of 0,50 %

Impact of the change in salary increase
Bmpact due Lo increase of 0050 %
Impact due to decizase of 0,50 %

The follawing is the maturity profila of gratuity:

Expected payment for fulure years

Oto I year

1to2 year

2 o3 year

Frodyear

4 to 5 year

5 to & year

&th year omwards

Total expacted payments

Year ended

__ March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

[1.73) {1.33)

1491 147

1.82 144
(1.75] {1.34)

As et Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

0.23 .16

0.36 .14

0,36 0.4

0.534 0.2

040 030

0,343 (.29

20006 15.56
1278 17.08

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit abligation as at 31 March 2071 & 20027 years {2020 is 20.35 years)
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DI Finance Private Limited

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{all Amount In Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

37 Disclosures in respect of Related Parties as per Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS] — 24 'Related Party Disclosures

{a) List of related parties

Holding company
O Limited

Subsidiaries

Ol Management Sarvices Private Limited

A1 Capital Private Limitad

Associate
Dl &lternatives Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries
DMI Consurner Cradit Private Limited
M1 Housing Finance Privatz Limited

Key managarial personnel (KMP)

Name

Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh
Mr. Shivashizh Chatterjee
Mirs. Bina Singh

Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee
br. Gurcharan Das

Mir. Gaurav Burman

M. Tamer Amr

Iir. Nipender Kochhar
r. latinder Bhasin

Mr. Krishan Gopal

Mr. Sahil Palwa

Relathres of KP
Mrs. hallika Singh
Ms. Pramita Chatter|es

Designation

Joint Minaging Director
Jnint Managing Direchor
Director

Director

Dirsckor

Direckor

Direckor

[reclior

Chief Financial CfTices {uplo 17 March 2021}

Chief Financial Offices fwoe . 18 March 2021)

Carnpany Secratary

Enterprises over which key management personnel and relatives of such personnel exercise significant influence with whom transactions have been

undertaken:
K2WEZ, Partnership Firm
M Alternative Investment Fund

{b) Significant transactions with related parties:

MName of related party

Mature of transaction

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
mMarch 31, 2020

oraAl Howsleg Finance Private Limited

il Menagement services Privale Limited

DRI Capital Private Limited

Gl Alrernative vestrmant Fund

DMl Alfernathves Frivate Limibed

Cost share recnvery

Share bazed payment

Intarest on loan

Repaymant of loan
Reimbursernent of cxpense paid by
related party on behalf of entity

Cost share reoovery
Repayment of advance

Cost share recovery

Repayment of loan
Interest RXpENEES

Cost share recovery
Share based payment

Ty
g e
s ¢ “‘1&-_,
N g
= =
& #*
o 5
e

0,18
218
078
FH0.00

0.06

60D

BOLCO
375

3346
0.74

fid,44
3.492

008

0.06
17.45

25.17
1.55
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Name of related party Mature of transaction Far the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ek Limited Transfer of Compulsory Convertible - 217
Dirbentures
Isauge of cuily shares 2,414,381 1,714,632
M. Sahib Pabig Loan f advance gheen .48 057
Interast income 105 0.0
Remuneration 4.1z 4.08
Loan received back 000 0.08
W75, Bna Singh Transfer of Compulsory Convertible - 217
Mebenlisnes
Sitting fes 0.10 0.06
M, Yueraja Chanakya Singh Remunaration 5710 57.54
Post employment bonefils 0.26 036
lssue of equily shares 118,39 -
hdr. Shivashish Chatterjee Remuneration 5638 ShATH
Past employment benefits 0.36 .36
lzsue of equity shares 119,38 -
Mrs. fayati Chatlerjee Sitting fees 018 0.16
Mr. Gurcharan Das Sitting tees 0,10 .06
Mr. Nipender Kochhar Sitting fees 14 .1A
mr. Jatirder Bhasin Remuneralion 1092 1258
har, Krishan Gopal leemuneration 067
K22 Issue of equity shares 133.13 32.11
{c) Outstanding balances with related partles:
Mame of related party Mature of transaction As at As ot
. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Mr. Sahib Palvwa Loan recehahle 48 .57
DMI Heuskng Finance Private Limited Loan payable - F00.00
Ol Altermative Investment Fund Loan payable - 200,00
Ol Albernatives Private Limited ESOP 4,89 4.15

Othars

During the Year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has bought back certaln non convertible debentures from Mr, Suhib Pabwa for consideration of Rz

.64 millions [previous year: #il)

During the Year ended March 31, 2021, the Compary has bought back certain non convertible debentures Trom D8I Hewsing Finance Private Limited for

ronsideration of &3 126,48 millions {previcus year: Ml
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38 Impact of COVID 19 pandemic
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40

Tha COVID-19 pandemic bas conlinued to cause & significant disruptian of the cconomic sctivities across the glabe including India throughout the year,
with second wave of the pandemic emerging lowards Uhe later part of the financial year in tndia, The Government of India annnunced a mation-wide
lvckdown to contain the spread of the virus which continued tH May 31, 2020, Subsequently, various state governments and local statutary autharities
Imposed restriclions on economic activities in differant parts of the country which continued to impact Company's operalions including lending and
collection activities. Further, pursuant to the Reserve Bank of Indiz (‘REI'| COVID-19 Regulalory packege issued vide ciroulars dated March 27, 2020 and
May 23, 2020 which allowed lending Institutions 1o offer moralerium to borrowers on payment of instalments Talling due batwaen March 1, 2020 and
Appust 31, 2020, and consequently the Company had nffered a moratarivm Lo ils eligible borrowers untll August 31, 2020,

In assessing thi impairment allowsnce for boan porttolio, the Company has considered internal and extarnal sources of Infarmation availsble including
Indicators of deterioration in the macro-econumic faclurs. Further, the management has eslimated the impact of the ongoing second wanee of the
pandemic on Its loan portfollo, based on reasonable and supportabie information available 1l date and considering performance after the first wave,
and has noted that the existing provisioning levels are adequate tn cover any further delinguencies. Given the inigue nature and scale of this
pahdernic, its fufl extent of impact on the Company's operations and financial metrles, more specificalty on the borrower's aldlity Lo service their
obllgations on & timely basis, will depend on e severity and duration of the pandemic as well as nn highly uncerdain fukure devalopments Including
governmental and regulatory measures and the Company’s responses therslo, Accondingly, the mansgement’s estimate of impairment losses based on
various varizbles and sssumptions could result in actual credit loss being difterant than that belng estirmaled,

The Comparny has assessed the mpact of the pandermic on 1ts Hguidity and ability 1o repay its obligations as and whan they are due. The Company has
consldered lts current liquidity position, expacted inflows from various sources of borrowings and stimulus packapes announced by the Government of
Indiz. Based on the foregoing, manzgement believes that the Company will be able to pay its abligations as and when these become due in the
foreseeable fulure. The impact of Uhe pandermic on the cperations of e Company is significantly dependent on uncertzin future aconomic conditicns.

In accordance with the CoVID-19 Regulatory Packages announced by RBI on March 27, 2020, Aprell 17, 2020 and May 23, 2000, the Company bas
offered moratorium on the payment of instalments andfor inlerest, as applicable, falling due betwesn March 01, 2020 and Sugust 31, 2020 to eligibls
borrowers. For such accounts thal were grapled moratorium, the prodential assets classiflication remained stands Ul during the moratorium period
fi.e., the number of days past due excluded the moratorivm period for the purposes of asset classitication under income Recognition, Assel

Classification and Provisioning Morms}.

Further, on August 6, 2020, the Reserve Bank of India announced Resolution Framowork for Covid related stress for personal loans, other aligibla
exposuras and MEME: (Resclution Framework L0) aod further on May 5, 2021, Resolutbon Framework 200 was anrocneed by B On the basis of
eligibility criteriz defined by RBI in Besolution Framework 1.0 and 2.0, the company gave the benefit of restructuring the loan account to borrowsars

with total loan oulstanding ameunting to Rs 2,778.92 Millions,

Interest on inlerest
In accordapce with notfication no. BBIS2021-22/17 DORSTRREC. 4027 .00, 088 202 1-22 dated April 7, 2021 issued by the REI, all lending Institutions

shall refund/zdiust ‘interest on interest’ Lo all borrowers Including these who had avaited working capital facilities during the morstorium period,
irrespactive of whether moratordum had heen fulky or partially availed, or not availed, Pursuant to these instructions, the Indian Banks Asseciation {IBA)
in consultation with other Industry participants/bodics published the methodelogy for calcufation of the amount of such ‘interest on interest’.
Accordingly, the Company has estimated the said amount and mada provision for refundfadjustment in these standabone financial stalements,

[wring the currant vear, in compliance with Schemie for grant of ex-gratia payment of difference between compound inlerest and simple inferest for i
rnanths to borrowers in specified loan accounts (March 1, 2020 to Augut 31, 2020), the Company granted the benefir amounting to Rs. 9947 millions

to its borrowers,
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41 Capital

a3

The Company actively manages ils capilal Base Lo cover risk inherent toits business zad meets the capital adequacy requerements of the regulatar, Reserve Bank of India
{7

{i] Capital management:

Objective

The: Comgasny's objective s to maintaln appropriate levels of capital to sugport it business stratemy taking inte account the regofatory, eoonamic and commercial
enviranment, The Company alms 10 malntain a stroag capilal base to support the risks inhereat 1o fts business and its growth strategy, The Company endeavars to maintain a
higher capital base than the mandated regulatary capital at @il birmes.

Planning

The Company’s assessment of capltal requirement is aligned Lo s planned growth which forms part of an annual eperating plan which is approved by the Board 204 also a
long range strategy. These grawth plans are aligned o assessment of risks: which incloda credit, Bauidity and interst be,

The Company endeavors Lo mainkain ils Capital Risk Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) higher than the mandated regulatory nomm. Accordingly, increase In cagital is planned wel in
advance to ensure adequate funding forits grovd b,

{ii] Regulatory capital

As at March 31 2021 Ac at March 31,2020
Tier 1 CRAR 59.03% 43.31%
Tier 2 CHAR 1.17% 0694
Tatal CRAR _— G020 A4.00%

In case of un-disbursed loan fadlity, the Company has sole and absolule discration to allow ar rejoct any further drawdown requesl. Hence, wndrawn cammitment for the
Company are aimaunting Lo Nil.

The CRAA Is compated as per the Master Direction - Non Banking Financlal Company - Systermatically lnportant. Non-Oreposit takang Company and Deposil Laking Corngsany
{Reserve Bank] Directlons, 2016 read with the circular lssued by Reserve Bank of India on March 13, 2030,

In arder Lo schigve this overall ohjective, Uhe Company’s capilal managemeanl, smnongsl nther things, 2ims to cosure that it meets financial covenants allached to the interest
bearing lpans and bosrowings. Breaches in mesting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings.

Mo changes were made in the abjectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

Contingsnt liabifities and cammitments

Cantingent lkabikitles

The Company has given corporate gearantees 1o banks againsl dilferent facilities Lo ils fellow subsidiary DML Housing Finance Frivate limited of As, 4,449, 17 millons as at
idarch 31, 2021 [March 31, 2000: Rs. 5,474, 59 millions},

Muring the year, the Company has received an assessrmenl order for FY 2016-17 wharely the assessing officer has made an addition for an amount of B5.6.42 millions an
acpount of dispilowance of deduction under section BOG al the Income-tay Ack, 1961, The Comaany has aggealad before Comimizsioner of Incuwne Taw-Appeal (CITEA)) against
the arder, This disallowance has resulted into an additional dermand of T, 2,26 million but the Company has already paid the Lages mare than by R 2.31 million therefore,
the Company |5 not required to pay any additional demand. In presence of Tavorable case laws and judicial precedents whergin sirmilar Tacls hive been addressed, the
Company expects that the additional demand witl be doloted by CIT (&)

Commitments
In case of un-disbursed loan facility, the Company has sale and ehsolule discretion Lo allow or reject any further drawdown request. Hence, undrawn commitment for the

Cosnpany ae amaunting to Ml

Recondillation of liahilities arising from financing activities

Particulars Debt securltles Barrowings ather than  Liability against leased Total
debt securithes EL

April 1, 2019 5,782.28 #,138.85 s B021.14
Adontion of Ind AS 116 . = 20391 43.91
Cash flows: -

- Repaymaent 14, 300.00) 12,314.54) (54.80) {E.BRIL 34}

- Proceeds 251,303.00 Qg0 2228300
Man-gash

- Deferrement S amorttsation of upfront fees and other charges 12.29 FLR 280

- Cthers 2734 24,38
Mlarch 31, 2020 - IZ_LH?.E? 2E24,83 645 15,8-‘!3.35_
Cash flows: .

- Regrayinent {4, 750,00} {2,355 33} (5518} (7.160.51)

- Procecds SO0 FOLON = 1,200.00
Man-cash

- Deferrement f amortisation of upfronl fess and other changes &1 11.69 - 15,581

- Others - - 3.0 31.02

March 31, 2021 I8,551.69 118118 242,29 19,975,1%
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Loasas

The Comaany has lease conlracts fur oflice snd residential spaces taken on leasa, The lease terms are betwesn 1 fa 10 years,

The Company also las cerlain lease with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Comaany applies the ‘sharl-leem lease” recognition exemptions for these leases.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recopnized and Hhe moverments during the period are ag follows:
Farticulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balanecs i Lhe teginning of the year 248.67 3
Additions made during the year - 29351
Depreciation change lue the yea 3498 15.24
\Balznce a1 the ond of the year 210.71 M4E.6T
The carrying @irumads of lease Eahilities and the movements during the period are as follows:
Farthoulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 26645 Z
Additions made during the year - 35181
Interest accretion fod the year o2 FRAL]
Paymants made dering the year {54.18] (54.80)
Balance at the end of the year 242.29 ik, A% l
The effective interesl rate for leade labililies iz 209, with raturily ranging o 2027-28.
The following ara the amounts recagnized in profit and loss

March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Depreciation expensa in respect of right-of-use asset 37.96 4504
Interest expense In respect of lease liabalithas 24.54 20,86
Exprnse relati short-terim beades lincluded on obhes sspengas) 12,65 B.51
Total armpunt recognksed In prefit or loss 75,15 T4.61

The Cuemipany’s tatal cash cutflows far leases was Rs 48,70 Millions during year (previows year Ks 59,50 Millions)
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A5 Tax expenses
Thie major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2081 and March 23, 2020 @ne ;

Year ended Year ended
_ March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current tax 344.13 548.07
Dreterrad tax cradit (255,13} {195.27)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 35,94 352.80

The major companents of Lax expense and its reconciliation 1o expecled tax expense based on the enacted tax rete applicable to the Company s 25, 168%
[Marchidl, 2020 25 168%) and the reported tax expense In statermeant of profit and loss are s Tollows;

Year ended Year endad
__March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Profit before tax 3202 1,343 R4
Income-tay rate A5 16R% 25, 1RH%
Expected tax expense 78.53 338.13
Expenditure disallowed 465,26 BG.32

Incame nat sublect to tax 017 [78.71)
Deductions 1458.23) 5.7

Shart term capital gain ) = 1.28

Tau for earlier years 3.21

Tax expense B8.94 352,80
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Maturity analysis of azsets and liabilities:

DIl Finance Private Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

A5 ot March 31, 2021

As ok March 31, 2020

Particulars Within 12 | After 12 months Total Within12 | After 12 months Total
months manths

ASSETS _'

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents FATRIR 2476.26 1,14900.69 1,190.89

Bank balance other than cash and cash 2RI 267.11 1520 15.20

equivalents

Trade receivables 464 - 54,64 33.65 5 33.55

Loans 16,971.51 14,442.00 31,413.61 1E,347.05 15,006.46 3,535

Investments 15,510.25 297227 18,448.52 14, IER.GE 3,008.40 15,2908

Other financial assets 2,015,589 0.26 2,035.85 54411 0.3z L6523

Mon- financal assets

Currant tax assets {net) 214.39 - 214.39 154,51 - 154.51

Deferred tax assets (net) - £73.29 573.29 - 315,78 319.78

Property, plant and equipment 46.26 28060 326.86 3426 351,27 3g7.53

Intangikle asscls - 22.80 22.80 - 755 7.55

Other nen- linancial assels 9460 a4.66 104.32 104,32

Assets held for sale 1E9.KEY = 1E9.B5 189.85 18085
_‘33,8.45.?2 18,311.22 5&%5_?._94 32 901.32 1E,715.7H 51,617.10

LIABILITIES AND EQLITY

LIABILITIES

Flnanclal llabilitles

Trade payables

(i} total cutstanding dues of micro enlerprises 110,75 110,75 TE.GE 78,68

gnd small enterprises

(i} total outstanding dues of creditors other 194,85 194,85 161,37 161.37

than micre enterprises and stmall enterprises

Dbl securitiog - 18,551.649 18,551.69 4,744,57 18,053.00 22,797.57

Rorrowings (other than dabt securities) GOz B23.20 1,423.48 1,473,406 1E1T.R? 308178

rther financial liabilities G79.87 - G29.87 475 38 - 475 58

Won financial liabilitics

Frovisions L6773 - 56,73 37.85 i7.05

Other noadlinancial labitilies 33657 - 336,57 214.62 214.62

Equity

Eqpulty share capltal 0,436,508 6,436.58 - 550294 5,592,594

(ther equity B 417,32 28,417.32 - 19,167.31 19,167.31

1,920.00 54,228.85 56,157,594 7,186.03 44,431.07 51,617.10
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A7 Disclosure of expedcted credit Inss and provisions required as per Income Recognition and Asset Classification norms;

Ag

a9

Amaunt in Bs. crares

Asset Classification as per REI Norms szt Gross Carrylng Amount Luss Allowances T Met Carrying Provisions Difference
dassification as as per bnd A% [Provisicns) as Amount required as per | between lnd A5
per g A5 102 required under Ind A5 IRACP norms 10% provisions

109 aimdd IRACP norms
i) ) 3 41 e il (7)= (4-i6)
Parforming Assets
Standard Stage 1 332865 140,58 318807 A7l FO.E7
= Slage 2 _1&7.44 32.41 130.03 0.k 21.67
Subtatal 3,481.10 172,99 3,318.10 _ Blas 171.54
Han-Performing Assets [MPA)
Substandard Stage 3 109 1.0 - [T ] 100
Dagubtlul - vp ta 1 year stagn 3 T9.75 312 41,53 15.55 2157
110 3 years Stage 3 44,35 40,65 ain 1312 2753
Migre Lhan 3 years Stage 3 1718 851 B.2% 171 iz0
Subtotal for doubtiul 141,20 B7.68 5358 36,30 5130 |
Loss Stage 3 & -
Subtotal far NP 142.35 8B77|  cagn 3647 52.30
‘Onher items such 25 guarantees, Ioan Stage 1 - - -
commitrrents, ete. which sre in the scope of Ind
A% 109 bt naot covered under current Income Slage 2 o = = -
Recogrition, Asset Classification and Prowisioning 1,
p Slzge 3 - - - -
(IRACP) nurms -
fubtotal TU. = __: = = # 7 = B
Stape 1 1,328.65 140.58 188007 Ai,71 9,87
Tatal Stape 2 162.44 3241 130003 1074 ZL&T
Slage 3 142,35 BEIT 53.58 | 6.47 G230
Tatal 3,633.04 75176 3,37L58 | 87.02 17384
Disclosurgs pursuant to KBl Motiflcation - REIS201%-20/220 DORNe.BP.BC.E3/21.00.048/ 201 9-20 dated 17 April 2020
|2} ShdA overdue categaries, where the mosstorium,/deferment was extended
e Armount in Rs. crores
[Particulars e As At
N - Ndarch 31, 2021 | hdarch 31, 2000
Aespeclive amaunts in ShAfoverdue cateporles, whers the maratzrium,'deferment was extended, in terms of paragraph 2 and 1 of the| 166,249 0875
clrewtar
Respective arnount whers asset dassilication benelil is extended o 122.44
Prostsions made in tarms of paragraph 5 of the circular (a3 per Fara 4, applicable to entities covered under Ind &%) (as of 21 March 20217 5103 1550
31 March 2020)
Provislons adlusted againgt sliprages in tarms of paragraph 6 of the cireular -
Restdual provisions 25 of 31 March 20237 31 March 2020 in berms of parsgraph 6 of the Onoular 5103 15,84

(k] Asset classification benelit extension

Axzet classification bepslit has pet beon glven to any account as 21 32 March 2021 (peevious vear Benedit was extended to 7,200 accmmts having tatal autstanding of ks, 127.44

Crare).

Segmient infanmatlon

Tha Company operatas in 3 single reporlable sepreent L2, financing which has simifar risks and returns lor the pusposs of Ind A5 108 "Dgerating segmants” bs cansidered to ke
the anly reportaide busirass segment. The Company derves its major revenuss from firancing sctivithes and 18 custormars are wedespread. Further, the Lampany operates anly in

India which Is considerad as a single geagraphical s=gment.
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Risk managenent

Introductiam and risk profile

T Canpany i o private finance company in india and s regulated by the Resarve Bank OF India (RBY), In wiew of the intrinsic natura af operatiaes, the Company is exposed toa varkty of
rizhs, wihich tas b broadly dassified 25 Bouidity risk, credit ik, interast rate dsk and equity priss risk, 1L s also subject to variaos ragulatary risks.

Risk management struture and polislos

iz 3 lerding instiution, Compary B expaied fo wericus risks that are related to lending business and aperaticg srdronment. The Prinopael Obgsctive iy Compasy % 17k menapement
processes s to meazure and mordtor the vasioiis tisks thel Compeny is subject 1o and ta folflow policles and procadunes 1o address such risks. Company 's risk managoiment Toamewark iy
triven by Board 2nd its subcammitbees Inciuding tha Audit Cormmities, the 8asel Lisbility Manzgement Comnattes and Risk Managemen] Camenitbes. Company ghees dus Importans b
peuden fending practices and hawe implerented suftalsi maasise far risk mitigation, which inciude verilication of credit Bistary from cedit infarmation buresus, personal verfization of a
wistomer's business and residence, technicad ard legad verlfications, conserative laen tavalus,

Ligguldity righ

Lizpaiddily vk i Lhe potentil for lass to an mstitution srsing frosn @ithar s inabilny te meet it obligstions or to fund ngreases in assets as they Tall s witheul incurieg unacceptable cost
ar bagses,

Thie Counpany mareges liguidity risk by measuning 2nd managing net funding requiraiments asing o matuity f2dder and @bculatian of canvalstie sarplis ar defisit of funds st solocted
roalurily dales which hes been adopted 25 2 standard tool The Company's Assets-Lisbily Corinitias (ALCD] % sespoasible for determireng the aparepeiate i ol availshle Tunding sources
utilizes! 1o enivre Compary liquidity is mansged prudzntly and aporcprately. With regard bo the procass of liguidity manapement, ALCO also considers the cursest acaimsmin ard markst
arnfrpniveal, near-lerm lnan growth projections and lorg-term stratogic business deosdans,

Tha tabsle belaw cummarises the matizity prafie of the undiscounted cash Mows of the Compamy's financlal assets amd Sakikties

March 31, 2021 upto 1 manth Oreer Ouer 2 Dwer 3 Ower & mordbs | Ower Iysar to] Over 2 years| Over 5 yoars Tolal |

Erncnth to 1 | months to 3 | meaths te & b Lyear 3 yeaia 105 years

mwailh rmanths manths

Finnnglal pesats o 1 -
Cash arl cath enuibealanis TATEDE - - - - - - 2A76.26
Bank balance cthar (than Cash and zash ssquivalents - - - 1Al 530 = - S 2ET21
Trade racalvabl=s od G4 - - - = £ - 5464
Loans 4,116,483 7ML 251207 5,1 a.6E §,300.73 IS ARRAS 3,364.02 TEL 4L 4111401
|rwestmarits 14,520.BL 42108 55300 1028.14 158,15 TINAE 177071 1,595 1292641
Crther finarclal 2ssats 245.43 - 12715 1,542.70 | R 1,35 3az 1500 2,035,585
Elnancial [iabilities -
Trade payabies 0.35 305.35 5.0
Dabt dediintios = IE2.12 5.38 aRGST 7AL1A 21,171.3% 12,689.53
Barrawings [ather than debl zecaritias] 006 2591 15018 154,55 2RT A0 55547 19135 - 1,323.33
Caber financisd liakilities 95,04 140.74 | Enen|  Asas0) REa0 - = L EI9HT
March 31, 2020 wpio 1 month Drwes' Diyer 2 Over 3 Drwer & months | Ovwer Iy=ar 8o | Ower Tyears| Over S years Todal

tengnth b 2 | mandis ba 3 | imonths to & bix 1 year 3 years Lo 5 years

manth | months | months

Flnancial psgats
Casb ard cath squsaleniy §,190.82 2 - = & r. = - 1,180.29
Sank balance alher Lhan Cash snd cash equivalents 331 - - - 1i.u= - - z 15.20
Trade recefables | 23.B5 <. . = = = T = 65
Laans 2,593.R4 11842 244214 GE4E. 71 4,331 .45 14, 228.42 1,414 .35 148182 | ALu2539
Irvwvastments 11,7545 28,63 c2.98 14705 33403 L2679 334.497 2,008k 16,3317
Other financial assets %4 .35 - 1E7.18 e 0.3 14z 2.0 10.83 HEEER
Financlal llabilities
Trada payalios 0.35 - 2370 - - - 240,05
Dbl geeiaibing 93,34 1,77 1,5R4.51 1,482.77 311137 GE31.68 | 15300044 78,751.35
Boarawings (ather than dubst sacurities) [ 154,22 207,04 4349 FE0AT 1,602.71 o 327350
Db finnnciad liakditing = Fk] 159,29 53,73 11835 E7.25 = = e 455,38
Credit rizk

Credit risk arises from the podealisl that an abllger 15 either urdling to perfoern am an abligation ar 76 alility o perfarm such abligatian Is impalred resaltng o 2conomic loss ta the
Lompary, The Company's orseit fzk management framewark s categariced inlo Todoaiag maln campehents:

- Senine ranagamant's eeerslght

- Organizational structure

- Systems and procedures for identificstion, scosplance, measursmait, monitaning and controlling risks.

it i the overall responziility of the Drmpany's seniar anagemnent to 2pprove the Compary's credit risk sbrategy amd lemiing polieles relubng ta credit risk 2nd it maragenent. The poficies

are bazed onthe Company's ovsral buglisess strategy and the same is reviesed sveng quarier by Lhe senlar managanmant.
Ta maintein credi| dlacipline aned te snurclabe creds: sk management 2nd contecd process tieee 168 soparsate risk management department independent of laan origiratien funciion, The risk
management depariment peilarms the function of credis poficy Sarmulation, coedit Gt settivg, meattaring of credit coceptions § exposures and review Smardioding al daciiner stisn.

WCE
A
NEW DELHI| —

The carrying asnonnt of Faanclal sssats represents the masimum credit senesar.
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Analysis of rsk concentration

Thia fotawing Latile shaws the ns% cancentration b Industny lior tha finarelal assels of the Company:

DMl Finance Private Limited
Motes to Stavdalane Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{200 Amaunt in R, In millions, unless otherwise stated)

hdarch 31, 2021 Financial | Gevesament | Meal estate PAEOE Sarulces B | Metall Others Tatal
sersioes marufackueing

Finantial asset S _

Cash and rash cgubealants 24702 - - - . - - 247026
Hdank kalance ather thas Cash and cash equivsl=nts izl - - - - - - BF21
Tearn laans - Corapsata [santraciual smourd of lzans) £ - 2047 64 - 2,532.08 T03,54 - £2,285.26
Faren baans - Congsiimes losns (rontractual amount of loans) - - 43474 - 18,659,68 - 19,174.35
Trads recueidabiley - - a £ o4 64 5458
Irwssbaiuris 15,R35.60 - 10321 1,ROCLAR = 2012 IS ARREZ
Dk linancial sseeis - i = - 2,004 68 21.17 _F035.25
Tarlal ___|__1B572.07 3 10,079.85 434.74 | A 130,56 | ILAGEAT 4140 | 54,736.09 |
Mdarch 31, 2030 Financial |Gowernment | Keal estate MSHIF | Services & Betall Dhirs Tistal

R SR wsanpfacivining

Financlal asset 3 )

Caghaml cash enuivaients 1,190.88 - - = - - * 1,190.45
Bank balance viher than Cash and cash equivalznts 1520 - - - s - - 15.20
Termn Lozns- Cooporatecontractual amount of laans| - - 756808 2850 3,172,000 &82.55 11,857,724
Carsumer Loans(zontractual amacnt of leans) - - 3543 - 10862685 71,501,727
Feceivables E: 3 * - - 3365 3365
Irreestmants 1265199 - 1023158 - 1,559,756 | - 1507 15,294 0R
Criher flpaklal asaeds - 3 e - K - 4519 2L.04 REA. 23
Taotal = - 13,89B.0 - 899224 E5T.02 473076 | 2212435 40.21 | SM453.56
fdaricet risk

tdarket risk is the risk that the vatue of on and aff-balance sheet positions of a fnancial @atitition will b adyercely affected by movements in marke? ratas ar prices suich s inlares] rates,
fareign exchange rates, equity prces, credit spreads andfor cammedity prices resuiting Ina loss b sarméings and capitsl
Finarcis! instituwtions may be exposed o market rizk in waricty of wars. Market risk exposure may ke explizit & partlofas of secoriliss ¢ aquities and instrumenss that zm arihvaly bradil,
Canversely it may be implic such as inlesest cate risk dee 1o mismslch of loans 2nd depeosits. Besides, market risk may alse arlsa frar aciBities rateporized 35 off-balznoe shoat Ibem.
Tharatare, markel rlsk s patential Tor Inss esilling fram afvesss moverment in masdket sk faciors such sz interest rates, forok rates, eoulty and tommadityg rices,
Tha Cansnany's axposiss o narkel ssk s primeny amaccoumd of intarast rata dsk amd soqisy prics dad

Total market risk expasure

Partloulars A5 at March 35, 2021 A% an March 31, 2030 Primary risk sensitivity
ASSETS

Flnaneial assels

Irrvastmants {Other than cred® substitites] 1848334 14,816.33 |Equity prce

Credit substilutes 281,58 158,20 |imterest rate
LIABILITIES

Financlal liabilities

Dabit securflos 18551 08 22,087 50 |Inderost rate
Barrawings (ather than debt securities 1423.48 3,051.28 |Interest rate

[i] Imterest rate rishs-

Inferess rate risk soises when thers is & misspalch bebween positinns, which ane subjact 1o Intarast rate adjestmant within a specilied percd. The Ceenpargs kinling, ndicg and irvestmer]
mctivities pive rise fo interesl rals risk, The linenadiate fmpact of varlation in Interest rate (s on the Company's ret interest incane, while 2 lang term Imgect 5 an the Canysany's fml worth
singe Lhe scopomic valis of the assets, labllitkes and off balance shest esposures are affected. Whils 2ssessing interest rate risks, sigrals gheen to the mecket by BB and governmznd
departisients feat time ba e amed tha financlad industrg's reaction ta them shall be continucushy menitored.

Duig e tha vary natira of Hnancing, the Company is exaosed ta moderate to highes interest rate risk, This risk hes o mejor impact on Lthe balance cheet s well ax the inceme ststement of the

Company. Infarast rate risk arlsas dua boc

()] Sharl ferrn walalisy
i} Prapayment risk franslativg ivta & rairestment risk
il Rzl imtmrast raje oitk,

Interest rate s=n=tivity

Charges i regulatony or masiet cond@tions affecting the interest rates

The fofowing table demonsteates the seasitivity 1o a raasonahly pessible change Ininterest rates (2l other varizbles being constant) of the Compary's statement of profil and foss:

Effect on net profit

Increase o 50 basis points

Farticulars e
Enrrawings Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021  March 31, X020 |
Decraaze in 5 basis painis T34 1155
Increase in 51 basiz points s 7, 3'1:!; _[19.55]]
Particulars Effect on net profit
Barroaings Faor the year ended For the year =nded
March 31, 2081 March 31, 2020
Depraaze in 50 basis points - 15.0%
- 15121}

i) Equity price risk

Equity prize risk Is the rick that the Fair value af squities changes as the rosult of changes m the lewed of equity indizes and individusd siocks

& 10 par cenl

imcrmase in the yalis ol the

Company's TVOC equitiss 21 31 Mach 2020 wedld bave Increased squity by Rs, 18156 melions (Pravious year: s 168,28 milfons], An egiivalent deceses wattd have rescltad in an
squival=nt bul sppraits impact, Fietkes, & 10 per cent increase i the value of the Company's TUTPL squities sl 31 March 2030 saidd Bave Incmaced pretits by Ba 187240 pilllens [Pravious
wears fs, 1, 716,07 millians), fn eqisvalent decrease weuld have resulbed in an equisalent but cpposile fnpact.
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DM Finance Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{all Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Impact an fair value of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value of changes to key assumptions
The table summarises the valuation technigues together with the significant unobservabic inputs used to calculate the falr value of the Cornpany's level 3 aszets and
lakilities.

March 31, 2021 Fair value of Level Valuation technlgue Significant unobservable inputs

| — 3 Bagets s

Compulserily convertible preference shares in O Capital Private 31208 Met Worlh of lnvestes Company Instrumant price

Limited

Equity shared in OMI Consumer Credit Private Limbted 3,27 Het Worth of Investee Company Instrument price

Frpeity shares in Alchemist Aszet Reconstruction Company Limited 226200 Discownted Projected Cash Flows Dizcount margin [ spread

Mon-convertlble debentures - Ouotad 497 6B Discownted Projected Cash Flows Discoust margin / spread

Equity shares In Flash Elactranics Privata Limited AN4.4n Niscounled Projected Cash Flows Instrument price

Compulsory convertible debentures 82647 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread

MNon-convertible debentures - unguoted 142.83 Dizcounted Projected Cash Flowes Discount margin / spraad

March 31, 2020 Fair walue of Level Valvation technigue Significant unohservablo inputs
3 mssets )

Compulsority convertibla preferance shares in DI Capital Private 31068 NetWarth of Investee Company Isbsimenl price

Lirnited

Equity shared In D0 Consumer Cradit Private Limited A.16  NetWorth of Investes Company Insteument price

Equity shares In Alchemist Asset Aeconstruction Campany Limited 22620 Discounted MFrojected Cazh Flows Discount margin ' spread

Nom=convertibie debentures - Quated A19.58 Discownted Projected Cash Flows Nigcauenl marging spread

Equity shares in Flash Electronies Private Limited 250,10 Discounted Mrojected Cash Flows Instrument price

Compulsory convertible debentures 7137 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread

Man-cgrvertible debentures - ungualed 120,76 MMecounted Projected Cash Flows Dizcount margin / spread

Quantitative analysis of significant unobservable inputs

Instrument price
Given the mature of this approach, there is no range of prices used as inputs,

Discount margingspreads
Discount margin/spreads represent Uhe discownt rates used when calculating the present waalue of Tubure cash lows. In discounted cash flow models such spreads are

added to the benchmark rate when discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these spreads reduce the net present value of an ssset or incresse the value
of & liakslity, They generally reflact the premtium an investor expects to achicve over (he henchimark interest rate to compensate for the higher nisk driven by the
uncertzinty of tha cash flows coused by the credit quality of the asset. They can be impficd from market prices and ane gsually unobsenvable for illiguid or comples

instruments.
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DI Finance Private Limited
MNotes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In milllans, unless otherwise stated)

Sensitivity of falr value measurements to changes in unchservable market data

The table below describes the effect of a 10% movement in the signiticant unobservable input.
All changes, except Tor finencial instrumeants at FYOC! would be reflacted in Stalements of Profit and Lass,

farch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
particulars Favourable Unfavourable Favourahle Unfavourable
changes changes changes changes
Instruments measured through FUTPL
Compulzsorily convertible preterence shares in DI Capital Private Limited 3438 131.28) 3033 {30.33]
Total [A) 31.28 [21.28) 30,33 (30.33)
Instruments measured through FYTOCI
Equity shared in DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 0.33 10.33) .32 [0:32)
Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 2262 [22.62) 2Ee2 [22.62)
Mon-convertible debentures - Quoted 7.17 {7.17) 41,96 [11.06)
Mon-convertible debenturss - unquated 14.28 {14.28) 1208 [12.08)
Eqquity shares in Flash Electranics Private Limited 30,44 130.44) 25,00 [25.00)
Cornpulsory convertible debentures H2.65 {82.65) 7732 {77.32)
Total (B} 157.50 {157.50) 170,30 {179.30)
Total [A+8] 188.78 {188.78) 209.63 {209.63)

Falr value of financial instruments not measured at fair value
Fat out below is a comparison, by olass, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's tinancial instruments that are not carried at fair valoe

in the financial statzrments. This lable does not incdude the fair values of nan-financial assets and non-Tinancial labilities.

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Financlal assets: ___ Fairvalue Carrying value Fair value Carrying valug
Loans and advances
Corporate loans 1271514 12,151.09 11,630.70 11,735.33

Investments = at amortized cost

Nan-cenvertible debenlures - Quoted 1,156.59 1,171.88 1,259.61 1,227.52
Financial lakilitles:
Debt securities 18 BT6.A7 18,5532.00 2167624 21 303.00

Valuation methodologles of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions wsed to determine fair values for the abave tinancial instruments which are not recorded and measured
at fair value in the company’s financial statements. These fair values were caiculated for disclosure purposes anly, The helow methodologies and
assumations relate anly to the instrurnents in Lhe above tables,

Borrowings - At Amortised cost
These Includes Term Loans, The fair values of such Gabilities are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contraclual cash flows using
actual or estimated yislds and discounting by yiclds incorporating the counterparties’ credil risk. These instrument are classified in Level 3,

Investments - At amartised cost
These includes Quoled non convertible debenture & corporata loans, The Talr values of such instruments are estimated using & discounted cash flow

madel based on contractual cash flows using aclual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporaling the counterparties’ credit risk, These
instrument are classified In Level 3,

Assets and llabilities other than above
Tha carrying value of assets and liahilities ather than investments and barrowings at amorized cost represents A reasonable approximation of {air valuc
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DI Finance Private Limited
eaties ko the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
{all Arnawnt in Rs. I millfons, ualess olherwise stated]

WY Assed Lizhillty B aspgement Maturiby patiern of certain fems of 8zsots and Liablligias
Maturlky Patteam of Assats and Lisbilities o3 on plarch 31, 2021

|Amcaunt in Rs rare]

Fraud by psternal party

Fartitulars upte L month | Over feonthte | Cosr Zaoeths | Ower 3 months | Over 6 merths | Couar dyear 03 | Cver 3 years and| | Crver 5 yoars Tiotal
2 manth 1o 3 mionths ta & momths tad year VEATS upto 5 years
linestonmnty . 144008 - SI.ER| . - pE g | 1618.54
Bosrowings | S Y 13,45 1B.10 13.30 _ A 1,505.30 12.50 - 1,390.20
Advances AnlA2 21534 20884 a14.14 AR 73 1,004, 7% i EOS AT 3463343
‘dther financel assets 245,73 - R 554200 100.00 1.3% 343 500 2035.E5
whaturity Fattern of Azsels sod Liakdities 3z on March 31, 2020 I _ __bamnourt In R, crore)
Particulars wplo 4 moemdf [ Cuer dmonth to | Ower 2 months | Owver 3 months | Ower & monkhs | Ouer ymar Lo 3 [ Gver 3 years and Over 5 years Total
2month tn 3 montihg b B ok 1l year wears wpbn 5 years
irwestments 119565 R B : T - 100.15 1,396.84 |
Borrowings T35 2103 2L+ . 13F 77 354 .63 AGN.57 AR w0 - 2,587.02
ity sar 11].'91,! 18£.03 ISTOR L N . [5-T 1.230.£0 Axaa) _ 2RSS 3,724.539
Ciihar Binarinl assmls s 15718 A1ER 072 1.41 E08 10,83 566,23 |
Indtances of fraud for the Year endad Mardh 31, 2021 |Amount in Rs. crare)
e March 31, 2021 - March 31, 2024 e
Mature of frapd M, uf cases Ak, of fraud Recoyvery Am1. writhen off By of gaseg 1 At of fraud Recovery Ank. wrillea aff
Cash embezzlomant - - - - - e L -
Loan ghver against Mletitious decuments Lo 112 - 112 1.00 f 1.12 = 1.12

Babe: Thirs i3 na Ivanid bapggened in the cucel yess and peevious pees




DRI Finance Private Limited
Motes tothe Standalone Financial Statemeants for the Year ended March 31, 2021
[all Amount In ks, 0 mifllons, unless otherwise stated)

¥] Exposures
Expasure to Real Estate Sedtor

[Ampunt in Rs. crore)

Catepury March 31, 2021

Blarch 31, 2020

4] Direct Exposure
i] Residential Mortgages -
Lending lully secured by martgages on ressdential property that is ar will be acoupied by the horroer or that Is rented G8.15

I} Commerclal Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office bulldings, retail space, mullipurpuse commerdial premises, multi- 1,734,596
family rosidential bulldings, multi-tenanted  commercial premises, Industrial or werehowse space, hobels, land acguisition,
dessetoproent and construction, ete b, EBuposure would alzo Inchede non-furd based limils
i) Invesiments in Mortgage Barked Securities (MBS) and ather securitized expaseres -
RErsidential
Commercial Real Estate
Totel Exposure to Real Estate Sechor 1,203.12
*inclvdes exposire (o sub-sienderds ossels o well

60.97

ERER

1,006.52

Exposura to Capital Market
Categery March 31, 2021 March 1, 2020
[i) direct investment In eguity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual lunds the corpus 191.03 177.50
ol whicl: i nob exclusively vested i Corporate deit;
i1 advances against shares [ bonds f deheptures or nther secoriteas or on clean basis i individuals for investment enshares {inchisding k.
P0s f E50Fsh, comvertible bands, canvertibde dehentures, and units of equity-oricnted mutual funds;
(i) advances far any other purposes where shares ar convertible bonds or converlible debalures or unils of equily orienled mulual 405,40 35261
funds are taken as prirary securiby;
{iv) advances for any olher purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible hands or convertibie -
debenlures or units of equily oriented mutual fupds e, where the primary socerty ather than shares f caneertible bonds [
converlible debanlures § unils of equity orlented mutual funds does ret fully cover the advanees;
(U secured and unsecured advances to stackbrokers and puarantess sswed on behall of slockbrokers and rarket makers; -
{vil kaans sanctioned to corporates againsl the security of shares [ bonds § debentures ar ather secorities or on clean basis for meeting -
pramater's cantribution ta the eguily of new companles In anticipation of raising rosnurces;
[wii} bridge loans Lo compantes agamst eapectad aquity flrws [ issues; 2
[viii} 2l popmsures to Ventuie Capital Funds (koth registered and unregistered)
Total Exposure ko Capital Markel .51 530,13
XI) Details of financing of parent company producks Bdarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

The company has ned financed any Parent company product duing e careent year and prevlous year

8 Details of Singhe Barrawer Limit {SGL) ¢ Group Borrower Limit {GEL] exceeded by the NRFC
The company has nat exceeded any single ar growp besrower limits as per prescribed A0 guidelines therefore o detalls are heing

providecd

A} Provislons and contingenties

[Amaunt in As. crare)

March 312021 March 31, 2020

Braak up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shawn under the bead Bpenditure in Statement Profil and Loss
Prowisiens Tue depreciation on investment A 1102
Prowvision made Lawards Ikcaime tax 3441 q4.81
Prowisaan for gratuity 057 0,4
Provistan for comprnsated absences. 131 inm
24544 14129

Enpalrmeant of financial 55ets fnet af wile of T}




DAl Finance Private Limited
HNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
{all Amount In s, In milllons, unless otherwise stated)

Ell) Deraws Dowwen from Hesarves
The Company has not draw dowaed 3y ansunt o the Reserves duding Be currenl yedr and previous pear

¥} {oncentration of Oepastts, Advances, Feposures and Nas
Cancentration of Deposits

Concentration of Advances

Tolal Aadvances Lo leenby largest borrowers
Percentage of Advances to beenty langest bormowsrs bo Total fdvances

Concentration of Exposures

Tatal| Exposure tn bwerdy largest harmowers [ costamers
Fercentage of Exposures to taenty largest borrowers | custormers to Total BExposure of the borrowers [ custoiners

Concentratlon of NPas*=
Total Exposure to top four NRA aocounts
Friepresent Stage Y lwons Molusing nferest

Sector-wise NPAs*

Agriculture & afied activities

MEME

Corparate borrowers

Senvices

Unsecured perscnal leans

At laans

her personal loans[laoan againsl Properly)
**hepresent Stage i fnmns including éinterest

~ W & B ke

¥V} Movement of NPAs
Blet HPAs to Mot Advances (%)
Bovermient of MPAS [Gross)
Opening balancs
Additions during the year
Redurtions during the year
Clasing balance

Mowernent of Ket MP&s
opening balance

Additions during the year
Reductions during the year
Closing balance

Movement of provisions for MNP [excluding provishons on standard assets)
Dpening balance

Prawizions made during the wear

write-off fwrite-back of excess provisians

Closing balance

¥} Oyersoas Assets [for those with laint Ventures and Subsidianes abroad)
The Company does not bave ary Inint Venture or Subsidiary abroad, Berefore no detalls to be reported

WUy Off- Dalance sheet 5PVs sponsored
The company dues not have any OH- Balanoe sheek 573, therefore na details 1o be reporled

WY Custamer Camplaints
Mo, of camplaints pending at the beginning of the year
Hao. of cornplaints receiwed during the year
No. ol cormplaints redressed during the year
Mo, of complaints pending at the end of the vear

{Ampant in Rs. orore)

Mlarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,301.35% 1,195.21
3503, EERILCE
1,332.2% 144521
330 e [
119.84 11634
March 31, 2021 tarch 31, 2020
Parcentaga of Percentage of
NPAs to Tatal RiIvAg to Takal
Adwances Inthat  Advances In that
sechor serhor
B4 9.85%
1.31%
- D17

[Amaunt In Rs. trore]

_ March 31, 2021
Loy

17111
.15
A3.01
142,35

E0.11
[a2.24)
[16.52)
43,54

102.00
36.59
ELRE]
HE.Th

March 31, 2021

March 34, 2030
1,943

1157
151.21
hEG7
17111

3142
2767
[10.02)
f8.11

4115
123154
Gl.Ga
LR

March 31, 2020

504
1,931
2,463

ar

354.00
13,430
13,115




Notes 1o the Standalone Financial Statements for the Yoar onded March 31, 2021

ol Finance Private Limited

[All Amount in As, In millions, unless otherwlse stated)

Hi¥) Discloswre of Gold Loan Fartfalic
Tatal tald Loan Fartfolio
Total Assets
Guld luan purlloliv s: % of Tolal Assels

Kl Disclosurn of Gold Auctlon
Hurher of lnan accounts
Dukstanding Amaount
Walue fetched o sbclions

KR} Unsecured Advances

K} Detalls of Off balance sheet exposure
Refler nole 42 Tor details of ofl balance sheel exposures

KK Loan accounts past due 90 days and not treated as impaired
Mumber of loan accounts

Loan owtstanding
Cverdus Armount

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

{armount in K5, crore)
th31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,952.84 2,214,14

Parch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020




oAl Finance Private Limited

Motes to the $tandalone Financial Statements for the Yoar ended ®&arch 31, 2071

Ll murount i B, In millions, unless otherwise stated)

53 Fursuant to REI clrcular RES/2010-20/RE DORMAFT (PD] 0. Ba 10203 000008301030 dated Heaminkes 04, 2010, Linuidity credi risk declosures are presented as below:

e j {&meunt tn Rz crore)
I iiguldity couarage ratlo Az at 31, 3071 A af Dregenher 31, 2000
Totalun- Total welghted  Total un- Tatal
wialghiled AFing welghted weipled
pmgiant amgunt amount
High Quality Uguld Assests (HOLAs| 1,084 8 Louags 163393 1532.73
Tolal High Quality Liguid Assests (HOLA) 1,604 85 1,604,085 143873 1,638.73
Cash Cutlows
Draperslts lar degunsil laking compenies|
Unseowred whalesabe fundisg Bis q.1s 8.3y 23n
Zeeured wholeszle funding 289 2% ENE 4ra
Addslioral requiremants, of which
il velsted Ly derivative exposures and other coifateeal =
requirersents
Cratflws relatad to loss e isding an daba pealucls
Cradit and liquidey faclitkes 3 = =
Crbar contractuz] funding obligations ] ] X %
rlkar contingent funding ohlipations 514 57.14 3244 3244
TOTAL CASH QUITFLOWS = 54,20 [ ] 44.58 44.53
Cash inflows
secured lending 9 = E
Inflawes Trom Tully perfoeming axpratmas 1o 3302 25,80 25.50
Other cash indlzws AL ] 511,28 L FEH] 307
TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 2a4.30 344,30 33200 332,00
101AL HOLA, 1,059.45 LoedEy g3 1,633.03
TOTAL HET CASH OUTFLOWS [0 ] 1941 1242 1202
LICAHDITY COMERAGE RATID [%] USRS B A% 18, M7% 12, M7%
Hote:
The alf balanre sheet exposures mepesbed Tt e el 30 dags are cansifiered Inocomputatian,
li} Funding concerdration based on signilcas caunterparly — - = {Amcaunt in Rs. crare}
3 I ot cin” %% of Tatal % of Total
i
Fumber of grilleaant couterparilas i Begnsits abiines
Five ¥ g 196558 726
*accured inferest but not due and uramorbized trasssclion costs are includad in borrowings.
I} Top 20 large depodit:
There are no depasiis arcepied by tha comaany during the vear as compeay is nen-depasil Taking NRETC.
lu] Tep 10 borrawings - {Amiisnl in Re crora)
Amount® Rankin Hol petal
T ead . B | borrowings
1 |Cfdl Incomes Furd Ple Lid 1,951, 50 1 ‘Eﬁ.ﬁi‘x
2 |Genk of Darpda-l n9.13 7 502
8 |Usibon Bank of India 5145 1 PR
4 |Ganasha Fiwed income Limited 1341 4 i EASE
& |south Indlan Gank A58 5 5‘-4_31
6 |HOFC Dank bEE & LR
R ]| P ¥ i, 05
#_ |&U Small Sinance 8ank LLLER a .00
|Tezal i 1,473.79 | oo
Fhrcored inberesl Bt reat das ard unamostised transaclon tnds are iscluded In borrowings.
vl__Funding Concentration based on significant instrumant/product _@lm_nm:_:%]_
== 3
5. i i3 ot stgniticant Instrument praduct I Amourt® | jabities
I |Mon canvertible debentures 1-]‘.":\:-_“; 5:"’:-7:
2 |Term fcans e i
3 |utabelity apminsi fased assats 24.1) L
Taal T | amzra| ao000% |
T ercored interesl bl mal tan and uramorlised Srarsaclion 1eeds ane decluded in borrcengs.
Hing: - Jamoint In Az, crore]
B . 3 . 3 af Toaal % of Tatal % of Total
i Particulars Amoisnt o Total public henids ] TotalHahilities k Total assets public funds | liahiliyies | assnls
| |Cammerical prosrs o 5 Mol apsiicable FRELRL L EIE TN | Hatappicanle .00 000,
3 |Won-coneeridile detientires [criginal matunty of bess Uha ana yeark = Rl appdicable FARIIE 51579 | Mot appiceble .03 0L
3 |tk shnil-tanm labiies (excluding comemescial paparh RON.22 | Mot applicable ERELE 5,615.08 | Mol apphrabils R0 A0ULE
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DI Finienca Privata Limited

Motes to the Standalong Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
[Al Amount in Rs. In millions, unloss obheraise stated)

55 During the year the Sompany has restecctured loan assets in aceoedance with the B droular BE2021-22010 DOR N, BPEC/E 2104044 2000-27 dated Augiest b, 2020 as presented in

below tatle:

{armount In fs. crores)

Type of horrower

14]
Humber of accounits
where resolution plan

|B} exprsure to accounts
mentioned at (A] befare
Implemantation of the plan

has keen Impiemanted

under this window

L] e [F]

0l {B), apprepate Additional funding Increase in

amount of debt that was sanctioned, if any, Including  provisions an

carverted Into athar between Invacation afthe  account of the

seCurilies plan and implementation implementation
of the resolution

plan
‘Brrsanal Loan 68,728 163.49 - - 1111
Corporate persons® - - - - -
OF which, MEMEs - - - - -
Others - - =
Taotal ER. 708 162434 11,11

*ax defined in Section 37 of the Inzalwency ond Bankrupicy Coade, 2015

B6  During the year the Company has restructured loan assets in accordance with the AR cinodar RESR0E T 32017 0A Mo, RP RO 2L 04.048/7000 31 dared Aogast §, 2020 a5 presantad in

be=loiw kabile:

Type of borrower

[Amaunt in Rs. crores

(LY [B] exposure o
Nuember of agcosnts where  accounts
resalution plan has been mentioned at {4}
imglemented wider this Lrefre
windoma Implementation

ol the plan

MEME Borrowers

i 1.63

Total :

57 Ewents accurring alter reparting date
Thare 2re no significant events sfter the reparting periad which reguire any adjustment or disclosure inthe Fnancial statemeants.

For Walker Chandiok B Co LLP
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report

Walker Chandiok & Go LLP
11th Floor, Tower I,

One International Center,

S B Marg, Prabhadevi (W),
Mumbai - 400013
Maharashtra, India

T +01 22 8626 2699
F +91 22 6626 2601

To the Members of DMI Finance Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinlon

1

2)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of DMI Finance Private Limited
(the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries togethar refarred
to as ‘the Group’) and its associate, as listed in Annexure 1, which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Consolidaled Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprahensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statemant and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our informationrand according to the explanations given to us and based
on lhe consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries and an associale the aforesaid consclidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {'the Act') in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS‘) spacified under section 133 of the Act, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate, as at 31 March 2021, and their consolidated
profit {(including other comprahensive income}, consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes
in equlty for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3)

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143{10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Respongibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its associate in accordanca with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ('the ICAI'} and the relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we hava fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence
obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports refemred to in paragraph 16 of the Other Matter
seclion below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Emphasis of Matter — COVID 18

4)

We draw attention to Note 38 of to the accompanying financial statoments, which describes the
uncertainty relating to the effects of Covid-19 pandemic on the Holding Company’s operations as at
31 March 2021. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

%

Page 1 of 11
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DMI Financa Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financla! Statements

Key Audit Matter

3)

6)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration
of the reports of the ather auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, and an associate
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statemants as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thareon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

our report.

Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Holding Company relies upon information
processing systems for recording, processing,
classifying, and presenting the large volume of
transactions entered into by the Holding
Company. The Holding Company has putin place
IT General Controls and automated IT Controls to
ensure that the information produced by the
Holding Company is reliable. Also, during the
cumrent year, the management cared out
changes to the IT infrastructure and accounting
system to implement moratorium relief extended
during the year to the customers. Among other
things, the management also uses the
information produced by the eniity’s information
processing systems for accounting and the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial staterments.

The Holding Company’'s accounting and financial
reporting processes being dependent on
autornated controls enabled by IT systems
impacts key financial accounting and reporting
iterns such as loans, interestincome, impaiment
on loans amongst others. The controls
implemented by the Holding Company in its IT
environment determine the integrity, accuracy,
completeness and validity of data that is
processed by the applications and is ultimately
used for financial reporting.

Since our audit strategy included focus on entity's
information processing systems relevant to our
audit due to their pervasive impact on the
consolidated financial statements, we have
determined the use of informalion processing
system for accounting and financial reporting as
a key audit matter for the current year audit.

\V/

Use of information processing system for accounting and financial reporting

Our key audit procedures on this matter includex,
but were not limited, to the following:

a) Obtained an understanding of the Holding
Company's information pracessing systems,
IT General Controls and automated IT
controls for applications, databases and
operating systems relevant to our audit;

b) Obtained an understanding of the ¢hanges
that were made to the IT applications during
the audit period on account of moratorium
relief extanded to its custorners;

c} Involved IT specialists (auditor's expert) for
performance of the following procadures:

i) tested the IT General Controls around user
access management, changes to |IT
environment and segregation of duties
around program maintenance, security
administration and over key financial
accounting and reperting processes; and

i) tested the Holding Company's periodic
review of access rights. We salso tested
raqueasts of changes to systems for approval
and authorization

i} tested the automated controls like
interfaces, configurations and information
generated by the entity’s information
processing systems for loans, interest
income and other significant financial
statement items.

d) Obtained written representations from
management and those charged with
governance on whether IT general controls
and automated IT controls are designed and
ware operating effectively during the period
covered by our audit,
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Indepandent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key audit matier | How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected Credit Losses on loans (ECL) and implementation of COVID-19 relief measures
(Refer Note 3(m) for the accounting policy and Note 7.1 for the related disclosures

As at 31 March 2021, the Holding Company has
financial assets (loans} amounting to Rs.
31,413.61 million. As per Ind AS 109- Financial
Instruments, the Holding Company is required to
recognise allowance for expecled credit losses
on financial assets.

Expected credit loss cannot be measured
precisely but can only be astimatad through
use of statistics. The calculation of expected
credit losses is complex and requires axercise of
judgement around both the timing of recognition
of impaimment provisions and estimation of the
amount of provisions required in relation to loss
evanls,

The Hoalding Company has developed
customized madels to derive Key inputs used to
determine the amount of ECL such as probability
of default (PD) and loss given default {LGD). The
rasult from these models is then applied to the
exposure at default (EAD) to armive at the amount
of ECL. In the process of developing the ECL
models, a significant degree of judgement has
been applied by the management in respact of
following matters:

a) Staging of loans and estimation of behavicral
life and thereby determining the criteria for a
significant increase in credit risk.

b) Estimation of expected loss from historical
observations,

c) Estimation of losses in respect of those loans
which had no/ minimal defaults in the past.

d) Selection of macro-economic factors and
astimating their impact on ECL model; and

e) Estimation of the expected realizable values
of underlying collaterals.

Our audit procedures in relation to expected
credit losses were focused on obtaining sufficient
appropriate audit evidence as to whether the
expected cradit losses recognised in the
consolidated  financial  statements  were
reasonable and the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements made by the
management were adequate. These procedures
included, but were not limited, to the following:

a) obtained an understanding of the modet
adopted by the Holding Company including
key inputs and assumptions for calculation of
expecied credit losses including the impact of
COVID 19 on the assumptions and how
management calculates the expected credit
losses and the appropriateness data on which
the calculation is based;

b) tested the design and operating effectiveness
of the key controls over completeness and
accuracy of the key inputs and assumptions
considered for calculation, recording and
monitoring of the impairment loss recognizad;

¢) obtained the policy on moratorium and
restructuring of loans approved by the Board
of Directors pursuant to the RBI circulars and
ansured such policy is in compliant with the
requirements of the RBI circular;

d) evaluated the appropriatenass of the Holding
Company’s determination of significant
increase in credit risk in accordance with the
applicable accounting standard considering
the impact of COVID-19 on account of benefit
extended by the Holding Company to select
borrowers and the basis for classification of
various exposures into various stages.

8) As modelling assumptions and parameters
are based on historical data, we assessed
whether  historical experience  was
representative of current circumstances and
was relevant in view of the recent impairment
losses incurred within the portfolios.

f) tested the accuracy of inputs through

substantive procedures and assessed the
reasonablaness of the assumptions used;
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DMI Financa Private Limitad
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Implemantation of COVID-19 relief measures

During the current year, RBI announced various
relief measures for the borrowers which were
implemented by the Holding Company such as
‘COVID 19 Regulatory Package- Asset
Classification and Provisioning™ announced by
the RBI on 17 Apnl 2020 and RBI circular on
‘Asset Classification and Income Recognition
following the expiry of Covid-19 regulatory
package” dated 7 April 2021 {collectively referred
to as ‘the RBl! circulars’), and “Resolution
Framework for GOVID-19 related Stress” (the
‘Resolution Framework') dated 6 August 2020,
which have baen collectively considered by the
management in identification, classification and
provisioning of (oan assets for impaiment.

The management has considered the impact of
COVID-19 on arriving at the provisions as at the
balance sheet date on account of significant
increase in credit risk on borowers given
additional support by the Holding Company which
were impacied due to GOVID-19. The basis of
estimates and assumptions involved in arriving at
the provisions during the year wara monitored by
the Holding Company periodically and
significantly depend on fulure developments in
the economy due to COVID-19 including any new
relief measures’ announcements by the RBI,

Considering the significance of the above
matter to the consolidated financial statements,
the degree of management's judgment invelved
and additional complexities involved in the
current year on account of ongoing impact of
COVID-19 and since the matter raquired our
significant attention to test the calculation of
expected credit losses, we have identified this
as a kay audit matter for current year audit.

We also draw attention to Note 38 of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements,
regarding uncertainties involved on the due to
oulbreak of GCGVID-19 pandemic with respect to
the measurement of expected credit loss on such
loan assets which are significantly dependent on
uncenain future developments, as the same is
fundamental to the understanding of the users of
consolidated financial statements.

g) developed a point estmate by making
reference to the expected credit losses
recognised by entities that carry comparable
financial assets;

h) tested the arithmetical calculation of the
expected credit losses;

i) on test check basis, tested the
roasonableness of estimates of expected
realizable values of underlying collaterals;

j) assessed the appropriateness and adequacy
of the related presentation and disclosures in
the accompanying financial statements in
acoordance with the applicable accounting
slandards and related RBI circulars and
Resolution Framework; and

k} obtained written representations from
management and those charged with
governance on whether they belisve
significant assumptions used in calculation of
axpected credit losses are reasonable.
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

information other than the Consolidated Financlal Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

7

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are respansible for the cther information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereen. The Annual Report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not exprass any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statemants or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstaternent therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Govarnance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

8)

9)

10)

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's
Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134{5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial
statemants that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group in¢luding its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally
acceptad in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. The respactiva Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associate are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequale intermnal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant fo the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of
its associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsibla for oversaaing the financial reporting process
of tha companies included in the Group and of its associate.

ﬂ, -’/
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Indepandent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidatad Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

11} Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whather the consclidated financial stalements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considared
malerial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

12) As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exarcise profassional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or ermror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to thosa risks, and obtain audit
evidence thal is sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invelve callusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control;

= Obtain an understanding of internal central relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i} of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whather the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managemant;

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to continue as a
going ¢oncern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of gur auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate
to cease to continue as a going concem;

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation; and

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the antities within the
Group, and its associate, to express an opinien on the financial statements. We are responsibla for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in
the financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

13) We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
intarmal control that we identify during our audit.

: ‘l'\l’
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statements

14)

15)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statemant that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of mast significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit malters, We describe these matters in our auditors report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the malter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

16)

17)

We did not audit the financial statements of 2 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total aseets
of ¥ 345.97 million and net assets of ¥ 335.67 million as at 31 March 2021, total revenues of € 55 27
million and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 35.85 million for the year ended on that date, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements algo include the Group's
share of net profit (including other comprehensive income) of € 39.51 million for the yearanded 31 March
2021, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of an associale, whose financial
statements has not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and an associate, and our report in terms of sub-section {3} of section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate, are based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with regpect to our reliance on the
work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 were audited by
the predecessor auditor, S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, who have expressed an unmadified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements vide their audit report dated 15 September 2620.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

18)

19)

Based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors, referred to in paragraph
16, on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and assaciate, we rapor! that the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies and associate company covered under the Act, since none of such companies is a public
company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not
applicable.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries
and associate, we repor, to the extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowladge

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements;

\ /
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statements

b}

c)

d)

e)

f}

g)

i)

i)

iv)

in our opinion, propar books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors;

the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statementls;

in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
saction 133 of the Act;

on the basis of the wrilten representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate company, covered under the Act, none of the
directors of the Group companies and its associate company covered under the Act, are disqualified
as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act,

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and associate company covered under the Act,
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure A’; and

with respect to the other matters to be in¢luded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the
subsidiaries and associate:

the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group and its associate as detailed in Note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements;

the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate did not have any long-term contracis
including derivative contracts for which thera were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March
2021,

there were no amounts which were required to be transferrad to the Invastor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate company covered under the
Acl, during the year ended 31 March 2021; and

the disclosure requiremaents relating to holdings as well ‘as dealings in specified bank notes were
applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not relevant {o these
consolidated financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
S’ Regi;.iralion No:001076N/N500013
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-~__, L £

Wi
-
Manish Gujral

Szriner

Lresabership No:105117

JDIN:21105117AAAAHI3936

Zizza. Mumbai
Z3te 03 September 2021
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DMI Finance Private Limited

independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Annexure 1
List of entitias included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
Subsidiary Companies

1) DM Capital Private Limited
2) DMI Management Private Limited

Associate Company

1) DM Altemnatives Private Limited
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DM! Finance Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of DMI Finance Private
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Independent Auditor's report on the internal financlal controls with reference to the consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’)

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of DMI Finance Private Limited
{‘the Holding Company’} and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together raferred
lo as ‘the Group’) and its associate as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the
intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company, which is a
company covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, which is a company covered under the Act,
ara responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essaential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis
of India (the ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial conttrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the ordarly and efficient
conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and ermors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

The audit of internal financial controls with reference fo financial statements of the aforementioned
subsidiaries and associate, which are companies covered under the Act, and reperting under Section
143(3)i} is exempled vide MCA notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated 13 June 2017 read with
corrigendum dated 14 July 2017. Consequently, our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAl and prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, tc the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial conirols with
reference 1o financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI, Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whelher adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of tha internal
fimancial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
nternal financial controls with referance 1o financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
weh internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
~aluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
recedures selected depend on the audiior's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
7v2ierial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

oy h

#'z telieve that the audit evidence we have obfained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
2 2udit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding

| a;

—»Tigany, as aforesaid.
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Annexure A (Contd)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Referance to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accopted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial staterments in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements .

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Refersnce to Financial Statements

7 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controfs with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procadures may

deteriorate.
Opinion
g In our opinion, the Holding Company, which is a company covered under the Act, has in all material

respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such controls
wara operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the intemal financial controls with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of

internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

“o* Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
~martered Accountants
=imn's Registration No:001076N/N500013
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DMI Flnance Private Limited
Consolldated Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unfess otherwise stated)

Notez As at Mareh 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

ASSETS

“ Bnandal assets
Z3zh and cash equivalents 4 2,533.91 1,212,569
2k balance other than cash and cash equivalents -] 267.21 15.20
Trade receivables 3 62,11 3296
—cans . 7 3141361 33,353.51
mstmeants 8 18,551.04 15,362 24
Zrer finangial assets ] 203735 569.73
Won- financial assets
Zrrant tax ascets 10 23247 170,07
Teferred tax assets [net) 11 633587 37874
>reperty, plant and equipment 12 326.92 387.64
~iangible assets 13 I2.80 7.55
2ther nan- financial assets 14 103.27 112.87
Lesets held for sale 15 189.85 189.85
TOTAL ASSETS 56,374.41 51,800.05
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
UABILITIES
Fnancial liabilitles
Trade payablas 16
{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smali enterprises 11075 78,68
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micra enterprises and small 195.23 164.55
enterprises
Debh securities 17 18,551.69 12,797.57
Somowings {other than debt securities) 18 1,423.48 3.001.28
ther financial liabMities 19 63533 488.87
HNon financtal Nahilities
Prowisions 0 57.51 38.54
ther non-financial liabilities 21 337.27 217.27
EQUITY
Equity share capltal 22 6,436.58 £,5492.04
Sther equity 23 28,626.57 19,330.35
TATAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 56,374.41 51,800.05

Summary of significant accounting pollcies and accompanying nates are an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Balance Shect referred to In our report of even date

-
For Walkier Chandlok & Co LLP For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013 DMI Finange Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
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Partrer {It. Managing Director) {it. Managing Director)
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DM Finance Private Limited
Lonsolidated Cash flow statement far the Year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Yewr ended
_ Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A Cash flow from operating activities:

Profit befosa tay IE0.61 1,393,058
Adustinents for

Depreciation and amaortisation 7312 7645
Net gain on fair vlue changes (587 60} 1435.83)
Impalrinent an financial instruments 284874 1,522,144
Interest expense for leasing arrangements a1.0z 27.3a
Effective interest rate adjustment for financial instruments 15.31 3280

Emplaves stack option expense 75.78 40,90
Operating profit before warklng capjta) thanges 2,823 48 2,873,91

Changes in working capital

(Increase| in financial and othar zssets {2,004.44) 11264720
Increase in financial and other Mabilities 20921 455 8%
Decrease In non financial Assers 6.59 12645
Increase In non financil labiliting 140 3316
Total of changes in working capital (1,648.62) (12,733.25)
Direct taxes paid net of refundg) 410,53 597.17

et cash flow generated from flosed in} aperating activities [A} 764,32 (10,456.46)

B Cash flow from investing activities-
Inflow {outflow) on account of

Purchase of Property, plant and equpment {30.64) 356, 44)
lincluding capital work-in-progress); intangible

assets

Sale of Property, plant and efuipment 5 106
Purchase of investimont {net] {2,991.‘15] {5,477.50)

Movement of fixed deposits (net) 252.0

et cash flow used in Investing activities i) (3, 273.81) {5.8?2,881

€ Cash flow from financing activitles:

Froceed from lssue of equity shares fincluding 979122 178608
share premium)
Procesds from debt securities SO0 21.303.00
Proceeds from hank barrowings 70t 00 230.00
Repaymeant of cash credit - (332 86)
Repayrnent of debt securities 14,750.00 14, 300.00)
Repayment of bank borrovangs {2,355, 33} 2,314, 54)
Lease pavments (55.18) {54.80)
MNet eaxh flaw generated from financing activitles [Ls] 3,830,71 17,066.88
-_____———;——.______________
Netincrease In cash and cash equivalents (A+Brc) 132122 737.5¢

Cazh and cash equivalents a< at the beginning of the year 1,212.69 47515
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,533,91 1,212.69

T Lamen
Noies:

1) Components of cash and cash equivalents As at March 31,2021 Asat March 31, 2020
Cash o hand .08 ata

Balance with banks
In current accounts 2,184,023

. 9B7.27

Incash eredit 360980 235.30

Total cash and cash equivalen|s 2,533.91 1,212.69
T =23381 000 1am36y

) Cash fow staterment has heen prepared under indirect method 35 setout Inthe IND A% 7 "Cash Flow Statement”,

1) For dizclosure of investing and finaneing ac tvities that do nat raquire the use of cash and cash equivalents, refar note A3
Summary of significapt aceounting policies and accompar 'ing notes are an integral part of the financial statement;
Thisis the Cash Flow Statement referred to in pur report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & (o LLP For ard an bahat of the Board of Directors of

Frrm Registration o, OOL076N/NSO00T 3 DM Finance Private Limited
Chariered Accountants
'a

Mafiish Gujral Shivashish Cj tterjen Yuvrajf Chanakya
Partner {It, Managin Director) ) {1t M
*Aembership Mo, 105117 : DIN: 32623460 (&1
Flate: N Zj) YoLK Placi ;
Date: September 3, 2021 Date: September 3, 2021
[ Mg |
N ! Krishan Gapal 5
o / (Chief Financial Ocl:f'i’(;L]/ {Co .
g J M. Mo (
Siace: Mumbai Place: a ORI € &pe) Place:. (U UG RAM

Zate: September 3,0 Date: e Q':' ef\3, 202] Date; September 3, 2021




DM Finance Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amount i g, In millions, unless otherwise statad)

= capital {refer pote 22

\ As at April 1,2019 Change during the year As at March 31,2020 Change during the year | ag at March 31,2021
m‘ MR ] e

¥ ir=fer note 23)

Reserves and surplus
Capital redemption
reserve

Statutory
reserve itfs 45.

IC of RBI At

Retained earnings

2,895.74
L022.22
{72.85)

16,646,06
1,022,22
{72.85)
33.54
77.26
1,564.75
54.37

TEEEEEd during the year
weserson of COPSs

T o enuity shares

ety reversed on CCDs/CCPSs
S meerve

7726
1,564.75

TEEE ncome for the year

TLes dyting the year
s zauity shares

8,947.58

* of Change in Equity referred to in OUF report of even date

L oup For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
= J07EN/NSO001 OMI Finance Private Limited

erjee
{Jt. Managin Director)
DIN: 02623460

Place: pye=p0 YoRK
Date: September 3, 2021 a

K pal
(Chief Financial Officer)
’ M. Ho Az4789
Place: (uRUGA MM Place: CryRucRAPA

& Oate: Septamber 3, 2021 Date: September 3, 2021



SA Finance Private Limited
%25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

i

Corporate information

OMI Finance Private limited {the “Holding Company” or “Parent Company”) is a Company domiciled in India as a
crivate limited company. The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India {'RBI') 25 a non-deposit accepting
ron-banking financial company ar NBFC-ND under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, The Company is engaged in
the business of providing leans to corporates and other iending activities. The Holding company together with its
subsidiaries Iisted in Note 2(c )(ii} are hereinafter tollectively referred to as the "the Group’.

~farmation on subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements is given in Note 2{C}{ii).
33sis of preparation

Statement of compliance in preparation of financial statements
7=z consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
~ziitied under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 [as amended from time to time).

Trzse financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board
=7 Lirectors on September 3, 2021, )

Tz zonsolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through
2inar comprehensive income [FYOCI) instruments, other financial assets held for trading and financial assets and
zallities designated at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL), all of which have heen measured at fair valye.

Frasentation of financial statements

T=2 Croup presents its balance sheet in order of liguidity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reparted
zr2ts in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when Ind AS specifically permits the same or it has
z wazonditionally legally enforceable rights to offset the recognized amounts without betng contingent an future
#o2nts Similarly, the Group offsets the income and expenses and reports the same on a net basis when permitted by

w2 =5 specifically,

“mnciples of Consolidation

Tmz consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and all its
Ziaries (from the date contrel is gained), being the entities that it controls. Control is evidenced where the
3ris exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
= those returns through its powar over the investee. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give tha
v iodirect relevant activities, which significantly affect the entity returns, The financial statements of subsidiaries
crzpared for the same reporting year as the parent company. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
2l statements of subsidiaries to align the accounting policies in line with the accounting policies of the Parent
P

2nt Campany holds 100% shareholding in DM| Capital Private Limited and DMI Management Private Limited
2 are no contractual arrangements which rebut the control of the Parent Company over its subsidiaries.

Tu2 Zroupre-assess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that thera are changes
zr more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
27T subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expense

* Dussdiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from
:22 the Group gains control until the date the Oroup ceases to control the subsidiary,

7sohdated financial staternents are prepared using the uniform accounting palicies for like transactions and
'n o simitar circumstances and necessary adjustments required far deviations, to the extent possible unless
sTmareniz stated.

g szlone financial statements of the Holding Company and the subsidiaries have been combined on a line-hy-
i by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group
“aETles and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses,

@ “azacal statements of subsidiaries acquired during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
sm the effective date of acquisition, intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealized income and
=i 27iang from Intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financia} Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021

i} The consqlidated financial statements inclyde results of the following subsidiaries and assoclate of the Holding
Company, consolidated in accordance with Ind AS 110 ‘Consolidated Finzncial Statements’,

Name of the Company

Country of Incorporation Consolidated ag

| Proportion of ownership as at
Il reporting date

DM! Capital Private Limiteg I 100.00%

| 100.00%

DMI Management Private Limited
DM Alternatives Private Limited

3. Significant accounting pelicies

(8) Use of estimates, judgements, and assumptions

and accompanying disclosyres and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reparting period. Estimates
ns a

In particular, information aboyt significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical ludgements in applying
accounting policies that haye the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the finaneial statements js

i} Impairment toss on financial assets
Judgment is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of futyre cash flows when
determining an impairment allowance for loans and advancas. In estimating these cash flows, the Group makes
judgments about the borrower’s financial situation, These estimates are hased on assumptions about 3 humber of
factors such as credit quality, lavel of arrears etc. and actual resyltg may differ, resulting in future changes to the
impairment allowance. Refer note 6.1 for further details of the increased uncertainty relating to the estimation of
impairment of loan portfolio due to the impact of the pandemic as at March 31, 2020,

ii) Business Model Assumption 2‘_
Classification and Measurement of financial assets depends on the resylts of the 5PP and the husiness model tests.
The Group determines the business model at 2 level that reflects how Broups of financial assats are managad

, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated, The Group monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of
the business for which the asset was held, Monitoring is part of the Group's contin uous assessment of whether the
business madel for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate ang if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and S0 a prospective change to the classification
of those assets,

ifi} Defined employee benefit assets and liahilities
The cost of the defined benefit Bratuity plan and ather post-employment banefite and the present valye of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuatiops. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the tuture. These include the determination of the
discount rate, futyre salary increases and mortality rates. Due tg the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. Alj assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

iv} Share Based Payments
Estimating fair value for share-based Payment transactions requires determination of the maost appropriate
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

ib)

(d)

i)

v

determination of the mast appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected lifa of the share option,
volatility and dividend vield and making assumptions about them.

v] Fair value measurement

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sellan asset or paid to transfer 2 liability
in an orderly transaction in the principle {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions (i.e. the exit price] regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance
sheet cannot he measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
technigues including the Discounted Cash Flow ("DCF”) model. The inputs to these models are taken from
ohservable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is raguired in establishing
fair values. Judgernents include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent cormprises cash in hand, demand deposits and time deposits with original maturity of less
than three months held with bank, debit balance in cash credit account,

Recognition of income and expense

i} Interest income
The Group earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue bs recognized to the axtent that it is probable that the
economic henefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Interest revenue is recoghized using the effective interest methed (E1R). The effective interest method calculates the
amortized cost of 5 financial instrument and allocates the interest income. The effactive interest rate is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The calculation takes into
account all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or
incremeantal costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future
credit lossas,

The Group calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than
credit-impaired assets. When 2 financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 2', the
Group calculates the interest to the extent recoverable. If the financial assets cures and is no longer cradit-impaired,
the Group reverts to calculating interest income.

-

Interest expense

Interest expense includes 1ssue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carr\'ﬁng value of the financial liability
and amaortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions
payable to arrangers and other cxpenses, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue
of & financial liability.

) Other charges and other interest
Overdue charges including penal interest is recognized on realization basis.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend,

—

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or cantains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
rlght to control the use of an identified asset for a periad in exchange for consideration.

Where the Group is lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

A




IA Sinance Private Limited
%tz to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Right-of-use assets

Tne Group recognises right-of-use atsats at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the underlying asset
: available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
=sses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
zas¢ liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
23te less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the |ease
zzrm, The right-of-use assets are alse subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in

Zaction m (i) tmpairment of non-financial assets.

¢+ Lease Liability
4t the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the presentvalue of lease
c3yments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
s3yments) less any lease incentives receivable, and amounts expectad to be paid under residual value guarantees.

= calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
symmencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lzase is not readily determinable. After the
cammencement date, the amount of lease habilitics is increased to reflect the acoretion of interest and reduced for
1o lease payments made, In addition, the carrying amount of fease liahilities is remeasurad if there is a modification,
= zhange in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
7 anindex or rate used Lo determing such lease payments).

= Short Term Lease
The Group applies the short-term l2ase recognition exemption 1o its short-term leases {i.e., those leases that have a
2ase termaf 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain s purchase option). Lease payments
za shork-term leases are recognised as and when due,

- Praperty, plant and equipment {PPE) and Intangible assets

PPE

ZPF are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment Iosses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase
zrice, borrowing cast if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
sandition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebate are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Zains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
zroceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
335e2ts is derecognized.

Intangible assets ”

atangible assets acquired separately are measured on inltial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
~tangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization ahd accumulated impairment losses, if any.
nternally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, ara not capitalized and expenditure
: reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Zains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
=.sposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation

Dzpreciation on PPE is calculated on a written down value {WDV) basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful
ves of the assets, prescribed under Schedule [1te the Companies Act, 2013 which also represents the estimate of
tne useful life of the asscts by the management,

=PE costing upto Rs.5,000 individually are fully depreciated in the yvear of purchase.

The Group has used the following rates 1o provide depreciation on its fixed assets.




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

@)

Useful lives estimated by Rate of Depreciation
the management (years|

Furniture and fixtures 10 25.89%
Computers 3 £63.16%
Vehicles 8 31.23%
Office equipment S 45.07%

Leasehold improvements and allied office equipment’s are amortized on a straight-tine basis over useful life
estimated by management.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of deprecistion of PPE are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized on a WDV basis a period of five years from date when the assats are available for use.
The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each financial
year.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

A proviston is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made,
Provistens (excluding retirement benefits) arg not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.

Contingent liability is disclosed for (1} Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly
within the control of the Group or (2) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required te settle the obligation or 2 reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be made,

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statemients.

e
Retirement and othet employee benefits >
Past-employment benefits are classified as either defined contribution plans or defind benefit plans. Under a defined
contribution plan, the Group’s only obligation 1s to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions
if the fund does not held sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and investment risks fall
on the employae. The expenditure for defined contribution plans is recognized as expense during the period when
the employee provides service, Under a defined benefit plan,it is the Group's obligation to provide agreed benefits
to the employees. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Group. The present value of the defined
benefit obligations is calculated using the projected unit credit method.

The Group operates following emplo',res_: béneﬁt plans:

i) Employee Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payahle to the
provident fund scheme as expenditure when an employee renders the related service.

ii) Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Group provides for a Jump sum paymant to aligible
employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the (ast drawn salary and years of employment
with the Group. TherGroup's obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for
based on actuarial valuation,

Met interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used 1o measure the defined benefit

obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. An actuarial valuation involvas making various assumgptions
|

v X



DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial $tatements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(i

0

that may differ from actuai developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its leng-term rnature, these
liabitities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reperting date.

Re-measurament, comprising of actuarial gains and |osses, are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or cradit to retained earnings through OC! in the period in which they ogcur, Re-measurements
are nat reclassified to profit and loss in subsequant periods.

i} Leaves

Entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to the em ployees. Leave entitlements can be availed
while in service of employment subject to restriction on the maximum number of accumulations. The Group
determines the liability for such accumulated leave entitlements on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary at the Year end.

Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax,

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1961, Income Computatien and Disclasure Standards and
other applicable tax laws, The tax rates and tax laws used (o compute the amount are those that are enacted at the
reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or Joss is recognised outside profit or
loss {either in other comprehensive incame or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in cotrelation to the
underlying transaction either in OCi or directly in equity,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability meathad on temporary differences hbetween the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carryfng amounts for financiai reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred taw assets are recognised to the extent that itis probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferrad tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date ang are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based an tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively anacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred-tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (rither in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OC! or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsetif 3 legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Earning per share

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 an Earnings per share, Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributabla to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period, Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity
share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting year. hb =
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K

"

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of sharas outstanding du ring the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Share based payments

Equity-settied share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date,

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based paymentsis expensed on a straight line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the Share option outstanding account,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to wustomers, are inltially recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Group bacomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument, Loans and advances to
customers are recognised when funds are disbursed to the customers. The classification of financial instruments at
initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the mahagement’s intention when acquiring
them. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four"categories:
[

+  Debtinstruments/Loan portfolio at amortized cost

¢ Debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income {FYTOCI)

*  Equity Instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
{FVTOCI) .

Debt Instruments/Loan portfolio at amortised costs

A ‘debtinstrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

¢ The asset is held within 2 business model whose ohjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

*  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest {SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Business model: The business madel reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to generate cash flows.
That is, where the Group’s objective is solely to callect the contractual cash flows from the assets, the sama is
measured at amortized cost or where the Group’s objective is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash
flows arising from the sale of assets, the same is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FAVTOCH. If neither of these is applicable {e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets
are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL,

NIREA
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SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows (i.e. measured at amortized cost),
the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows reprasent solely payments of principal and interest
(the “Spp| test’), In making this assessment, the Group considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of maney, credit risk,
other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic Jlending arrangement, Where the
contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are Inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the
related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, The amortizeq Cost, as
mentioned above, is computed using the cffective interest rate method,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effactive
Interest rate (EIR) method less impairment, Amertised cost is caleulated by taking inte account any discount or
premium on agquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
interest income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognisad in the staterent
of profit and lass,

The measurement of credit impairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model described in Note:
Impairment of financial assets {refer note 3 (m)).

Debt lnstruments at FYOCI

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FYTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:
The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and fair value thanges
relating to market movements selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPP|,

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as wefl as at each reporting date at fair
value. Falr valye movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income {OCD. However, the Group
recognizes interastincome, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain orloss in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. On deracognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC js reclassified from the
equlty to Statement of Profit and Loss. nterest earned whilst helding FYTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
Income using the EIR methogd.

Equity investments and Mutual Sfunds
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are fheasured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
are classifled as held at FYTPL, Forall other equity instrements, the Group may make an jrrevoeable election to present
in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair values The Group makes such election on an
instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is (frevocable,

-
If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair valye changes on the instrument,

excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There {5 ng recycling of the amounts fram 0C to Statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment, However, tha Group may transfer the cumulative gain or lass within equity.

Financial Liabilities

Initiel recognition and measurement

value and in the case of loans and Botrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group's
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings incfuding bank overdrafts,

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are sy bsequently carried at smaortized cost using effective interest method.

Vo &
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Redlassification of financial ossets and liabHities

The Group doesn't reclassify jts financial assets subsequent to their initjal recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line, Financiai liabilities are never
reclassified,

De-recognition of financial asset and financial liability

Financial Assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of 3 financial asset or part of a group of similar financiai assets) is de-
recognised when the rights to receive cash flaws fram the financial asset have expired, The Giroup also de-recognises
the financial asset if it has transferred the financtal asset and the transfer qualifies for de-racognition,

The Group has transferrad the financial asset if, angd only if, either:

= Mthas transferred its contractual rights to recejve cash flows from the financial asset
or

- Itretains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash fiows in full without
rmaterial delay to a third party under a ’pass-through' arrangement,

Pass-through afrangements are transactions whereby the Graup retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of a financial asset {the 'original asset’), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to ona or
more entities {the "eventyuat recipients'), when all of the following three conditions are met;

= The Group has no obligation to pay amounts ta the sventual recipients unless it has tollectad equivaient amounts
from the original asset, excuding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plys
accrued interest at market rates,

- The Group cannot sell or pledge the original asset othar than as security to the evantual recipients.

= The Group has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventyal reclpients without material delay.

- The Group has transferred substantially ail the risks and rewards of the asset
or * \

= The Group has nejther transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred contral of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the differonce between: {2) the carrying amount (measured at
the date of derecognition] and (b} the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new fiability
assumed) Is recognised in the statement of profit or loss account.

Financlal Liabilities

| HUKDAI
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{m) Impairment of financial assets
i) Owverview of principles for measuring expected credit loss {(“ECL”) on financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group is requirad to measure expected credit lasses on its financial Instruments
designated at amortized cost and fair value through other cornprehensive incoma. Accordingly, the Group is required
to determine lifetime losses on financial instruments where credit risk has increased significantly since its arigination.
For other instruments, the Group is required to recognize credit losses aver next 12 month period. The Group has an
option to determine such losses on individual basis or collectively depending upon the nature of underlying portfolic.
The Group has a process to assess credit risk of all exposures at each year end as follows:

Stage |

These represent exposures where there has not been a sighificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reporting date. The Group has assessed that all standard exposures {i.e. exposures with
n¢ overdues) and exposure upte 30 day overdues fall under this category. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group
measures ECL on such assets over next 12 months.

Stage Il
| Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classified under
this stage. Based on empirical evidence, significant increase in credit risk is witnessed after the overdues on an
exposure axcead for a period more than 30 days. Accordingly, the Group classifies all exposures with overdues
exceeding 30 days at each reporting date under this Stage. The Group measures lifetime ECL on stage Il loans.

Stage Il

All exposures having overdue balances for a period exceeding 90 days are considered to be defaults and are classified
under this stage. Accordingly, the Group measures lifetime losses on such exposure. Interast revenue on such
contracts is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amaortized cost {net of impairment allowance)
instead of the gross carrying amount. The method is similar to Stage 1) assets, with the probability of default set at
100%.

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Group applies the same principles for
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Methodology for calculating ECL
The mechanics of the ECL caleulation invalve the use of following key elements;

Probability of default {PD] - The probability of dafault is an estimafe of the Iilielihood of default over 3 given time horlzon
{12-month or lifetime, depending upon the stage of the asset). PO estimation is done based on historical internal data
available with the Group. .

Exposure at default (EAD) — It represents an estimate of the exposure of the Group at a future date after considering
repayments by the counterparty befare the default event occurs. The outstanding balance as at reporting date is
considered as EAS by the Group. Considering the PD determined above factors in amount at default, there is no separate
requirement to estimate EAD,

Loss given default (LGD) — It represents-an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event of default
occurs, The Group uses historical loss data/external agency LGD for identified pools for the purpose of calculating LGD.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the
economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Group analyses if there is any relationship between key
ecanamic trands like GDP, Unemployment rates; Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with
the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Group based onits internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD
rates by the Group may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in the
methadology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably,
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in)

ii)

Definition of default and Cure

The Group considers financlal instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage Il {credit—lmpaired} for ECL
calculations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments, The Group may also
classify a loan in Stage M if there js significant deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or an
assessment that adverse markeat conditions may have a dispropartionately detrimental offect on the loan
fepayment, Thus, as a part of the gualitative assessiment of whether an instrument s in default, the Group also
considers a variety of instances that may indicate deiayin or non-repayment of the loan. When such events occur,
the Group carefully considers whether the event shouid result in treating the borrower as defaulted and therefore
assessed as Stage N for ECL calculations ar whether Stage )is appropriate.

Classification of accounts into Stage Il is done when there is a significant increase in eredit risk since fnitial
recognition, typically when contractual repayments are more than 30 days past due,

it is the Group's policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ ang therefore re-classified out of Stage Nl or
Stage l when none of the defauit criteria which resulted in their downgrade are presant,

Collateral repossessed

The Group's policy is to sell repossessed assets. Non-financial assets repossessed are transferred to asset held for sale
at fair value less cost to sell or principal outstanding whichever is lower at repossession date.

Write-offs

Financial-assets are written off either partially or in their entirety anly when the Group has stopped pursuing the
recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the decumulated Joss allowance, the difference is first treated
s an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the ErOss carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries
are credited to profit and loss account. '

Non-financial assat

The carrying amount of assets s reviewed at each balance sheet date if thera js any indication of impairment based
on Internal/external factars, An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the Ereater of the assets, net selling price and value in use, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted ta their presentvalie using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into actaunt, if available, If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation maode| fs used.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price at the Mmeasurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a liability, in an
erderly transaction between market participants st the measurement date.

The Group's accounting policies require, measurement of certain financial / non-financial assets and liabilities at fair
values (either on z Fecurring or non-recurring basis). Alsa, the fair values of financial instryments measured at
amortized cost are required to be distlosed in the said financial statements.

The Group is required to classify the fair valuation method of the finaneial / nan-financial assets and liabilities, either
measured or disclosed at falr valye in the financial statements, using a three leve! fair-value—hierarchv{which reflects
the significance of inputs used in the measurement). :

Accordingly, the Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances andg for which sufficient
data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inpute,

Allassets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy described as follows-
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* level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are ungdjusted quoted prices from
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the measurement date, The Group
considers markets as active anly if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity
of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the
balange sheet date.

* Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived
from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire peried of the instrument's life.

¢ Leve! 3 finandial instruments - include one or more unohservable input where there is little market activity for
the asset/liability at the measurement date that s significant to the measurament as 5 whaole,

{0} Dividend

The Group racognizes a (iability to make cash distributions to equity hoiders when the distribution is authorised and
the distribution is no fonger at the discretion of the Group. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the
date of approval by the sharehalders and interim dividends are recorded a5 a liability on the date of declaration by
the Group’s Board of Directors.

{p} Foreign Currency Translation
Foreign currency transactions and balances

initial recognition: .
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion:

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate, Nen-monetary items which are carried in terms
of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated In a
foretgn currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

Exchange differences:

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, or on reporting such monetary items of Group at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported i previous financial
statements, are recoghized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise. B
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& Cash and cash equivalents

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Zash on hand 008 Q.12
Zadance with banks

- balance in cash credit accounts 369.20 225.30

- balance In current accounts 2,164.03 987.27

2,533.91 1,212.69

5 ®ank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Jeposit with original maturity of mere than 3 months but less than 12 months* 267.21 15.20
267.21 15.20

“ Deposits belng lien marked against corporate eredit cards and bank guarantee.

§ Trade receivables

-rsecured considered goad 62.11 39.96
62.11 39.96

-5 Impairment loss allowance
ol 62.11 39.96
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=
Asat March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Amortised cost Fair valug Total Amartisad cost Fair value Total
thraargh other thraugh other
comprehensive comprehensive
income income
4. Tgn loans
Zrezarate loans 13,764.95 142.83 13,907.78 12,461.25 120.7¢ 12,582.01
somer (oang 19,528.30 - 19,528.30 22,141.27 - 22,141.27
Tz iA] Gross 33,293.25 142.83 33,436.08 34,602.52 120.76 34,723.28
=1 mpairment loss allowance 2,057,587 4.60 2,022.47 1,365,92 A.BS 1,369.77
o= {A) Net 21,275.38 135.23 31,413 .61 33,236.60 116,91 33,353.51
. a.
wr23 by tangible assets and intangible assets 13,764.95 142.83 13,907.78 12,461.25 120076 12,582.01
mrarirad 19,523.30 - 19,528 30 22,141.27 - 22,141.27
Tz (B} Gross 33,293,725 142,83 33,436.08 34,602.52 120.76 34,723.28
-z mpairment loss allowance 4,017.87 4.60 202247 1,365.92 3.85 1,369.77
T=3 (B) Met 31,275.38 138,23 31,413.61 33,236.60 116.91 33,353.51
2 Fzotor
Slmosiactor - . . . - -
— 313,203.0% 142.83 3313808 3A4,602.52 120076 34,722,289
Tars () Gross 33,293.25 142.83 33,436.08 34,602.52 120.76 34,733.38
' = ~pairment loss allowance 2.017.87 4.60 2,022.47 1,365.92 3.85 1,369.77
Tos IC) Net 31,275.38 138.23 31,413,651 33,236.60 116.91 53,393.51
3 33,263,25% 142.83 3343608 34,602.52 120.76 34,723.28
“ma (D) Gross 33,233.25 14283 33.436.08 34,602.52 120.76 34,723.28
#: mpairment loss allowance 2,017.87 4.60 2022 47 1,365.92 3.85 1,369.77
T3 (D) Net 31,275,328 138.23 31.413.61 33,236.60 116.91 33,353.591

znd receivables are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or varishls interest ineome for the Holding Campany. The carrying value may be
=24 by thanges in the credit risk of the counterparties.

©=iorzd Lloans granted by the Holding Cownpany are secured by equitable mortgage/registered mortgage of the property and/for undertaking to ereate a secutlty
o7 3 personal guarantees and/ar hypothecation of assets andfor receivables andfar pledge of shares/debenture units and ather securlties,

© 7= -ziding Company has granted certain loans to employees amounting to Ks. 12,14 millions in corrent year {previous yesr: Re. 18 81 millions]

w wzirste loan portfolio ingludes non-convertible debentures of Rs. 2,385 18 millions {previous year: Rs, 2,426.45, millions)

g the year, the Holding Company invoked the shares pledged a5 security agalnst the Hon-performing laan glven to one of the borrower. The management of
== =z.zing Company intents to recover the outstanding dues from the said borrawer, The management of the Holding Company, if required to recover, shall sel|
T2 znaies and after recovering all the overdues on the loan, the Holding Company intends to refund the surplus (if any) to the said barrower,

\
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- wmprment allowance for loans and advances to borrowers

(Al Arount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)
ey of laans by stage distributian isas follaws:
T ————=ans v slege distribution is as fol)
March 31, 2021
‘Cacamar 10ans
= g e S anl e weea| o] el s
o ] R Y Y T
) I Y Y i

Stage 1 m

: 7 O Vs W T BT Ty e asezor]

== ~caimen loss allowance _ 63742 | 161886 | 15219 2624
S Saerving amount _ 43414 | 12,2932 m

—— 7% ol eredit substitutes and complilso convertible debentuies b stage distribution is 35 follows-
March 31, 2029
Sl cobvstitutes and compulsory convertible debentures
Stage 1 Stlage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2
2281527] 23064 35093 | 291415 376024 _mm
| 153936 w07 | tea05| z3em20

—=T =zamment loss allowance

e Seerying amount

S S eng Amount

161.35
— 7
2813

SRR Srying amaunt apening balance
—— =
Y Lals ariginated, MNetted off for repayments and loans

= —==d durihg the year
____—-_E_._v_“————.______‘

Tz fom Stage 1
TSrdme: o Stape 2
Sl om Stage 3
W CETEINE arnount closing Iﬁnce

e laans

1.081.39
. (2 78]

o e

TS Srrving amount opening balance
b N Y originated, Matted off far r&payments angd |ogns
3 during the year

=
Slage I Stage 2 Stage 3
s cerrying amount opening balance 226024 | |7 33em 2,599.24 mm_ 3,496.87

T B originated, Nelted off for repayments od laans 301.97 - 314.91 1352.18)
s o g —_m—m_
T Tam Stage 3 —— _

= o= om Stage-3 _ _——‘ __
S ey amownt tlosing balance 2.281.52 280.68 mm_mm
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(AN Amount in Rs, In millions, unless otherwise stated)

= a2 33 of changes In the £CL allgwan c&s Inrelation {5 consumer ang corparate tending fexcept Credit Substitubes any Compulsory Convartible Debentures) is, as follaws:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cawzner loans
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
s carying amount apening balance 206.57 142.56 200.78 G401 2936 1.26 161.36 191.38
~*= ¢z = ECL due tp change in ECL model rate | 18 25§ 10271 - 83.45 1036 99 . 11.35
v lisels originated, Metted cff for repayments and loans (101 99) 175.44) 154620 1,365.37 36275 161 13 237.21 768.10
S=mosesad during the year ]
Sarzras from Stage 12.07) 16225 - 159,18 {207.92) 3338 174 54 -
s from Stage 2 0z1 (10,73) - (10.51) 278 {54.23) 5044 .
o Stage 3 = Q.08 - 0.08 123 0.12 11,35} -
B oF . = 11,832.58)| [1,637.58) = - {33142)]  (331.42)
SERE CETYING amaunt clasing balance a2.47 32154 - 404.01 206.57 142,66 230.78 G40.01
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
—awwwrats loans
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stape 3 Total
S ceerying amount apening balapce i52.19 26,29 £51.34 729,77 110 52 3562 25019 396.43
—wrg= - Illdue g change in ECL model rate 195 60 2§29 483.89 3024 574 003 1611
Www Lzets originated, Netted aff for repayrnents gnd fcans 407 01 {22t) 404,80 24799 138 20 102 69 583.88
ams—e—es during the vear
St tam Stage 1 - - - - 1230.21} 1393 32523 -
~ e Sam Stage 2 26.24 [26.24) E - - {1s7.30) 16730 E
S S om Stags 3 - . . - 245 . {2.45) -
[ l—n T2 = - = = - £ {291 85} (291.65)
S g amount closing balance 28104 B 637.42 1,618.46 15218 26.24 551,34 T39.77
# F3.0s 2f changes in the ECL allowances of Investment, i relatron to Ciedit Substitutes and Compulsary Convertible Debentures is, 35 follows:
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
e -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 2 Toral
W doagece opening balange 23.00 - 177,95 200,95 3545 45,20 80.75
e = 2 due to change in ECL model rate 280,92 6552 346.51 (3.25) - - 13.25)
S 7 cmw issets originated, natted off for repayiments and loans A0 79 005 @82 47.66 163.74 45 k4] . 123.45
= during the yaar
e mam Stage t {2.52) 252 - {177 95 - 17745 -
St = Stage 2 . . . s - . . E
e
et o Stage 3 - - * - X = - =
B e dosing balance 34336 257 250,29 595.12 2300 - 17795 20.95

-

Fzaratzterm loans |he Grolp ks in the business of extending secired loans mainly backed by mortgage of propetty (residantial
W v th2 above mentioned collateral, the Group hiolds othar types of collataral and credit enhancements, such as erosscollaterali
S e zuzrantees of parent/holding/group companies, personal guarantees uf Bromatersipartners/propristors,

i

OF commmercial).

sation on other assets of the borrower,

fiypothecation of recevables via escrow account and

S mmme coarse of business, thie Group dioes not nhysically repossess properties ar other assets,
= with legal mianz to recover due laan TEREYmEnts.

<= loan repayments are more than 96 days past due, repo

- ===z==d ol in the manner praseribed in

T
— —
A———

but recovery efforts are made on delinquent loans through collsetian

ssession of property

may be nitisted Under the provisions of the SAREAES] Act MI02, Re-possessed
the SARFAES) act e feciper outstanding debt




Dl Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amountin Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 rvssiments

Amortised cost Al fair value At fair value SulHedal Gthers Toal
Whrough profitand  through other
8 31 Marth 31, 202 loss comprehensive
neome
A
Saly instruments
Investments in Assaciates
Tauty thares in Oh Allernatives Privats Liowted * - 13973 125.73
Onhers
Sawily shares in DM Consunier Cred|l Privete Limiled 327 3.27 327
Iquily shares in Menally Bharat Engloesring Company Limited 2512 . 2511 512
Cauily shares in Flash Eleckronics Private Limiled - - 304 40 304,40 204,40
Touity shares in Alchemlst Asset Reconsiructioh Company Linkad 34 54 226 20 260,70 260.70
Mhytual funds
1 354,230 unlts In HOFC Ligued Fund - Qirect #lan - Girowth 7.bE3.34 766339 7.653.39
1 893,629 unils in 380 Lqu Fund Direct Growth &,100.55 6.100,5% 5, 10055
213,248 units in Baroda Pioneer Liquid Fund . Plan B Growth 405 29 505,24 505.19
L BRG 137 units e X101 Prudential Liguid Fund Dmect Plan Growth 507 74 50774 S02.74
bl instrumenis
500 Urats of State Bank ol Indra Series - 1l non-convertible debenture 52675 S1E.75 526.75
T 500 Cormpulsory converlshle debentures i Flach Electronics India A2 47 82647 B26,497
“rvate Limited of face value Rs 100,000 each
Credit Substitutes I
472 ynits of Panchshes! Bulidtech Private Limited of face vale Rs 208 BS 7z 281.58 2B1.58
1000, 000 fully paid up
300 urts of Radlant Polymears Private Lemaled of face value Re LOg 12 505.12 - 596.12
1 006,000 fully paid up
529 units of Raheya leon Entertainmant Private Lited of face value 17292 1798 35100 35200
a5 1,000,000 fully pald up
0% unitz of 3aha bstate Develeper Private Linuted of face value A3 565 44 44 30 211.24 Bi1.24
100w, 000 fully paid up
210 units of Fantagy Buildwell Private Limited of {ace valwe Ry 4467 207 46,74 4574
1,000,000 (ufly paid up
her (nstruments
Sequnity receipts 1n Alchemist X Trust 194 11 . 19411 194,11
units of DI AIF Special Oppotlunaties Seheme - 11 41 1101 1101
“atal {A) Gross 2,151.2% 14,996.15 184903 15,016,43 129.73 12,196.16
-5 Impaweenent loss allowance AN 26 192 Bt 59512 595 12
“otal A} Het 1,748.99 14.996.15 1,675.17 18,421.31 120.73 18.551.04
W)
=.+zlmenls pirtside India - . - .
=a5iments in India 2,151 3% 14,99 15 1,859 03 19,016.43 174 3 19,146.16
Toal [B) Groas 2,151.23 14,396.1% 1.863.03 19,016.43 11873 19,146.16
255 lmparment loss allowance 40 26 . 192 26 595.12 - 50542
Total (8] Met 1,748.99 14,996.15 1E7517 18,421.31 139,73 1.3.5'51,:!4_

mwestment in Assooate i 3 per cquity accounting

wHes
1 Irtdt substitutas are part of financing sctivitbes
Wl Tafer aate 7] for movement of ECL and giose catrying amount ol €C0s and MCDs,

dx



DM Finance Private Limited
lidated Finanelal St for the year ended March 31, 2021,
{8 Ammount In /s, In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the

Amortised cost A fair value At fair value $ubtotal Others Toral
theough profitand  through other
it Maech 31, 2020 lass eompeehansive
mepme
[ ]
Sty Imsirumens
—meants In Associstas
Spadty shares in ORI Alternatives Privabe Limied * - £3 48 %48
ey
Egamy shares in D] Consumer Credil Private Limited 3l 316 T.16
sty shares in McNMally Bharat Enginaaring Company Limited k] - 120 720
Sqamy shares in Flazh Elsetranics Private Limited 25000 250,00 50,00
Selry shares in Alchemist Asset Reconsiruction Company Limited 3450 226 20 250,70 26070
e s
L¥15.360 units in HOFC Liquid Fund - Ditect Man - Grawth Oplion 7482 61 74854 748264
=20 348 units In 5B Liguid Fund Dfrect Growth 4,564,861 &, 65461 4.664.51
& umits in Baroda Pioheer Liquid Fund - Mlan B Growth 036 036 0.6
el amshnnents
T3 Isory comyart lble deh ith Flash Electronics India 773,17 773.1% 17347
St Lirn lted of face value Rs 100,000 fully paid up
St Substitutes
&7, wats of Panchsheel Buildtech Private Limiled of face value R 214 94,58 358,20 36920
0,000 fulky paid up
Bl wnite, of Radiant Polymers Privale Limited of face value B A1 0F 541.08 541,08
- 30, 00 Fully patd up
2 anits of Raheja Icon Entartainment Private Umited of {ace value 16653 172 46 33899 338.99
B 3 200,000 fully paid up
57 wnits of Saha Estale Developer Privale Limited of lace vakue Ry 5209 152 14 504.23 = 504.23
= 330 000 fulby paid up
i wnits of Fantasy Buildwel| Private Limited of fare value Bs 7257 1357 FL57
300,000 Ju lby paid up
e Estuments
Sty receipts in Alchemist Xy Trust 135 00 . 155,00 195.00
vty of DMIAIF Sprecial Dppartunities Scherne 19 80 10,30 10,80
A - Gross 1,440,590 12,395.51 1.682.91 15,471.71 8943 15.563.19
A wpaiment [0ss allowance 104t 24 55 200,95 - 30045
N Nt 133459 12,349.81 1588 34 1527276 a%0.a8 15.362. 24
L ]
s outsids India - - . - E =
Wl in i ndia 1,440.99 12,399.81 168291 547371 45,48 15,563.14
Tt 8} - Grogs 1,840.99 12,349.81 1,682.91 1547311 19.48 15,563.19
. wepaurmarnd boss sllowance 10k 40 - a4 58 200 95 200 95
el N - Hat 1,334.59 1234981 1,588 36 15,272 76 A9 an 1536023

“wm——wel 0 ASsOCRLE i5 35 per equity accounting

- Segmie mpbEtULes are part of (inancing activities
o woie F 1 for movement of ECL and gross carmying amount of CCDs ahd MCDs

[HIRER




DMI Finance Private Limited
Noates te the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In milliens, undess otherwise stated)

s Finangial assets [atamortized cost)

As at
March 31, 2421

As at
March 31, 2020

=, deposit 1117 2104
o sy default guarantee recoverable 1,114 52 1481
Xty 901 35 S038R
Ao 2,032.35 569.73
et tax assets
==esmie Income-tax {net} 23247 154 51
232.47 15451
Zem=ad tax assets
Lesm—ed tax liability
¢ of linancial instruments 19.17 1383
sncein income recognition on uniealized gain on mutual fund Investments 72.79 13,25
T seferred tak Nabilities 91.96 33.08
Zermered tax asset
0 far employes benefits 14.47 Q.70
e in wtitten down vatue as per Companies Act ang Income-tax At 6.54 599
5 stment for processing lee 3081 =
v agamst leasaes 744 196
=zioment |oss allowance 40,90 366,54
~#=¢ fzrward of interest disallowed u.s 948 2567 2567
‘Bms deferred tay ascet 725.23 411.82
ot Zaferred Tax [Liability)/ Asset 633.87 373.74
#wement of deferrad tax assets As at Charged)/ credited  {Charged)/credited As at
March 31, 2020 to statement of 10 other March 31, 2011
profit and loss comprehensive
intome
D S
c ‘e of financial instruments 1383 4.39 106 1318
tetnincorne recognition on unrealized gain on mutual fund Investments 1835 5353 - e
=TT
o =n Far emplayee benehits 9./0 5.39 [0&1) 14,48
S Trenten written down value gs par Companies it and Incomestax Act 599 0.55 - 654
-stment For processing fee < 3081 5 1081
+ against leases 3.96 3.47 - 7.43
xent |oss allowancs 366 50 - 2/74.40 - 640,90
= =113 losses - A
o orward of interest disallowead under section 948 2EET - . 25.67
ol [ret) 378.7a 156.80 {167 533.87
wvement of deferred tav assets As at Charged)f credited  (Charged)feredited As at
March 31, 2019 to statament of to other March 31, 2020
prefit and loss comprehensive
income / other
equity
_EmiT s
companent on CCD and CCPS 54 58 154.58) - .
of financial instroments 4127 {344} {24 .00) 1383
"oz inincome recognition on unrezalized gain on mutual fund Investments 17.01 224 - 19.25
= for employes henefi: 508 310 0,52 270
- ¢ in watten down valug 95 per Campanies Act and Income-tax Act . 422 177 . 599
oo againgt leases 396 - 396
“oermantloss allowance 194 26 17164 . 366,50
©on41s lasses L3z (137 - .
= ‘oeward of interest disallowed under section 948 29.70 (4.03) - 2567
Z==l [net) 123,37 230.85 14.52 37E.74




DM Finance Private Limted
Notes to the consalidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amount in Rs, In milllons, unless otherwise stated)

s=aperty, plant and equipment

Furniture and Camputers Vehicles Qffice equipment Lease hold Right-of-use asset Total
fixtures impraverents
s carrying amvount
iadance as at Lpril 1, 2019 160 19.90 8.4l 15.71 7233 - 115.96
== fagsification adjustment (062} {3,33) - QEs - - {0.30)
L2ETIORS 0.50 972 . 15 6 B8 91 19391 32872
soosals - - [1.06} - - - {1.05)
Zadange as at March 31, 2020 148 1923 5.36 32 141,24 293,91 503.32
Lagions a41 252 - ad47 - - 9,40
szzasals - - - - - - -
#Mance as at March 31, 2021 1.83 37.81 5.36 37251 141.24 29391 512,73
| scosmulated depreclation
| Laance as at dpril 1, 2019 0.59 14.17 4.08 9.23 11.55 - 45.62
| +a=='agsification adjustment (0.03} {133 < .M - - {1.309
| I-2-ze for the year 013 742 @7l G468 12.40 45.24 7136
Trioosals - - (100 - - = {1.00}
Ldance a3 at Mareh 31, 2020 0.89 2026 37g 15.715 20,95 45.24 11568
“=2+ge for the year Q.21 73T Q.48 7Y 16.42 37,96 F0.12
zoosals x - - = = -
| Laiance as at March 31, 2021 0.90 28,03 429 33.02 46,38 #3.20 185.80
‘ st Block
1z March 31, 2020 0.73 9,03 1.57 16.29 111,29 243.67 387.64
| L March 31, 2021 0.93 9.78 1.9 9.43 94.86 210.71 326.92
|
|
‘ = mtangible asséts
Softwara Total
g Larfying aount
Sadance as at Apwil 1, 2019 883 8.63
Fa-assification adjustment 0.20 a30
~setinng 673 673
Irsaasals - -
Taance as at March 31, 2020 15.66 15.66
=3¢ TI0ns 2475 2425
Tonasals - -
Jatmce a5 @t March 31, 2021 39.91 3091
Emvortizatlon
Jaigrie as at April 1, 2019 268 268
Fa— assification adjustrment 120 130
A2 0N - 413 4.13
Jizzzsals ~ ) T
Talanta as at March 31, 2020 - .11 B.11
“aTTons .09 2.00
sEazals + >
Azance as at March 31, 2021 17.11 17141
et Dlock
& March 31, 2020 168 7.55
4r March 31, 2021 22.80 22.80

Noates

| Tremare ng pending contractual commitments to he executed CI;I'I capital ageoynt.
4 Jureg the previous year, some ol the ascets were reclassified as office equipment and intangible assets Irom furniture & fixtures ang computers.
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DM Finance Private Limted
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In miligns, unless atherwise stated)

Other non- financial assets

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Zzpital advance 6.13 9.14
=repald expenses £8.99 46,10
2alances with statutory / government authoritias 693 55.30
Z2lerred rent expenses 0.10 0.10
Zther non-finangial assets 112 243
Total 103.27 11287
Assats held for sale
Assets under settlement 189.85 185.85
189.85 189.85

Ttese assets represent assets acquired from the Holding Company
“omapny had entered intg settlement agreement as a prudent measure by the management whearein the borrower was approached and there was a
—utual cansensus between the Holding Company and borrower ta transfer the asset in the name of the Holding Company towards settlement of the lgan
Fmount.

Trade payables

“=tal outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Smali Enterprises * 110.75 78.68
Tal outstanding dues of Creditors other than Wicrg Erterprises and Senall Enterprises 195.23 164.55
Total 305.98 243.23

" Details of total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises are as follows:
———a715 0F lotal outstanding due
As at As at
niculars

_Pa March 31, 202t March 31, 2020
e principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid te any supplier as at tha end of each 110,75 7868
#counting year, ' ’
Tre amount of interast paid by the buyer in terms of SECLiOoNn 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts -

=* the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day duri ng each accounting year.

TRe amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but

=eyond the appointad day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSIMED A¢ L,

2006,

The amount of interest aceryed ang remaimng unpaid at the end of sach accounting year, . -
The amaunt of further interest remaining due and payahle even In succaeding years, untii such date when the -

=~terest dues as above are actually pald ta the smali enterprise for the purpose of disallowanes 35 2 deductible

“woenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

~

Debt securities {at amortised cost)

Mon convertible debentures (refer note 17.1) 18,551.69 20547.57

Zationally convertible debentures {refer note 17.3] - 2,250.00

18,551,69 22,792 57

Secured ** 498,60 4,744.57

-nsecurad 18.053.00 18,053.00
Tatal 18,551.69 22,297.57

Zebt securities in India 18,551 69 22,797.57
Zzbt securities outside india g -
Tatal 18,551.69 22,797.57

sacured against exclusive floating tharge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Graup of Rs. 725 milllons (previeus year Rs. 7,620.21
= llions),
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DMI Finance Private Limted
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2021
{All Ameunt in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

18 Borrowings (other than debt securities) (at amortised cost)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Secured™
Term loans

Fram banks 1L181.19 182483
Liabilities agalnst leased ascets 242.29 266.45

142348 3,091.28

Borrpwings in India 1,423.4% 3,091.28
Borrowings outside Indla - =
Total 1,423.48 3,091.28

*Secured against exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Group to the extent of Rs. 2,397.07 millions (Previous
sear: Rs. 4,651,98 millions).

Terims of repayment of borrowings as on March 32, 2021 are as follows:

Lender Repayment Rate of interest Security cover Outstanding as on | Outstanding as on
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020

=JFC Bank 16 quarterly 2e%<12% 133% 56.21 131.0a4
Installments

-ZFC Bank 12 monthly =6%<12% 133% E 186.70
installiments

42tak Mahindra Bank 12 quarterly =% 2% 133% - 49.94
installiments

.=on Bank of India 14 guarterly FBH<12% 133% - 248.35
instaliments :

~=an Bank of India 14 quarterly »6%<12% 133% 2717 354,04
installments

4. 3mal Finance Bank 36 monthly >6% 1 2% 110% 0492 162,22
tnstaliments

=_ Zmall Finance Bank 36 manthly »6%<12% 11084 - 191.21
instalirnents

Zr.01 Indian Bank 14 quarterly »RHe129% 123% 25.61 17084
installments

—e i Vilas Bank- (i 12 quarterly % 12% 132% - 166,02
installments

Sz« »f Baroda-| 16 quarterly =R 1 2% 133% I 434,33 737.18
installments

=7+ >f Baroda-2 16 nuarterly 6% 12% 133% 49705
installnznts

—==2. 3 Leyland Finance 36 monthly >6%e12% 110% - 42727
installments

=~ ] 7 monthly 6% 12% 125% 2000 =
mstallments

Total 1,181.1% 1,824.83




DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes ta the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amount in Rs, In millions, unless otherwlse stated)

13 Otherfinancial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due

- Debt securities

- Borrowings other than debt securities
Expenses payabis
Other financial liabities

20 Pravisions
Pravision for gratuity
Provision for compensation absencas

. Other non-financial liabitilies
Statutory dues payable
Others*

Total

As at As at
March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020

156.43 215,41
0.67 6.34

95.55 69.20
382,68 197.92
635.33 488.87
2324 17.46
3427 21.08
57.51 38.59
44.73 42.58
292.54 174.69
337.27 217.27

" include processing fee refundable to channel partners, advance recaived from borrowers and amount collected from

Jorrowers as Debt service reserve account {DSRA}.
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OMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consclidated Finangial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Equity share ¢apital
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares Amaunt No. of shares Amount
Autharizad share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 96, 50,00, 004 9,650.00 ©6,50,00,000 9,650.00
Compulsorily convertible preferenca shares of Rs. 10 sach 3,501,00,000 350 00 3,50,00,000 350.00
1,00,00,00,000 10,000.00 1,00,00,00,000 10,900.00
Issued, subs<ribed #nd paid up
Fully called-up and pafd-up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 64,20,35,533 6,420 36 55.89.79.166 5.589.79
Sub total (A} 64,20,35,533 6,420.36 55,89,79,166 5,589.79
Partly called-up and paid-up
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each 5,73.15.400 16.22 57215400 3.15
Sub total [B) 5,73,15.400 1£.22 573,15 ap0 3.15
Total [ar8) £9,93,50,933 6,436.58 61,62,94,566 5,592.94

The reconclliation of equity shares eutstanding at the beginning and at the gnd of the reporting year

Balance at the beginning of year 61,62,94 566 5592494 52,09,57,897 5,200.58
Shares issued during the year 8,30,56,367 83057 7,52,79,865 18179
Shares issved pursuant to conversion of compulsorily convertible preference - . 2,00,56,804 20057
shares

First call money called on party paid up shares = 13.07 - -
Balance at the end of year 69,93,50,933 6,436.58 61,62,94,566 5,592.94

Shares held by holding Compaiy

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares % holding Ne. of sharas % holding
DM Limited 51,98,89,603 74.34% 43,89,79,922 71.12%
51,98 89,602 74.34% 43,89,39 933 F1.22%

A5 per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ membets and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding repr esents both legal and benefirial ownarships of shares -

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Nare of the shareholder As ot March 31, 2021 As at Mareh 31, 2020
Mo, af shares % holding Ma. of sharas % holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 2ach fully paid up

DI Linnited 51,02 25 503 74.34% 43,89,39922 FL22%
NIS Ganesha 5.4 6,47.35 441 9.26% 6.47,35.441 10 50%
KW jrefer (i} below) 5,73,15,400 8.20% 5,73,15.400 9.30%

Note: Ag per recards of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from sharehelders regarding beneficial
interest, the sbove shareholding represents both (agal and beneficial own erships of shares : .

-
During the previous year, 57,315,400 equity shares of Rs. 10 each issved on parthy-paid up basis where subseription amoynt being received on allotment was Re 32,11
millions as paid up value of Rs. 0.56 per share inclusive of premlum of R 0.51 pet share calculated propartionately. Further during the current year, the Board of Directors
of the Holding Company made the first call of ks 2.32 aer equity shares (including Rs. 2.09 per share on arcount of securlty premium) on 57,315,400 patthy paid equity
shares. Accordingly, the Holding Company recelved an amaunting to Rs. 133,13 million.

During the current year, the Holding Campany has issued 23,056,367 equ ity shares tomprising of #0,942,631 of Rs. 10 per share 2t Rs. 116,36 per share {including premium
of Rs. 106.36 per share} and 2,106,686 equity shares of Rs. 10 per share at R 113.34 per share {including Rs. 103.34 per share]. The amount receivad on these ksuas
aggregates to Rs. to Rs, 9,658.08 million.

The Holding Company had issued 2,7783,195 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares {“CCPS™) namely Series B, Series C, Serias D, Series E, Series F and Series G te
different holders from time to time. As per the terms of issue of CCPS, the CCPS were converted Into 2,00,56,804 ardinary equity shares of the Company on Novermnber 8,
2019. R

Rights, preferences and cestrictions

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shara is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend
propased by the Board of Directors is subject ta the approval of the shaieholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liguithation of the Holding
Campaniy, the holder of equity shares will be entitied tg receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will
be in proportion to the number of the equity shares held by the shareholders

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the five yadrs

The Holding Company has not issued any shares pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash nor allotted as fully paid up by the wiy of bonus shares and
there has not been any buy back of shares in the current period and \he immediately preceding four vears

(1




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

&8 Other equity

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Securities premium 23,495.35 14,547.77
Capital redemption reserve 2121 8121
Statutory reserve u/s 45-1C of RBJ Act 97745 932.34
Share option outstanding account 140,95 66.58
Retained earnings 3,931.60 3,701.95
Tetal 28,626.57 19,330.35

Security premium
Securities premium represents premmium received on issue of shares. The amount is utilised in accardance with the provisions of tha Companies
Act 2013

Capital redernption reserve
The same had been created in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 2013 on buy back of shares

Statutory reserve u/fs 45-1C of RBI Act
The reserve is created as per the provision of Section 45 (IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, This is a restricted reserve and no appropriation
can be made from this reserve fund except for the purpose as may be prescribed by Reserve Bank of India,

Share option outstanding account
The reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the aptions issued to employees of the Company and subsidiary companies under Holding

Company’s employee stock optlon plan, P =

MUMBAT )




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021
(AN Amount in Rs. In millians, unless otherwise stated)

On financial assets On financlal assets  On financial assets

24 lntfrest in¢come
¥ear ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020
On financial assets

measured at Measured at fair measured at measured at fajy
Amortised cost value threugh OCI Amortised cost value through OCr
Interest on portfaka Inang £,394,70 1835 5.741.30 647
Interest an investments 292,64 175,85 18257 155.58
Interest on deposits 34.94 - 6.49 -
6,722,328 194.21 5,930.36 162.05
Total interest income 6,916.49 6,092.41
25  Fees and tommission income Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Commission an carg refoad 18.48 4528
Others 62.91 50.19
81.39 95.47

26 Met gain on fair value changes

Net gain on financial instruments at fair vaiye through profit and loss
Investments 587.60 225,65
587.60 225.65

Analysis of fair value cha nges
Realised 355.03 209.02

Unrealised 232.57 16.63
Total 587.60 225.65

27 Other income

Cost sharing from Broup companies 10338 89.61
Miscellaneous income 0.36 0.32
Total = . 103.74 89.93

22 Finance costs

Intarast
QN non convertible dobentyres 1,699.45 952.03
- on bank term loan 14175 336.28
- on bank cash credit 0.32 10.42
- on delayed deposit of statutory dues 0.81 0.20
- on leasing arrangements 24.54 20.86
Other barrowing ensts 63.17 75.25
Total e 1,930.04 1,455.04




29  Fees and comrnission expense

Selling partner commission

3 Impairment on financial instruments

Loans
Investments
Write offs
Tatal

L Employee henefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus
Cantribution to provident and other funds
Share based payment to employses
aff welfare expenses

T=tal

Tecrectation and amortization
Iegweciation on property, plant and equipment
«==tisation of intangible assets

e expenses

“owetaement expenses

== and professional fees

o and conveyance expenses
“ooor s remuneration (refer note 33.1)
Fmgenies

== and taxes

< sitting fee
e spcial responsibility (refer note 33,2}
oo awd maintenance
s expense
: =uation fee

- pnboarding expenses
S EDUS EKPEDNSES

DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements far the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 21, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

903.63

843.03

903.63

843.03

BELIEALAY

Year ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020
On financial On flnancial On financial On financial
instruments instruments Instruments. instruments
measured at fair measured at measured at fair measured at
value through Other  Amortised cost  walue through Other  Amartised cost
Comprehensive Comprehensive
Income Income

0.75 651.95 1.65 779.72

98.31 295.86 7172 43.48

- 1.801.87 - 631.58

99.06 2,749.68 73.37 1,459.78

2,8a8.74 1,533.15

578,70 496.73

30.25 1468

7578 40.90

18.44 15.09

703.27 $77.40

70.12 7235

2.00 4.13

79.12 76.48

18.67 13.30

382.68 195.16

+ 4.42 28.67

424 3.98

- 145 .65 90.94

1.55 2.46

1265 851

0.56 0.16

259.15 23.34

7.30 12.29

0.10 004

11607 3549

205 910

228 12.88

179.95 221.52

903.32 657.82




DMI Finance Private Limited

MNotes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{All Amount in Rs. In millfons, unless otherwise stated)

33.1 Auditor's remuneration (excluding appllicable taxes) Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- as auditors 3.05 .79
- for tax services 0.03 0.29
- for other services 1.16 0.88
4.24 3.96

33.2 Corporate social vesponsibility (C3R)
In respect of Corporate Social Responsibility activities, gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year was Rs. 25.15
millions in FY 2020-21 {Previous Year Rs, 23.34 millions) and Group has spent Rs. 25.15 millions in FY 2020-21 {Previous Year Rs. 23.34

3q

millions],
For the year ended March 31, 2021 Amaunt spent Amount unpaid Total
Constructionfacquisition of any asset - - -
On purpose ather than above 2515 25.15
For the year ended March 31, 2020 Amount spent Armount unpaid Total
Constructionfacquisition of any asset - - -
On purpose other than above 23.34 - 23.34
Earning per share {EPS} Year ended March  Year ended March
31, 2021 31,2020
Net profit attributable to equity shargholders 269.28 1,022.22
MNet profit for the year for basic EPS 269.28 102222
Dilutive impact of convertible instruments - -
Net profit for the year far dilutive EPS 269.28 1,022.22
Mominal value of equity shares {in Rs.} 10.00 10.00
Weighted-average number of equity shares for basis EPS 63,55,50,623 55,60,99,064
Effect of dilution
Convertible instruments 28,00,93¢6 22.00,936
Waighted-average numher of equity shares for dilutive EPS 69,64,77,457 95,89,00,000
Basic EPS 0.42 1.84
Dilutive EPS (.35 1.83




DM Finance Private Limited
Notes to consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

35 Retirement benefit plan

Pefined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is 2 pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions; there is no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions. The assets of the plan are held separately from those of the Group in a fund under the cantral of trosteas

The total expense charged to income during the currert year Rs, 8.34 millions (previous year: Rs, 6.85 millions) represents contributions payable to these
plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plan

Defined benefit plan

The Group has 3 defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five yvears or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days
salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is unfunded.

Frovision for unfunded Gratuity for all employees is based upon actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every linancial year. Major drivers in
actuarial assurnptions, typleally, are years of service and employee compensation. Pursuant to the issuance of the Indian Accounting Standard {IndAS) 18
on ‘Employee Benefits’, commitments are actuarially determined using the ‘Frojected Unit Credit’ Method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial
assumptions are accounted for in the "Other comprehensive Income™.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts
recognited in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Changas in the defined benefit obligation: As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 17.46 8.56"
Current service cost 7.06 6.25
Interest Cost 1.17 0.67
Remeaturement (galn) J loss [2.45]) 1.9%
Balamce at the end of the year 23.24 17,46
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss Is as under: Year ended ¥ear ended
_ March31,2021  March 31, 2020
Current service cost 7.06 625
Interest cost an defined benefit obligation 117 067
Net impact on profit before tax 8.23 6.92
Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income: Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2021 31, 2020
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions 10.01)
Actuarial changes arising from changes In financial assumptlons |0.01} 2.10
Experience adjustments 12 44} 1011}
Impact on other comprehensive income (2.45) 1.98
.
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and post-cmployment banefit obligations for the cti[npan\."s plans are shown below:
Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Economic assumptions

Discount rate 6.76% 6.76%,

Future salary increases 6.00% G000

Demagraphic assumptions
Retirement age o0 60
Martality rates inclusive of provision for disablity 100% of |ALM {2012- 100% of IALM [2012-

14] 141
Alfrition at ages {withdrawal rate]
[ijupta 30 years 3.00% 3.00%
[if} From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.00%
iii} &bove 44 years 1.00% 1.00%

Note: The discount rate is generally based upon the market vields available on Government bonds at the accounting date relevant to currency of benefit
payments far a term that matches the llabilities. Salary growth rate s Company’s long term best estimate a5 to salary increases and takes account of
inflation, senigrity, promotion, business plan, HR policy and other relevant factors on long term basis as provided in relevant accounting standard,




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs, In millions, unless otherwize stated)

Sensitivity analysls for gratuity liability Year ended Year ended
" —March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Impact of the change in discount rate
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % {1.78) [1.35)
Impact due to decrease of 0,50 % 1.94 1.50
Impact of the change in salary increase
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 1.85 151
Impact due to decrease of (.50 % {1.78) i1.36)

The following is the maturity profile of gratuity:

Expected payment for future years As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Oto 1year 0.32 0.24

1to 2year 0.37 .20
Ao 3year 0.37 0.30

3to 4 year Q.40 030
4105 year 0.41 0.3
5to Gyear 0.39 0.30

6th year onwards 2097 1581  »
Total expected payiments 23.23 17.46
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Motes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amountin Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

37 Disclosures in respect of Related Parties as per Indian Accounting Standard {Indas) - 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures

" {a) List of related parties

Holding company
BRI Limited

Associate
DM Alternatives Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries
DM Consumer Credit Private Lirnited
DMI Housing Finance Private Limited

Key managerial personnel [KMP)

Name

Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee
Mrs, Bina Singh

Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee
Mr. Gurcharan Das

M. Gaurav Burman

Mr. Tamer Amr

Mr. Nipender Kochhar
Mr_Jatinder Bhasin

Mr. Krishan Gapal

Mr. Sahib Pahwa

Relatives of KMP
Mrs. Mallika Singh
s, Promita Chatter|ae

undertaken;
K2VZ, Partnership Firm
DM Alternative Investment Fund

{l} Signlficant transactions with related parties:

Designatinn

Jaint tManaging Cirector

Joint Maraging Director

Director

Director

Directar

Director

Director

Director

Chief Financial Officer {uptc 17 March 2021)
Chief Financial Officer fw.e.f. 18 March 2021)
Company Secrotary

Name of related party

Nature of transaction

For the year ended

March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

DMI Housing Finance Private Limited

DMI Alternative Investment Fyund

OMI Altermatives Private Limited

Cost share recoyery

Share bazed payment L
nterest on igan

Repayment of laan

Reimbursement of expense paid by

related party on behalf of entity

Repayment of loan
Interest enpanses

Cost share rec avery
Share based payment

7018
2.16
20.78
700.00

800.00
23.75

3345
0.74

64,44
3.92

0.98

2517
155




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2021
{All Amount in Rs, mn millions, unless otherwige stated)

Name of related party Nature of transaction Forthe year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
OMI Lirnited

Transter of Compu Isory Convertibla - 217
Debentures
Issue of equity shares 941931 1,714.63
M, Sahit Pabwy Loan / advance glven 0.48 0.57
Interast income 0.05 0.06
Remuneration 412 403
Loan receiveqd back a.09 a.08
Mrs, Bina Singh Transfer of Compulsery Convertibie - 247
Debantures
Sitting fee Q.10 0.06
MF, Yuvraja Chana kya Singh Remuneration 57.10 57.54
Post employment benefits 0.36 0.36
Issue of equity shares 119,29 -
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Remuneration 56.28 56.08
Past employment benefits 0.36 0.26
Issue of aquity shares 119.39 -
Mrs, Jayati Chatterjee Sitting faag Q.18 0.16
Mr. Gurcharan Das Sitting fees 010 006
Mr. Nipender kochhar Sitting fess D.16 0.16
Mr. Jatinder Bhasin Remuneration * 10,92 12,58
Mr. Krishan Gopal Remuneration 067
Kavz Issue of equity shares 13313 2.1

{c) Outstanding balances with related parties:
Name of related party Nature of transaction As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rl
Mr. 5ahih Pahwa

Loan receivable A 048 057
-
DM Housing Finance Private Limited Loan payahle - 700.00
OMi Alternative Investrnent Fund Loan payable - 800,00
DM! Alternatives Private Limited ESCQP 489 4.15
Others

During the Year ended March 31, 2021, the Holding Company has bought back certain non convertible debentures from My, Sahib Pahwa for
consideration of Rs 0.64 millions [previoys year: Nil)

During the Year anded March 31, 2021, the Holding Company hag bought back certain non convertible debentures from DI Housing Finance Private
Limited for consideration of Rs 126 48 milkians {previous year: it}
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38 Impact of COVID 19 pandemic

40

The COVID-19 pandermic has continued to cause a significant disruption of the economic activities across the globe includirg India throughout the year,
with second wave of the pandemic emerging towards the later part of the financial year in India, The Government of India anhounced a nation-wide
lockdown 1o contain the spread of the virus which continued til] May 31, 2020, Subsequently, various state governments and local statutory authorities
impased restrictions on economic activities in different parts of the country which continued to impact Halding Company’s operations including (ending
and collection activities, Further, pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India {"RBI') COMID-19 Regulatary package issued vide circulars dated March 27, 2020
and May 23, 2020 which allowed lending instituttons to offer moratorlum to borrowers on payrment of Instalments falling due between March 1, 2020
and August 31, 2020, and consequently the Holding Company had offered a moratorium to its eligible borrowers until August 31, 2020.

In assessing the impairment allowance for loan portfolio, the Holding Company has considered internal and external sources of information available
including indicaters of deterioration in the macro-economic factors, Further, the management has estimated the impact of the ongoing second wave of
the pandemic on its loan portfolio, based on reasonable and supportable information available till date and considering performance after the first
wave, and has noted that the existing provisioning levels are adequate to cover any further dellnguencies. Glven the unique nature and scale of this
pandemic, its full extent of impact on the Holding Company’s operations and financlal metrics, more specifically an the borrower's ability to service
thelr ohligations on a timely basis, will depend ot the severity and duration of the pandemic as well as on highly uncertain future developments
including governmental and regulatory measures and the Holding Company's responses thereto. Accordingly, the management’'s estimate of
impalrmaent losses based on various varfables and assumptions could result in actual cradit loss being different than that heing astimated.

The Holding Company has assessed the impact of the pandemic on it5 liguidity and ability to repay its obligations as and when they are due. The
Holding Company has considered its current liquidity position, expected inflows from various sources of borrowings and stimulus packages announced
by the Government of India, Based on the foregoing, management beiieves that the Holding Company will b able to pay its obligations as and when
these become due n the forateeable future, The impact of the pandemic on the operations of the Holding Company I3 significantly dependent on
uncertain future econamic conditions.

In accordance with the CoVID-19 Regulatory Packages announced by RBI on March 27, 2020, Aprll 17, 2020 and May 23, 2020, the Halding Company
has offered moratorium on the payment of instalments and/or interest, as applicable, falling due between March 01, 2020 and Avgust 31, 2020 to
eligible borrowers, For such accounts that were granted moratorium, the prudential assets classification remained standstill during the moratorium
period {i.e., the number of days past due excluded the moratoriumn period for the purpeses of asset classification under ncome Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning Norms).

Further, on August 6, 2020, the Reserve Bank of India announced Resolution framewark for Covid related stress for parsonal loans, other eligible
exposures and MSMEs {Resolution Framework 1.0) and further an May 5, 2021, Resolution Framewark 2.0 was announced by RBI. On the basis of
eligibility criteria defined by REI in Resolutlon Framework 1.0 and 2.0, the Halding Company gave the benefit of restructuring the lean account to
borrowers with total loan outstanding amounti ng ta Rs 2,778.92 Millions.

Interest on interest

In accordance with notification no. RBI/2021-22/17 DCR.STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22 dated April 7, 2021 issued by the REI, Il lending stitutions
shall refund/adjust ‘interest on interest’ to all borrowers including these wha had availed working capital facllities during the moratorium period,
irrespective of whether maraterium had been fully or partially availed, or not availed. Purs uant to these instructions, the Indian Banks Assaciation {1 BA}
in consultation with other industry participanis/bodies published the methodology for Ralculation of the amount of such ‘interest on interest’,

Accordingly, the Holding Company has estimated the sald amount and made pravision for refundladjusf?ﬁent in these standalone financial statements,
-

Ouring the current year, In compliance with Scheme for grant of ex-gratia payment of difference between compound interest and simple interast for six
months to berrowers In specified loan accounts (March 1, 2020 to Augut 31, 2020 }, the Holding Company granted the hanefit amodnting to As. 5947
millions to its barrowers.

L ;
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Capitat
The Holding Company aclively managas Its capital base to cover nsk inherent to its business ang meets the capltal adequ acy requirements of the regulatar, Raserve Bank of
India (RE}.

{i] Capital mamagement:
Obfertive

The Holding Company's objective i ta malntain apprapriate loyels of capital to support its business stratepy taking into account the regulatory, econornle and commercial
environment, The Holding Company aims to maintain a strong capital base to supiport the risks Inherent to its business and its growth strategy. The Holding Company
endeavors to maintain a higher capital hase than the mantdated regulatory capital at ol times.

Planning

The Haolding Company's assessment of capital requirement ts aligoed twaits planned Erowth which farms part of an annual operating plan which iz approved by the Board and
also a fang range strategy. These growth plans are aligned to assessment of risks- which include oredit, liquidity anil interest rate.

The Holding Company endeavors to malntain its Capital Rigk Adiquacy Ratio (CHAR) higher than the mandated regulatory norm. Atcordingly, increase in capital fs planned
wedl In advance 1o ensure adequate funding for its growth,

{ii) Regulatory capltal

As 5t March 31, 2021 As at March 31,2020
Tier 1 CRAR 59.03%; 43.21%
Tier 2 CRAR 137% 0.62%
Total CRAR 60.20% A4.00%

In case of un-dishursed ioan facility, the Holding Company has sole and absolyte discretion to allow ar reject any further dr awdaown fequest. Hence, undrawn commitment far
the Rolding Company ara amounttng to Mil, o

The CRAR is computed a5 per the Master Direction - Non Banking Finaneial Company - Systematicalty tmportant Non-Deposit taking Company and Depasit taking Company
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 réad with the ¢ireular issued by Reserve Bank of India on March 13, 2020.

in arder ta achieve this overall objective, the Holding Cormpany's capjtal management, amongst other things, gims 1o ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interest-hearing loans and borrowlngs. Breaches in Mmeeting tha financial covenarits would permit the bank to immediately calt loans and borrowings.

Nerchanges were made in the objectives, poficies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020

Contingent llabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilitics

The Holding Company has given corporate guarantees to banks aganst different facihties to its fellow subsidiary DM Housing Finance Prwvate Limited of ks 4,447 17 milli ans
as at Mareh 31, 2021 {March 21,2020: ps, 5,474.59 milions),

During the year, the Holding Company has received an assessment order for FY 2016-17 whereln the assessing officer has made an addition for an amount of fs.6.42 millions
an account of disallowance of dedurtion under section 806G of the Income-tax Act, 1961 The Holding Company has appealed betore Commissionsr of Income Tax-Appeal
(CITIA)) against the oidar. This disallowance has resultad into an additional demand of Re. 2.26 million but the Halding Company has already paid the taxes more than by s,
231 million therefare, the Holding Company is not required to pay any additiwonal demand, 1n nresence of favarabile case laws and judicial precedents wherein similar facts
have baen addressed, the Holding Company expects that the additional demand will be deleted by CIT {A).

Commitments
In case of un-disbyrsed loan facillty, the Holding Company has sale and absolute discretion to allow or rejact any further drawdown request, Hence, undrawn commitment for
the Holding Company are amouating ta Ml B

Reconciliation of liabilities avising from financing activities

o
Particulars Debt securities darrowings ather than Liability sgainst leased Tatal
debt securities assets

April 1, 2019 5,782,328 4,138 .86 - 992114
Adaption of Ind &5 115 - - 293 91 9391
Cash flows: )

- Repayment {4,300 003 {2,314 54) (54 20} [6,669.34)

- Procesds 21.303.00 28000 22,231.00
Mon-cash -

- Deferrernent / amortisation of upfront fees and other charges 12.29 2051 32.80

- Others 27,34 27.34
March 31, 2020 23,797.57 3,824,533 J6E.A5 25,883.85
Cash flows:

- Repayment 14,750000) {2.355.23) {55.18) [7.160,51)

- Procesds 500,00 F00.00 - 120000
MNon-tash )

- Deferrament / amertisation of upfront fees and other charges 412 1169 - 15,81

- Ctherg - 3102 2102

March 31, 202y 18,551.69 1,181.19 242.29 19,975.17
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44 ledses

« The Holding Company has lease contracts for office and residential spacas taken on lease. The leasa terms are between 1 to 10 years.
The Holding Company alsehas certaln lease with [ease terms of 12 months or less, The Holding Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ recoghition exemptions for these leases

The carrying amaounts of tight-of-use assets (ecognized and the movements during the periad are as follaws:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 248 67 -
Additians made during the year - 29391
Depreciation charge for the year 37.96 4524
Ralante i the end of the year 21071 24867
The carrying amounts of lease habilities and the movements during the period are as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 266.45
Additians rmade during the year z 293.91
Interest accretivn for the year 11,02 3734
Payments made during the year {55.13] (54.80)
Balance at the end of the year 24229 266.45
The effective interest rate far lease latdlities is 10%, with maturity ranging to 202728,
Thi fallowing are the amounts recognized in profit and loss =
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depraciation expense Ir respact of right-of-use assat 37.96 4524
Interast expense in respect of lease Habilities 24.54 2086
Expense refating to short-term leases (included on other expepses) 12.65 #51
75.15 74.61

|Tntat amaount recognised in profit or loss

The Holding Company’s tolal cash outflows for leases was Rs 48 70 Millians during year {previous year Rs 54.80 Millions)
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45 Tax expenses
« The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 21, 2020 are

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current tax 348.13 553.10
Deferred tax credit (256.80) (176.24)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 91,33 376,86

The major components of tax expense and fts reconcillation to expected tax expense based on the enacted tax rate applicable to the Group Is 25.168%
{March 31, 2020; 25.168%) and the reported tax expense in statement of profit and loss are as follows:;

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Profit before tax {before share of Brofit of associate) 321.10 1,360.54
Income-tax rate 25 168% 25.168%
Expected tax expense 80.81 342.42

r
Expenditure disallowed 465.68 35.69
income nat subject to tax {0.14) 26.46
Deductions {458.23) {28.99)
Short term capital gain - 1.28
Tax for earlier years 321 -
Tax expense 91.33 376.86

KUMEAI

A
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{All Amount in Rs. In milllons, unless otherwise stated)

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities:

DM Finance Private Limited
Notes to consolldated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Farticulars Within 12 After 12 months Total Within 12 After 12.months Total
manths months

ASSETS

Ftnancial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3,53301 2,533,091 1,212.58 - 1,212.69

Bank balance other than cash and cash 167.21 267.21 15.20 - 15.20

equivalents

Trade receivables 62.11 - 62.11 39.96 29.96

Loans 16,971.61 14,442.00 31,413.63 18,347.05 15,006,465 33,353.51

Investments 15,718.40 283264 18,551.04 12,235 58 3,076.56 15,362.24

Other financlal assels 2,01%.08 025 2,037.35 542,41 2032 5562.73

Nan- financal assets

Current tax assets {nat) 23247 - 23147 170,07 - 170.07

Deferred tax assets net} . b3i3.87 b633.87 378.74 3rs. 74

Property, plant and equipment 46.26 280,66 226,92 34.26 353.38 387.64

Intanglble assets - 22.80 22.80 755 7.55

Other non- financial assets 94.56 861 103,27 112.87 - 112.87

Assets held for sale 189.85 189.85 189.85 1B9.85
38,133.57 18,240.84 56,374.41 32,957.04 18,843.01 51,800,05

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Financial liabllities

Trade payables

(1) tatal outstanding dues of micra enterprises 110.75 110.75 7868 78.68

and small enterprises

(i} total outstanding dues of creditors other 195.23 195.23 164,55 164.55

than micra enterprises and small enter prises

Debt securities 18,551.6% 18,551.69 4,744 .57 13,053.00 22,791.57

Barrowings {other than debt securitias] 600,22 82326 1,423.48 147346 1,617.82 308128

Other financial liabilities 635,33 635.33 485.87 - 488,87

Non financial liabilities *

Provisions €751 87.51 38.54 38.54

Other non-financial fiabitilies 337.27 337.27 217.27 217,27

Equity

Equity share capital 5,436.58 6,436.58 5,592.94 5,592.94

Other equity - 2861657 28,626.57 19,330.35 19,330.35

1,836.31 54.438.10 56.374.41 7,205.94 44 504 11 54 800.05
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47 Risk managament
Introductian and vigk profile
In vizw of the intrinsic nature of operations, the Froup s ewpased to 3 variaty of ricks, which ean ba broadly elassified as liquidiny risk, eradit risk, interest rate risk and egulty price risk, It s
w250 subleck to varlogs regulatory risks.
Risk management struture and policlas
As it lending Institution, the Group 19 exposed tovarlous risks that ar= ralated 1o lending businass and operating environment. The Principisl Dbjective in Gioup 's risk management proceszes
i5 lo measure and monitor the varlsus risks that Group is subject to and Lo fallow policies and procedures to address such risks. Group 's rigk managemenl framework i driven by Baard and
It subcommittess including the Audit Committes, the Asuet Lialility Management Committee ard Risk Management Committes, Tha Group ghves due impartatice to prudent lending
practices and have implemented suitable measures for risk mitigatian, which inciude verification of credit history from eradit Infefrmation bureaus, personal werification of a customer's
buslhess and residance, technicat and legal verifications, consarvative Inan to valus,

{A) Lguidity visk
quuiclitt:r risk is the potential for Inss to an institution ariging fram elthat its ihability fo rmaet its ohligations ar 16 fund incressas in assets as they fall due without Incurring unacceptable eock
or lpsses
The Group manages fauidity sk by measuring =nd managing nat funding requirements. using a maturity lsdder and caleulation of cumulative surplus or deficit of funds at splected maturity
dates which has bieen ndopted as a standard togl, The Group's Assars.| 1ability Committee (ALCOY is responsilie for datermining the appropriate mix of available funding zources utilized 1o
ensure Company liguidity is snanaged prudsntly and shprapriately, With regard lo the process of Enuidity thanagement, ALCO also considers the urrent econammic and markat enviranmart,
hear-term loan growtn prafections and lang-term strategle business decisions.

The table below summarises the mat urlly profile of the undlscounted tash flows of the Group’s financia| assets and liabiliyes

March 31, 2021 upte Irnonth|  Over Over 2 Over? | Over6manths | Over Byaar to| Guer 3 years] Over 5 years nm|_1
Amenthto 2| months to 3 | months to 6 1o 1 year Iyears 0 F years
month months menths
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivatanty 255391 . - = . 253391
Bank balance-other than Cagh and cazh =quivalents . . 261,91 .30 - . 5701
Trade recelyables 62.11 - - - - - . 5211
Loans 411683 2,770.01 251207 E 766 6,300,733 15,486 83 3,364.92 78595 41,1190
Investments 1513810 48.00 563 32 108 14 188 15 737 38 1,77071 1440 20 15,953 0D
Other financial assuts 24723 1715 1,542 70 100,00 1.35 ER- X 1500 203738
Finaneial liabilities .
Trade payahles (.62 205 36 305.98
Debt securities . R212 £5.18 3@ 97 78117 21,171 39 2258992
Borrawings fethar than dabt secueitiss) e05 2551 150.18 154 58 28150 L5547 13128 - 1,376 33
Other financial liabilities 10050 140,74 S0.69 254,50 BE. 90 - - 635 33
'En:h 31, 1020 upta 1 manth rver Dver 2 Crer 3 Ower 6 manths | Over 1year to | Quer 3 years| Dver S yaars Total
imonthto 2| monthsta 3 | menthsta 6 to 1 year 3 years 16 5 years
= month months. ths |
Financial assats
Cazh and cash equivalznts 121269 = - . - 1,190,84
Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents 321 - - 1199 - - - 15.20
Trads receivables 3296 - . - - . E 3996
Loans 253384 211842 299118 6,648 71 3,331.45 14,22842 3,434.35 14B182 | 41,829.19
Investments 12151 83 29 90 7420 16300 35511 1,342.35 374.9¢ + 1,505 34 16,407 39
Qthar financlal assets 29728 - 167 18 B3 Gh .72 141 808 1083 568,73
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 353 - 15370 - - - 243.23
Debl securlties 9934 34177 1584 51" 148222 311137 523168 15,900 46 28,751 3%
Borrowings jother than debt securlties) 6887 184.22 207.04 43943 057 160271 . 3,272,090
|[Other financial llabjliti=s 93.18 15828 5773 111 36 67 25 - 3 482,37
{B) Credt risk *

Credit risk arises fram the potential that an obligor is wither urwilling ta perform on an obligation ar its sbility ta perform such obligation is Impaired resulting in economic lass te the Group.
The Group's ceadit fisk managoment framework is categorized (nta following main components:

- Senior management's dversipht

- Organizalional structure

- Systerns and proceduies for identification, wceNtance, Measurgment, monitanng and contralling nsit

It is the overall respanditility of the Graup's seninr management to npprove the Graup's credit risk strategy ahd lerding pialicjes relating to credit risk and its mansgement. The palicies are
based én the Group's aversll husiness Strategyand the same 15 reviewed svery quarter by the senlar managament

To maintain credit diseipline and ta snunciate credit risk management and control process there 5 a separata
management department perfarms the function of cradit palicy farmulation, ceedit limi setting, manitoring of

management departrnent independant of loan ariginaticn funetion, The rlsk
credit exceptions / exposures and review fmonitering of dac urentation,

The camrying smount of flnancial zssats Tepresenls the maximum cradit exposure

L |
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Analysis of sk congantration
The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the fnanoal assets of the Group:

tarch 31, 2021 financial |Gowernment | Real estate MEME Services & Rretail
SEIVIEES manufacturing

Othere I Tetal

Finangial asset
Cash and cash equrvalents 203391 . - - - - 253391
Bank balanea other than Cash and cash aqulvalents 26721 - . - - 267 21
Term loans - Corporale {contractual amaunt of laans) = = 9,047 64 2838 0B 0354 12,288 16
Term leans - Consumer loans [contractusl amount of loans] - - 43474 1568061 - 19,1244 3%
Trade recewables 747 - * - . 54 64 : 6211
Irvastments 16,072 26 - 1,048 GF 1,410.49 = 022 183504
| Other finencial assets _ ! - I BAGT b B 2,097.35
Total 18,880.85 | 10,095 71 43074 | 3,948.57 | 2146397 2139 | 5a,885.23
Warch 31, 2020 Financial | Government | Real estate MSME Serviess B Retail Others Tokal
services manufagtuning
Financial asset
Cash and cash aquivalzats 121259 - 7 . - = 1,213 69
Bank balance ether than {ash and cazh equivalents 1520 - : L E 1520
Tarm Loans- Corparatelconteactual armaunt of loans| 7,969.08 2860 3,17.2.00 GE2.56 E 11,652 24
Consumer Loans{contraclual amount of loans) - 638 42 . 0,862 35 . 21,501 27
Receivables - - 3365 - 3996
Investments 1,095.73 - 1,239.74 . 1917 15,362 24
Other financial assets = 7 T 54565 2104 56273
Total 9064RL | &67.00 451174 | 2212735 40.71 | 50,553.33
Market risk

Market rick is the risk that the galus of an and off-balance shaet psibans of a tinancial institutian will be adversely affected by movamants in market rates or prices guch az interast (ates,
foreign exchange rakes, equity prices, credit sproads and/or conmmedity prices resulting in a loss to earnmgs and capiral

Financial instilutions may be axposed ta market risk in varizty of ways. Warked risk sxposura may be explicl in partfolias of securmies [ equities and instrumants rhat are actvaly traded
Corversely it may be implicit such as interest rale rizk due to mismaleh of loans and deposits. Besrles, market risk may also arise from actlvities categonized as ofl-balance shaet item
Tharefore, markel risk is potential for loss rasulting fram adverse movement in market risk factars such B3 interest rates, forex rates, equity and commodity prices.

The Group's exposurs to market risk is prrrarily on agcount of Interestrate nsk and eguity pnce risk,

Total market risk exposure

Particulars _ As at harch 3?, 021 A 3t Waech 31, 2020 | Primary rish sensitivity
ASSETS

financial assets

Invastments {Other than cradit substitutes) 18,734 g5 15,104 51 |Equily pice

Credit substitutes a1 ta 36020 [Intarest rate
LIABILITIES

Financlal liakllities

Dbl securities 18,351 6% 22,797.57 |Interesk role

| Barrowings fother than debl securitias) ——. = = 1423 43 309128

{il Interast rate risk:-
Interast rate fisk arises when thera is 3 mismatch between pasitlons, which are subject tp interext rate adjustment within a specified period. The Group’s lending, funding and investment

ctivities give rise to interest rate nsk. The immediste impact of variation in inlerast rate ls on the Group’s netinterest incnme, while a lang tefm impact is on the Greup’s nat worth singe the
econgmic valua of Lhe azsals, labllitks 2nd ofi-balance sheet exposures are affected While assessing interest rate risks, slgnals glven 1o the market by REl and government dapartmenls from
lirne to timne and the financial industry’s reachion to them shall be cantinuously monitared

Dua ta tha very natura of financing, the Greup s sxposed to moderake to g her nteresl rata risl. This risk has a major impact on the balance sheet az well a5 the income staterment 3f Lhe
Group. Interest rata nzk anizes due to!

] Changses in regulatory or market conditions affecting the interesi rates .

u Short term volatility .

] Prepayment rlsk translating into a reinvestment risk ,ﬁ.
3] Feal interest rate rizk

Interest rate sensitinity

The follguring table demonstrates the sensitivily t9 @ reasonably possible change in Interest rates {all olher variables Lieing constanth of the Group's statement of profit and lass:

E“&“‘_ . Effect on net profh

Borrowings For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020

Decrease m 50 baus polnis 7 o4 18 55

Increase In 50 basis points {7 34} (12551

Particulars = —  Effert on net profit

Barrowings For the year ended Forthe year ended
tlarch 31. 2021 March 31, 2020

Dacrense in 50 basis poinls 1512

Increase in 50 basis paints RALNE]]

ii) Equily price risk

Eq]uit\r price risk |s the pitk that the fair value of equities changes as the result of changas 1 the level of equily indlces and ndividual slocks A 10 per cent increase in the value of the Group’s
FVOC equitles 3t 31 March 2021 waubd have increased equity by Rz 136 90 millinns {Previous year: Rs 188 29 millans} An equivalent deerease would have resulted in am aquivalent but
opposite impagt. Further, A L0 par cant increase In the value of the Group’s FYTPL equities al 31 tarch 2021 would have increased profits by Rs. 149962 malhans {Previous yesr: Fs. 1,234 98
millighs] Anequialent decraace woold have resulted in an equvalent but opposite impact
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DMI Finanee Private Limited
Motes to consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All Amount In Rs. In milllons, unless otherwise stated)

ct on fair value of level 3 financial instruments measured at tair value of changes to key assumptions
- table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable inputs used to calculate the fair value of the Group's level 3 assets and

tias,

h 31, 2021 Fair value of Level Yaluation technigue Significant unobservahle inputs —_—
3 assets !
ity shared in DMI Consurar Credit Private Limited 3.27 Net Waorth of Investee Company Instrument price
wty shares in Alchernist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 226 20 Discounted Projected Cash Flaws Digcaunt margin / spread
onvertible debentures - Quoted 467 68 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount marghn f spread
wty shares in Flash Electrorics Private Limited 304.40 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument price
woulsory convertible debeantures 826.47 Discounted Frojected Cash Flows Discaunt margin f spread
m-convertible debentures - unguoted 1423% Dbiscounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread
31, 2020 Fair value of Lavel Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs
3 assets
wty shared in DMI Cons.—2r Credit Private Limited 316 Net Worth of Investoe Company Instrument price
wty shares in Alchemist Lsset Reconstruction Company Limited 226.20 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Diseount margin f spread
r
s-convertible debentures - Guoted 419.58 Discounted Projectad Cash Flows Discount margin f spread wtnd
shares in Flash Elactroniss Private Limited 250.19 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument price wred
mpulsory corvertible detenturas 77317 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discourt margin £ spread ance
anvertible debenturss - ungusted 12076 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread Xher
nl of
stitative analysis of significant unobservable inputs and
ment price
= [he nature of this apprezch, there is ng range of prices used as inputs. ased
=unt margin/spreads 1 II'B
~unt margin/spreads raorasant the discount rates used when calculating the present value of future cash flows. In discounted cash flow models such spreads are ncial
>4 to the benchmark rate whan discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these spreads reduce the net present value of an ssset or increase the value o S0
. fiability. They generally rafiact the premium an Investor expects to achieve over the benchmark interest rate to compensate for the higher risk driven by the adin
-tainty of the cash Rows c2used by the credit quality of the asset. They can be implied from market prices and are usually unobservable for illiguid or complex f the
Jments, aled
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DM Finance Private Limited
Notes to consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2021
{all Amount in Rs. In mi liions, unless otherwise stated)

- Sensitivity of fair value Measurements to changes in unobservable market datg
The table below deseribes the effect of 4 10% maovem

entin the significant unobservable inpyr.
All changes, except for financial instruments at FVOC|

would be reflected in Statements of Profit and Loss,

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
. Favourable Unfavourahle Favourahble
Particulars

Unfavourable

changes thanges changes changes
Instruments measwred thraugh FYTOCT

Equity shared in DM) Consumer Credit Private Limited

0.33 {0.33) 0.32 {0.22)
Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Recanstruction Company Limited 26.07 {26.07) 22.62 {22.62)
Non-convertible debentures -Quoteg 7.17 {(7.17) 41.95 {41.96)
Mon-convertible debentures - unguoted 14.28 {14.29) 12.08 {12.08)
Equity shares in Filagh Electronics Private Umited 3044 {30.44) 25.00 {25.00)
Compulsory convertible debrentures 82.65 {82.65) 77.32 {77.32)
otal 160.94 {160.94) 179.30 {179.30) o
d
3ir value of financial instruments ngt measured at fair value - ]
=L out below is a compartson, by cass, of the CarTying amounts and fair valyas of the Group’s finaneiat instruments that are not carried at fair value in er
= financial stalements. This table does notinclude the fair yalyes of non~financial assats and non—financigl liabilities, of
nd
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ancial assets: Fair value Carrying value Fair value Carrying value
2ns and advances ad
Corporate loans 12,715.14 - 12,151.09 11,630.70 11,735 33 he
=Stments = at amortisad cost sal
‘an-convertible debentures - Queted 1,156.59 1,171.28 1,259,61 1,227.52 S0
ncial liabilities: iin
ot segurities 18,876.47 18,553.00 21,676.24 21,302.00 the
ited
ges
ation methodologies of finandal instruments nat measured at fair value
W are the methodologies and assumplions used 1o determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measurad
sit walue in the company’s financial statements, These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only, The below methodologies and
mptions relate onty to the nstruments in the above tables. _ (10)
owings - At Amortised cost . :‘:::
< includes Term Loans, The fair values of such liabilities are estimategd Using a discounted cash flow model based an tontractual cash flows using
2l or estimated yvields ang discounting by yields incorporating the tourtlerparties’ credit risk, Thasa instrument are classified in Leve] 3. hwlz?et
niles
iments - At ameortised cost rents
= Includes Quoted non convertible debenture & carporate loans, The fair values of such SITUMeEnts are Actimated using a discounted cash flow lence
based an contractual cash flows using actual or estimated yields and discaunting by yields Incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk. Thege \atter
sment are classified in Leve| 3,

and Fabilities other than above

#Tying value of assets ang liabilities other than investments and borrowings at amortized cost represente 5 reasonable approximation of fair value
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Members,

DMI Finance Private Limited

The Board of Directors (“Board™) of DMI Finance Private Limited (*DMI/Company®) are pleased to
present their 13" Director’s Report along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021, This Report read with the Management Discussion and Analysis included details of the
macroeconomic scenario, Company’s performance and various initiatives taken by the Company.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The standalone and consolidated financial highlights of your Company are as follows:

Consolidated Financials

(< in Million)
Particulars Consolidated
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from Operations 7 .,585.48 6413.53
Other Income 103.74 8993
Total Income 7 .689.22 6,503.46
Total Expenditure 7.,368.12 514292
Share of Profit/ (loss} on associate 39.51 38.54
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 360.61 1,399.08
Tax Expenses/(Credits) 91.33 376.86
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 274.27 949.37
Capital Redemption Reserve 81,21 81.21
Reserve Fund u/s Sec 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934 977.46 932.84
Balance in Profit/(Loss) Account in balance sheet 3,931.60 3,701.95
Standalone Financials
(Z in Million)
Particulars Standalone
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from Operations 7,540.47 6,355.85
Other Income 104.04 90.29
Total Income 7,644.51 6 ,446.14
Total Expenditure 7,332.49 5,012.44
Share of Profit/ (loss) on associate = -
Profit/{Loss) before Taxation 312.02 1,343.69
Tax Expenses/(Credits) 88.94 352.80
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 223.08 990.89
Capital Redemption Reserve 81.21 81.21
Reserve Fund u/s Sec 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934 977.45 932.84
Balance in Profit/(Loss) Account in balance sheet (Retained 3,722.36 3,538.91
Earnings)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY




During the year under review, the Company focused more on the retail lending business as compared to its
cotporate lending business. As a result, the retail asset book of the Company has grown exponentially but
due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the Company faced a sudden drop in the revenues during the
year. The nationwide lockdowns to curtail the transmission of disease, had put the global economy in
extreme level of stress and would have a long-lasting economic effect. However, after the gradual uplifting
of the country wide lockdown in mid 2020, Company took its recourse (o recovery and showed positive
increase in growth and progress. The pandemic led to a sudden stop for the economies across the globe.

The RBI on its part took several measures by announcing various relief packages for individual borrowers,
companies in various sectors such as Moratorium, TLTRO Scheme for banks, policy rate cuts, incentivizing
credit to certain sectors like MSME, Restructuring Policy (Framework 1.0 and 2.0) etc. Aided by these
reltef measures, the Company is making its best efforts for providing a cushion of recovery for all its
customers and other stakeholders.

In defiance of economic instability and mounting pressure on financial markets, the Company has shown
upwatd growth during the year under review as the Company’s total standalone revenue for the financial
year increased to T 7,540.47 Million as compared to ¥ 6,355.85 Million in FY 2020. As on March 31, 2021
due to unprecedented rise in COVID-19 infections in India and financial stress in the economy caused due
to lockdown imposed in various phases, the total expenditure grew from 2 5,012,18 Million in FY 2020 to
¥ 7,332.49 Million in FY 2021 which shrank the Company’s net profit for the year to T 223.08 Million as
compared to ¥ 990.80 Million as on March 31, 2020.

The Capital to risk adequacy ratic (CRAR) stood at 60.20% as on March 31, 2021 as compared to 44.00%
as on March 31, 2020, The Net owned funds of the Company as on March 31, 2021 stood at ¥ 33,401.93
Million as compared to ¥ 24,082.49 Million as on March 31, 2020. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic across the entire spectrum, the loan portfolio of the Company declined and stood at 2 36,441.50
Million as on March 31, 2021, The Net NPA of the Company as on March 31, 2021 stands at 1.59%.

During the year under review, Company had launched many new programs with respect to its consumer
lending business and tried to consolidate the corporate lending business. Further the Company foresees an
opportunity of growth with the growing digitization all across the industry.

DIVIDEND

Considering the stress created by the COVID-19 pandemic in the industry and to conscrve the cash
resources for future growth of the Company, the Board does not recommend any interim/final dividend for
the financial year ended March 31, 2021,

AMOUNT PROPOSED TO BE CARRIED TO RESERVES

The details of the transfer to other reserves as part of regulatory requirements are given below:

(i) Regulatory Reserve u/s 45 (1C) of RBI Act

In accordance with the provisions of section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934, the Company isrequired to transfer
an amount equivalent to 20% of profit after tax, to its Statutory Reserve. During the current year, ¥ 44.62
Million were transferred to the statutory reserve.



The break-up of the amounts/profits proposed to be carried to reserves for FY 2020-21, is set out herein
below:

_ (¥ in Million)
Particulars As on March 31, | Ason March 31,
| - 2021 2020
Capital Redemption Reserve ~ 81.2] 81.21 _
Reserve Fund u/s Sec 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934 977.45 | 932.84

MORATORIUM AND RESTRUCTURING OF LOANS

The Resetve Bank of India issued guidelines on March 27, 2020 permitting NBFCs to give moratorium to
customers in respect of instalments falling due between March 01, 2020 to May 31, 2020 and further till
August 31, 2020, Accordingly, the Company has a Board approved Moratorium Policy for all business
segments and has provided benefit to the eligible borrowers under the Moratorium Policy of the Company
and the guidelines as framed by Reserve Bank of India.

Further, with the intent to facilitate revival of real sector activities and to mitigate the impact of financial
stressed caused by the pandemic on the ultimate borrowers, Reserve Bank of India on August 06, 2020
introduced a Prudential Framework 1.0 to enable the lenders to implement 2 resolution plan in respect of
¢ligible corporate exposures, The Resolution Framework 2.0 was introduced on May 05, 2021 to include
other category of eligible borrowers like MSME, small businesses and individuals. The Company
restructured certain eligible stressed accounts in accordance with the provisions of the Restructuring Policy
of the Company and Resolution Framework 1.0 issued by RBI.

In furtherance, with reference to the Scheme of grant of Ex-Gratia Payment of difference between com-
pound interest and simple interest for six months to borrowers in specified loan accounts (1.3.2020 to
31.8.2020) as advised by Department of Financial Services (DFS), Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India vide
their letter nos. F.No.1/12/2020-BOA.I dated October 23, 2020 and October 29, 2020, the Company
successfully implemented the Scheme and credited an amount of T 9,94,74,808/- to the accounts of eligible
borrowers.

To provide financial cushion and to aid in the seamless growth and continuity to the MSME sectot in India,
the Company was registered as a (Member Lending Institutions) MLI under the Emergency Credit Line
Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) introduced by Ministry of Finance on May 13, 2020 to provide additional
credit at low cost to eligible MSMEs, thereby enabling MSMEs to meet their operational liabilities and
restart their businesses impacted due the COVID-19 crisis. The Company has also constituted a Board
approved ECLGS Policy giving details about eligibility critetia of the borrowers, terms of sanction of funds
and other procedural aspects of providing credit under this Scheme.

The Company has launched all the measures and incentives introduced by the regulators in India as
mentioned above in the best spirit to ensure financial stability and growth for all its existing and new
CUSLOMELS.

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS
Share Capital

During FY 2020-21, the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Company underwent following
changes:



Changes in Paid-Up Share Capital

Equity Raise

During the financial year, in times of stress related to COVID-19, the Company with the support of its
existing investor base was able to raise T 979.12 Crores during the financial year under review to be ready
for the upcoming business growth prospects. The details of the fund raising is mentioned below:

S.No | Particulars of Issue No. of Securities Issued | Amount Invested (In 3)
1 Issue of equity shares on Rights Issue | 8,09,49,681 9,41,93,05,000
Basis
2 First Call on Partly Paid-Up Equity - 13,31,34,300
Shares
3 Issue of equity shares on Preferential 21,06,686 23,87,71,960
Allotment Basis

Therefore, pursuant to the above-mentioned fund raising by the Company, the paid- up capital of the
Company as on March 31, 2021 stood at ¥ 6,43,65,76,716.

BORROWING PROFILE

The company maintained an optimum mix of borrowings between bank term loans, structured debt and
unstructured debt. During the Financial year 2020-21, the Company raised debl by means of borrowing
from banks and by issuing secured debentures. The Company raised T 500 Million by way of issue of Listed
Secured Rated Non-Convertible Debentures on private placement basis from Union Bank of India on June
30, 2020 and has existing outstanding Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures amounting to 2 18,033
Million as on March 31, 2021, given that the outstanding borrowings at any time was within the borrowing
limits as set by the Board from time to time. The details of listed debentures issued by the Company during
the year is provided below:

S.No | Type of Security | Secured/Unsecured | Security, if any Amount (T in
(Listed) Million)
1 | Non-Convertible Secured Beook receivables of 500.00
Debentures the Company
| Total ~ 500.00

Further, during the period under review, the Company has redeemed % 2,250 Million of privately placed
Optionally Convertible Debentures and ¥ 2,500 Million of privately placed Non-Convertible Debentures.
As on March 31, 2021, total outstanding NCDs (secured and unsecured) stands at T 18,551.69 Million.

In furtherance, during the financial year 2020-21, the Company has also raised ¥ 700 Million by availing
term loan facilities from various banks and financial institutions, details of which are provided below:

S.No | Type of Security Secured/Unsecured | Security, if any Amount (% in
Million)
1 Term Loans Secured Book receivables of 700.00
the Company
Total B - 700.00

Therefore, as on March 31, 2021, the debt equity ratio of the Company stands at 0.57.



In conclusion, the Company has been strategically prepaying the high-cost debts to rationalize the financial
expenses in Covid times. The Company has been trying to establish relationships with large public and
private sector banks which will help the company in the long run to achieve its vison and mission.

CREDIT RATING

The Company’s credit rating by various credit rating agencies as on March 31, 2021 are given below:

Type of Borrowing Rating Agency Amount (T Rating
in Million)
Comimercial  Papers | ICRA Limited 3000 [ICRA]IAL+
{CP)
Long Term  Bank | Brickwork Ratings India Private 9000/9000 | BWR AA-; Stable
Facility Limited / CARE Ratings Cutlock
CARE AA-; Negative
Qutlook
Non- Convertible Brickwork Ratings India Private 180074350 | BWR AA-; Stable
Debentures Limited / CARE Ratings Outlook
CARE AA-; Negative
Outlook
EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION

Human Resources are key to the growth and success of an organization, more so in financial services
industry. It is therefore imperative to align the interests of the employees and shareholders of the Company.
Employee Stock Option schemes have been universally accepted as retention and wealth creation tool.

The Company had in March 2018, launched its first ESOP Plan in the name of DMI Finance ESOP Plan
2018 (“Policy”) which provided all the details and explained all aspects with respect to the entire process
to be followed by the management with respect to allotment of ESOPs to its employees. For further retaining
the top talented employees and to motivate them to stay with the Company for a longer duration, the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board has further approved on April 09, 202¢ four ESOP
schemes, namely, Employment Contract 2020, DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2020, Retention Bonus {NBFC
Apr'20) and Variable 19-20,

During the financial year under review, 80,51,038 fresh options were granted under various existing ESOP
Schemes of the Company; however, nil stock options were vested and exercised as on March 31, 2021. A
brief snapshot of the total options granted under various ESOP Schemes is laid down as below:

Name of the Scheme Options Granted Options Lapsed _
DMI ESOP Plan 2019 B 7,712,377 83,717
DMI ESOP Plan, Legacy Scheme 18,27,677 -
DMI ESOP Plan, Management Scheme 7,23,982 1,19,585
DMI ESQP Retention Plan 2019 17.00,000 3,00,000
DMI Finance ESOP 2020 _ 4,09,914 10,527
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2018 3,22,023 -
DMTI Retention Plan, 2018 15,20,642 36,700
Employment Contract 2020 23,068 -
Retention Bonus (NBFC Api'20) 7,40,000 1,60,000
Variable 19-20 11,355 -
Total 80,51,038 7,10,529




The disclosures required as per Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014 are
given below:

(a} Options granted: 80,51,038
{b) Options vested: 44,59,386
{c} Options exercised: NIL
(d) Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option: NIL
{e) Options lapsed: 7,10,529
(f) Exercise price: NIL
(g) Variation of terms of options: NIIL.
(h) Money realized by exercise of options: NIL
(i) Total number of options in force: 73,40,509
(i) Employee wise details of options granted to:
(i) Key managerial personnel:
+ (Company Secretary- 16,364
e  Chief Financtal Officer- 9,12,453
(i) Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of option amounting
to five percent or more of options granted during that year: NIL
(iti)  Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or exceeding
one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the
company at the time of grants: NTL

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Board Composition

The composition of the Board is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
(“Act”) and the rules framed thereunder, guideline(s) issued by the Reserve Bank of India and other
applicable laws inter alia with respect to appointment of women director and non-executive director(s).
During the year under review, the composition of the Board remains unchanged and the details in this regard
have been provided under the title Cotporate Governance.,

Director(s) Disclosure

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the applicable provisions of the Act,
circulars, notifications and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India and other applicable laws, none
of the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors of the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, there was change in the composition of Key Managetial Personnel of the
Company. Owing to change in designation of Mr. Jatinder Bhasin, erstwhile Chief Financial Officer, Mr.
Krishan Gopal has been appointed as new Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from March
18, 2021.

Therefore, as on March 31, 2021, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company comprises of the following:
1. Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee and Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh- Jt. Managing Directors

2. Mr. Krishan Gopal- Chief Financial Officer

3. Mr. Sahib Pahwa- Head- Compliance & Company Secrelary

Human Resource



The Company immensely values its human resource and understands that a great team is required for
achieving the desired results envisaged by the management. Considering the same the Company has
successfully inducted significant talent at senior and mid-level into the Company and was successful in
retaining and developing the existing human resources. As on March 31, 2021 the Company had 269 full
time employees.

SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES COMPANIES

As on March 31, 2021, your Company has DMI Capital Private Limited and DMI Management Services
Private Limited as its wholly owned subsidiaries and DMI Alternatives Private Limited as Associate
Company.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared a consolidated financial
statement of the Company which shall be laid before the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.
along with the standalone audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2020. The standalone and consolidated audited financial statements along with the salient features of
the financial statements of the subsidiaries of the Company in the prescribed Form AQC-1 forms part of
the Annual Report and are also available on the website of the Company at
hitps://www.dmifinance.in/investor-financials.html

The statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Form AOC- 1, forms part of the consclidated financial statements
of the Company and hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a Statutory Body, has issued Secretarial Standards on Board
and General meetings. The Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the secretarial
standards read with the MCA Circulars granting exemptions and relaxations in view of the COVID-19
pandemic.

ANNUAL RETURN

The copy of Annual Return for Financial Year 2020-21, which will be filed with the Registrar of Company,
is hosted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at https://www.dmifinance.in/investor-
financials.html in accordance with provisions of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of Companies
Act, 2013 and rules framed therein.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND RELATED MATTERS
Deposits

The Company in compliance with RBI being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit Accepting NBFC (ND-
SI- NBFC}) has not accepted any public deposits during the year under review. The Board of Directors, in
compliance with Noti—Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
had passed the resolution on April 02, 2020 confirming that the Company would not be accepting deposits
during financial year ended 2020-21 and further declared that the Company shall not accept any deposits
from the public in the financial year 2020-21 without the prior permission of the Reserve Bank of India.



MATERIAL. CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

During the period under review, no material changes took place which can have a bearing on the financial
position of the Company.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met 6 (Six) times during the financial year 2020-21 viz. on April 09, 2020, July 03, 2020,
September 15, 2020, November 06, 2020, January 25, 2021 and March 18, 2021. The intervening gap
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

Further, in accordance with Standard 9 of the Secretarial Standards-1 on “Meetings of the Board of
Directors”, the details on the number of meetings attended by each Director during financial year 2020-21
is given below:

Name of the Directors Category Number of meetings held during
the financial year 2020-21

Held Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tammir Amr Nominee Director 6 6 5
Mr. Gaurav Buriman Nominee Director 6 6 6
Mrs, Jayati Chatterjee Non- Executive Dircctor 6 6 6
Mz, Shivashish Chatterjee Joint Managing Director 6 6 5
Mr. Gurcharan Das Non- Executive Director 6 6 6
Mr. Nipendar Kochhar Non- Executive Director 6 6 3
Mrs. Bina Singh Non- Executive Director 6 6 6
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Joint Managing Director 6 6 6

During the year under review there was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company,

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has several committees which have been established as a part of the best corpotate
governance practices and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable
laws and statutes. There are 9 Committces constituted by the Board namely Audit Committee,
Loan/Investment and Borrowing Committee, Risk Management Committee, Nomination Committee, Asset
Liability Committee, Securitics Allotment Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Credit
Committee and IT Strategy Committee.

The composition of these Committees as on March 31, 2021 is provided below. Further, in accordance with
Standard 9 of the Secretarial Standard-1 on “Meetings of the Board of Directors”, the details on the nnmber
and dates of meetings of the Committees held during the financial year 2020-21 indicating number of
meetings attended by each Director is given below. However, owing to country wide lockdown and work-
from-home situation during the financial year 2020-21, some of business was transacted by these
Committees by way of passing resolution by circulation in place of holding physical meetings.

Audit Committee (AC)

Four Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2020-21 viz. on July 03, 2020,
September 15, 2020, November 06, 2020 and March 18, 2021. The attendance of the meinbers is as follows:



Name of the Members Category Number of meetings held during
the financial year 2020-21

Held Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tammir Amr Member 4 4 4
Mr, Gaurav Burman Member 4 4 3
Mrs. Jayati Chatterjec Member 4 4 4
Mr. Nipendar Kochhar Member 4 4 4
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Member 4 4 4

¥ Loan/Investment & Borrowing Committee (LIBC)

One Loan/Investment & Borrowing Committee Meeting was held during the financial year 2020-21 viz

November 10, 2020, The attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of the Members Category Number of meetings held during
the financial year 2020-21
Held Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tammir Amr Member 1 1 1
Mr, Gaurav Burman Mecmber 1 1 1
Mr, Shivashish Chatterjec Member 1 1 1
M1, Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Member 1 1 1

¥ Risk Management Committee (RMC)

Four Risk Management Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2020-21 viz. on June 29,
2020, September 18, 2020, November 11, 2020 and March 18, 2021, The attendance of the members is as

follows:
Name of the Members Category Number of meetings held during
the financial year 2020-21
Held Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tammir Amr Member 4 4
Mr. Gaurav Burman Member 4 4
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Member 4 4
Mr. Nipendar Kochhar Member 4 4
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Member 4 4

» Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Two Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting were held during the financial year 2020-21 viz.
on April 09, 2020 and March 18, 2021. The attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of the Members Category Number of meetings held during
the financial year 2020-21
Held Entitled | Attended
| Mr. Tammir Amr Member 2 2 2
Mr. Gaurav Burman Member 2 2 2
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjce Member 2 2 2
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Member 2 2 2




» Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)

Two Asset Liability Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2020-21 viz. on July 02, 2020
and January 11, 2021. The attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of the Members Category Number of meetings held doring
the financial year 2020-21
Held Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tamumnir Amr Member 2 2 2
Mr. Gaurav Burman Member 2 2 2
M. Shivashish Chatterjee Member 2 2 2
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Member 2 2 2

# Securities Allotment Committee (SAC)

No Securities Allotment Committee Meetings was held during the financial year 2020-21 as all the business
was transacted my means of passing resolution by circulation by the Committee Meimbers.

» Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR)

Two Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2020-21 viz,
on October 15, 2020 and March 18, 2021. The attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of the Members Category Number of meetings held during
the financial year 2020-21
Held Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tamumir Amr Member 2 2 2
Mr. Gaurav Burman Member 2 2 2
Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee Member 2 2 2
Mrs. Bina Singh Member 2 2 2

» IT Strategy Committee

Three IT Strategy Committee Meeting were held during the financial year 2020-21 viz. on July 03, 2020,
September 15, 2020 and February 12, 2021. The attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of the Members Category Number of meetings held during
the financial year 2020-21
Held Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tammir Amr Chairperson 3 3 3
Mr, Jatinder Bhasin Member 3 3 3
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Member 3 3 3
Mr, Saurabh Nigam Member 3 3 3
Mr, Manish Srivastava Member 3 3 3
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Member 3 3 3

These Committees function as per the terms of reference as approved by the Board for the respective

Committees.



GENERAL MEETINGS

Annual General Meeting

During the year under review, the Annual General Meeting of the Company for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2020 was held on September 15, 2020.

Extra-ordinary General Meeting(s)
During the year under review, Five (5) Extra-ordinary General Meeting(s) (EGM) of the Company were

held. The Members accorded their approval in the requisite manner for the maiters taken in the respective
EGMs.

. No. Date of the Meeting
June 05, 2020
November 06, 2020
January 25, 2021
March 18, 2021
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, the Company has established a Corporate Social Respongibility (CSR)
Committee. The CSR Committee has formulated and recommended to the Board, a CSR Policy indicating
the activities to be undertaken by the Company, which has been approved by the Board and the same has
been put up on the Company’s website and available at the link:
https://www.dmifinance.in/corporate-social-responsibility-policy.html

The CSR Policy was adopted on May 2014 by the Company with the aim to contribute to the social and
economic development of the community in which the Company operates. It also chalks out the prescribed
activities out of which the Company may opt to undertake and provides for modalities of execution of the
projecis undertaken, affixation of CSR budget and provides for mechanism for monitoring and reporting of
the CSR activities undertaken.

Recently, the CSR Policy of the Company undergone some changes pursuant to the amendment brought in
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014 w.e.f January 22, 2021 with respect to
reporting and disclosure requirements, implementation of CSR Annual Action Plan, requirement of impact
assessment of the Projects ete. The revised CSR Policy of the Company has been duly approved by the
Board and placed on the website of the Company.

For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company was required to spend ¥ 2,28,51,615/- under CSR for
financial year 2020-21 as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has
spent over and above the required CSR expenditure and disbursed an amount of ¥ 2,36,18,547/- during the
financial year 2020-21.

The statutory disclosures with respect to the CSR Comumittee, in terms of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, in the form of the
annual report on CSR Activities is laid down in Annexure-A which forms part of this Report.

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS LOANS AND GUARANTEES

The Company being a Non- Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) primarily engaged in the business of lending is exempted from provisions of Scction 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).



However, pursuant to Section 134(3) (g) of the Act, the Company has advanced Corporate Guarantee for
an aggregate amount of ¥ 4,447.17 Million to DMI Housing Finance Private Limited during the financial

year 2020-21.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the RBI Master Directions-
Systematically Important- Non-Banking Financial Companies — Non- Deposit Taking (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016, (as amended from time to time), the Company has put in place a Board approved Related
Party Transaction Policy (“RPT Policy”) for the purpose of obtaining requisite approval and reporting
transactions with related parties.

In this regard, all the Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval as per
the Related Party Transactions Policy of the Company as approvcd by the Board. Further, details of all
transactions with related parties are provided in the accompanying financial statements of the Company
Regulatory Disclosurcs on Related Party Transactions required under RBI's Revised Regulatory
Framework for NBFCs are as follows:

The Company has policy in place on dealing with Related Party Transactions and the policy may be
accessed on the Company’s website at the link:

https://'www.dmifinance.in/related-party-transaction-policy.himl

The details on the material Related Party Transactions of the Company, identified as per the Company’s
Policy on Related Party Transactions framed pursuant to the RBI’s Revised Regulatory Framework for
NBEFCs are provided in Form AOC-2 prescribed under clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the
Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 1s attached as Annexure-B.

These transactions were at an arms-length and in the ordinary course of business.

DISCLOSURE UNDER PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

The Company is committed to create a safe and healthy work environment that enables its employees to
work without fear of prejudice, gender bias and sexuval harassment. The Company has in place an Anti-
Sexual Harassment Policy (Policy) in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“Act™). The Company believes that
sexual harassient at the workplace, if involving employees of the company, shall be considered a grave
offence and is therefore punishable under the provisions of the Act. For this purpose, an Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) has been set-up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment.

Scope of the Policy:

The provisions of this policy are applicable to:

* All employees of the company, regardiess of the nature of their contract, duration of employment
or position in the organization

¢  Associates of the Company whether full-time, part-time, temporary, voluniary, contracted, or
casual including researchers, trainees, and consultants

» Volunteers and interns, during their association with the organization
Partners, clients, service providers and users of the services of the Company
Acknowledgment of Policy is taken from all the employees.



All complaints of sexual harassment against employees are taken seriously and dealt with promptly. All
investigations are conducted thoroughly and professionally, and accurate records of the investigation and
the findings are properly maintained, Further, any employee who brings forward the charges of any instance
of sexual harassment will not face any retaliation. The Company makes sure that anyone violating this
policy is subjected to disciplinary action,

No Complaint was received under POSH during the year ended March 31, 2021.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

In accordance with RBI Master Directions and the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has Board approved
Risk Management Policy. The Board constituted Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee
responsible for monitoring the progress of the Risk Control Matrix and loan potifolio and to establish
standards to mitigate risks related to operations, credit, compliance, finance,

Development and implementation of Risk Control Matrix (RCM)

Key components of an organization’s risk management framework is the Risk Control Matrix (‘RCM")
which systematically captures key risks (operational, regulatory and financial) and mitigating internal
controls. It enables assessment of key controls through testing of data pertaining to each control - contrel
description, financial statement assertions, test procedures and management action plans, etc. Backward
integration of RCMs with existing risk-control assurance platforms would assist in addressing key
requirements of Internal Financial Controls (‘IFC'), under the Companies Act, 2013,

Key benefits of RCM

¢ Structured and consistent process for management of risk;

+ Information is recorded and auditable;

¢ Quick and effective means of formally capturing key business risks;
&

Demonstraies organization’s ability to manage / mitigate risk in a comprehensive and timely manner,

Key Activities - Strengthening the Risk Control Matrices

Preparation / Updation of RCMs for key businesses and support functions:

e Capture of additional risks and key controls
* Linkages to financial assertions / [FC
¢ Mitigating controls.

Testing of RCMs and integration with Internal Audit (‘IA")

e Quarterly test of key controls captured in RCMs based on risk grading / prioritization and its alignment
to [A testing (as per quarterly scope of work) for integrated coverage.

Reporting to Risk Committee and Audit Committee

¢ Reporting on controls testing (including high level view of key risks and controls) to be combined as
part of quarterly [A reporting;

o Reporting to Risk Committee and Audit Committee;

¢ Updated RCMs to be provided to management.



DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Direclors of the Company o the best
of their knowledge and ability, confirms that-

a. in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

b. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period,

¢. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. they have prepared the annual accounts on a geing concem basis; and

. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has an Internal Control System in place, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity
of its operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is defined in the Internal Audit
Manual. The Company has appointed M/s Sanjiv Syal & Associates as the Internal Auditor of the Company.
To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee has the responsibility for establishing the audit objectives and determines the nature,
timing and extent of audit procedures as well as the locations where the work needs to be carried out.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy & adequacy of internal financial
controls & internal control system in the Company to mitigate the risks faced by the organization and
thereby achieve its business objective.

Broadly the objectives of the project assigned are: -

Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the transaction controls;

Review the operation of the Control Supervisory Mechanisms;

Recommend improvements in processes and procedures;

Surface significant observations and recommendations for process improvement in a concise report
for discussion with senior management;

* Review the compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies.
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Based on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective
areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are
presented to the Audit Committes.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Even though operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the management has becn highly
conscious of the importance of conservation of energy and technology absotption at all operational levels
and efforts are made in this direction on a continuous basis. In view of the naturc of activities which are
being carried on by the Company, the particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy
and Technology Absorption are not applicable to the Company and hence not been provided.



SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS

No significant and material orders were passed by the RBI, regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134 of the Companics Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of encrgy and technology absorption are not
required to be furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year
under review. The details of foreign ¢xchange expenditure incurred during the year under review are as
below:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Advertisement expenses ] 5,31,860 4,86,037
Travelling and conveyance - 5,55,920
Subscription & license fee 10,15,27,493 4,52,45.549
Professional fee 81,575 1,76,820
Salary (Interns) 2,81,31,924 6,12,475
Customer Support Expense 33,539 -
Credit Licensed/Software 1,04,33,245 .

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the significant contribution made by all employees,
who through their competence, dedication, hard work, co-operation and support have enabled the Company
to achieve new milestones on a continual basis.

The statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of the Act and Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”), is appended as
Annexure-C to the Report. The information as per Rule 5(2) of the Rules, forms part of this Report,
However, as per first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act and second proviso of Rule 5(2) of the Rules, the
Report and Financial Statements are being sent to the Members of the Company cxcluding the statement of
particulars of employees under Rule 5(2) of the Rules.

The details are also available at the registered office of the Company, any member desirous of obtaining
the same shall contact the Company Secretary during business hours on working days.

The Board hereby confirm that the remuneration paid to the Directors in accordance with the relevant
sections of Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed therein applicable to private companies,

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

In terms of the requirement of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 7 of the Companies (Meeting
of Board and its Power) Rules, 2014, the Company has formulated a codificd vigil mechanism for their
Ditectors and Employees to report their genuine concerns or grievances about unethical and improper
practices or any other wrongful conduct in the Company, without fear of punishment, victimization or unfair
treatment. The vigil mechanism provides adequate safeguards against victimization of Employees and
Directors who avail of the vigil mechanism and provide direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. Also, the Whistle Blower Policy of the Company has been
put up on the Company’s wcbsite and available at the link:

https://www.dmifinance.in/whistle-blower-policy.himl




During the year, no complaint was received under the Whistle Blower mechanism and the same was
reported to the Audit Committee Meeting.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with corresponding rules framed
thereunder, the Boatd of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s VLA & Associates, Company
Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit. for the financial
year ended March 31, 2021, The Secretarial Audit Report given by the secretarial auditor in requisite form
MR-3 is annexed to this Report as Annexure-D.

The Auditors’ Report is self-explanatory and has no qualification or adverse remarks.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Company had appointed Walker Chandiok and Co. LLP, Firm Regd. No., 001076N/N500013 as the
new statutory auditors at the 12™ Annual General Meeting held on September 15, 2020 to hold office for 5
years commencing from the financial year i.e. 2020-21 till the financial year 2024-25 as per the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013. The firm carries extensive experience in the financial services sector and is
one of the leading statutory audit firms in India.

The Audit Report by Statutory Auditors for the FY 2021 in unmodified, i.e., it does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer.

Further, in accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 201 7, enforced on May 07, 2018 by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every Annual
General Meeting.

AUDITOR’S OBSERVATION

The Directors have examined the Auditors’ Report on accounts for the period ended March 31, 2021, The
Auditors’ Report is self-explanatory and has no qualification or adverse remarks except as mentioned
elsewhere.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES BY DIRECTORS

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified as per provision of section 164(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013. The Directors of the Company have made neccssary disclosures, as required under various
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with RBI guidelines on dircctor disclosures.
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Annexure-A

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Company constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) pursuant
to provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are provided herein below:

1.

A brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

The Company adopted CSR Policy aims at supplementing the role of government in enhancing the

welfare measures for the underprivileged communities. In order to fulfil and enhance its CSR
responsibilities, the company will distribute its CSR eftorts in accordance with the provisions of
the companies Act 2013 and thus announce the following themes:

Health Sanitation;

Self-help groups empowering women:
Cleanliness and hygiene program;
Education

The composition of CSR Comimittee

S.no | Name of Director Designation Number of | Number of
/Nature of | meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Directorship Committee  held | Committee
during the year attended during the
year
1 Mrs. Bina Singh Director 2 2
2 Mts. Jayati Chatterjee | Director 2 2

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

Weblink: The CSR Policy, Compoasition of CSR committee and details of the projects funded by
the company can be accessed from hitps://www.dmifinance.in/investor-corporate-governance.html

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3)
of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy} Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report)- Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the
financial year, if any- Not Applicable

S.No Financial Year Amount available for | Amount required to be
set-off from preceding | setoff for the financial year,
financial years (in Rs) if any (in Rs)

NIL NIL




6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)- 2 1,14,25,80,732

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)- ¥ 2,28,51,615

{b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activitics of the previous financial
ycars- NIL

(¢} Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any- NIL

{d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year {7at7b-7¢)- ¥ 2,28,51,615

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (In Rs.)
Spent for the | Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund
Financial Unspent CSR Account as per | specified under Schedule VII as per
Year (in Rs)) | section 135(6) second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount Date of Transfer Name of | Ameount Date of
Fund Transfer
2,36,18,547 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1 2} ()] [E)] 5 (6} (7). 8) (9 (10} 11y
S.Mo | Name of the | Mtemfromthe | Local Location Project Amount Amount Amouwnt Mode Mode of
Praject Iist of | Area of the Duration | allocated spent in the f:,‘“’"""" of [mplementation-
activities  im | {Yes/No} | Project for the | curremt Unspen Implement | Through
Schedule VIl (State/ project {In | financial is" ation- Implementing
to the Act. District) Rs.). year (in Rs.} ‘of.e;::“ Direct Agency {Nane
project as | (Yes/No) and CSR R:ag
per No.)
Sectlon
1356 (ln
. R
1 Ashoka Education No Sonepat, 3 years 1,00,00,000 | 1,00,00,000 | NIL Yes Ashoka
University Haryana University
{Contribution to (Contribution  to
International International
Foundation for Foundation for
Research and Research aad
Education} Education}- Reg.
MNo.-
CSRO0000712
2 Foundation for | Qlympic No Multiple Jyears | 20,00,000 | 20,00,000 | ML Yes Foundation Dr
Promotion  of | Sports Districts, Promotion of
Sports and All India Sports and
Games Games- Reg. No.-
CSRO0001100
3 Dasra Waoinen No Ahmedabad, | 3 years 16,66,667 | 16,66,667 No The amount was
Empowerment Gujarat indirectly
transferred 1o the
Impact
Foundation
(India) a5 e
[mplementation
Parmer Reg, Ne.»
CSRO00D1920
Total 1.36.66.667




(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

gl ) 3) ) (5) (6) )] )

S. | Name of the Project Ttem from the | Local Location of | Amount Spent | Mode of | Mode of

no list of | Area the Project | for the project | Impleme | Implementation-

. activities in | (Yes/No) | (State/Distric | (in Rs.). ntation- | Through Implementing
Schedule VII t) Direct Agency (Name and CSR
to the Act. {Yes/No)} | Reg No.)

1 | 3.2.1 Education Foundation | Education No Mumbai, 20,00,0:00 Yes 1.2.1 Education Foundation-

Maharashtra Reg. No,- CSROOMOOTSS

2 Samarpan Foundation Education, Yes New  Delhi, | §,27,880 Yes Samarpan Foundation- Reg.
Nutrition, Delhi No.- CSRO00(:)382
Woimen
Empowerment,

Animal Welfare
and Healtheare

3 Fatima Hospital Healtheare, No Goraklpur, 42,000,000 Yes Fatima [lospital- Reg No-
Cost-effective Uttar Pradesh 503/1986
transportation of
critically ill,
poor and needy
patients

4 Iyoti Development Trust Education, No Midnapote, 10,040,000 Yes Jyoti Development “rust-
Nutrition West Bengal Reg. No-CSROMO 12807

5 | MCKS Food For the | Hunger Yes New  Delhi, | 10,00,000 Yes MCKS Food For the

Hungry Foundation | eradication, Delhi Hungry Foundation
Delhi Education & Deli- Reg. No.-
Vocational CSRO0007251
Training
6 | Medanta Institute of | Healthcare, No Gurugram, 9,24.000 Yes Medanta Institute of
Education and Research | Research & Haryana Education and Research-
I | Education Reg No.
Total 99,51,880

(d) Amount Spent in Administrative Overheads- NIL

(e} Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable- NIL
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (§b+8ct+8d+8¢)- ¥ 2,36,18,547

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any- NIL

S.No Particular Amount (in Rs.}

4] Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 2,28,51,615
section 135(5)

(i1) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2,36,18.547

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{i1)-(i}] 7.66,932

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or -
activities of the previous financial years, if any

2] Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years -
[(zi)-(iv}]




9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

Sino. Preceding | Amount Amgpunt spent Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount
Financial transferred
Year to  Unspene | inthe under Schedule VIT as per sectlon 135(6), if | remaining to
CSR . any.
Account reporting be spent in
under sectil:!n Financial Year succeeding
135 (6) (in | Gy Rs).
Rs.) financial  years.
(in Rs.)
Name of | Amount (in | Date of
Fund Rs.) Transfer
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s): NIL
(1) 2) 182} (4} () (6) ()] 8) (6]
S.no, Project [D | Name of the | Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative | Statos of
Project ) Duration Spent  for the
Year in amount the project | amount |
inreporting | Spent at the | projeet -
which the allocated ﬂnurr::i al ¢ end of
. ear (in Completed/
project was for the 31;5 ) reporting Ongoing.
commenced e
project  (in Financial
Rs.). Year. (in
Rs.)
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details)- Not Applicable
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of C8R spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
{c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc.
{(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset).
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as

per section 135(5)- Not Applicable

Further, in terms of the amended CSR Rules, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company has
certified that the funds disbursed have been utilized for the purpose and in the manner approved by
the Board and Committee for FY 2021.



For and on behalf of the Board of
DMI Finance Private Lim‘itk_

0 S

M7 Shivashish Mrs. Bina Singh Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee

Jt. Managing Direstor Member- CSR Committee Member- CSR Committee

DIN: 02623460 DIN: 01146087 DIN: 01401127

Address: 1 Fifth Avenue, #14D, Address: 46, Second Floor, Address: 347, Pocket E,

New York, NY 10003 USA Jor Bagh, New Delhi- 110003 Mayur Vihar, Phase-11,
Delhi, 110091

Place: New Delhi

Date

SQ’Pt@MM 031209_‘



Form No. AQC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Annexure-B

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-gection (1} of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of coniracis or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis; Not Applicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Entity/DM!I [[FC)

Estatc  Developers
Private Limited
from DMI HFC

Private Limited from DMI
HFC on arm’s lengih
basis as provided Lo non-
related parties at existing
markel price.

secondary market,

(a)Name(s} of the | (b) Naturc of | (c) Duration of | (d) Salient terms of the | (¢} Justification for | (f) date(s) of | (g} Arnount
related party and | contracts/arrange the contracts / | contracts or | entering imte such | approval by | paid a%
nature of | ments/transactions | arrangements/ | arrangements or | comtracts or | the Board or | advamces, if
relationship transactions transaetions  including | arrangements ar | Committee any:
the value, if any: transactions
Shivashish Issue  of equity | As per agreed | Equity Shares wereissued | - January 25, | Not Applicable
Chatterjee (J. | shares  of  the | terms provided | on arm’s length basis on 2021
Managing Cainipany on | in the Offer | similar terms as provided
Directomy preferential Letter 1o non-related parties.
shareholder} allotment basis Amount- 7 11,93,85,630
Yuvraja Chanakya | Issue  of  equity | As per agreed | Equity Shares were issued | - January 25, | Not Applicable
Singh (t. | shares  of  the | terms provided | on arm’s length basis on 2021
Managing Company on | m the Offer | similar terms as provided
Director/ prefarential Letter to  noi-related  parties
sharcholder) allotmenl basis Aanount- ¥ 11,93,36,330
Sahib Pahws | Purchase of one | As per agreed | Puwchase of one Non- | - January 25, | Mot Applicable
(llead- Company | MNen-Convertible lers provided | Convertible Debentare of 2021
Secretary & | Debenture of | in the Offer | Panchsheel Buildtesh
Compliance/Key Panchshesl Leiter Private Limited held by
Managerial Buildtech  Private company from  Sahib
Personnel) Limited held by Pahwa on arm's length
Sahib Pahwa basis as provided to non-
telated parties.
Amount- T 6§,45,337
DM Housing | Execution of | Asperthetenms | Execution of Resouice | - March 18,2021 | Not Applicable
Finance  Private | Resowrce Shaving | and conditions | Sharing Agreecment on
Limited  {Group | Agreement between | as set out in the | arm’s lkngth basis on
Entity/DMI HECy | the Company and | Resoutce sitmnilar terms as provided
Group Entity Sharing to non-related parties.
Agrcement i
DML Housing | Puwrchase of 135 | NA Purchagse of 135 Non- | The transaction has | April 09, 2020 Not Applicable
Finance  Private | Non-Convertible Convertible Debenture of | been done on arm's
Lirmited  {Group | Debenture of Saha Saha Fstate Developers | length basis  through




By order of the Board of Dircctors
For DMI Finance Private Limited

aging Directo
2623460

ss: 46, 2" Floor, Jor Bagh Address: 1 Fifth Avenue, #14D, New York,
New Delhi- 110002 NY 10003 USA

Place: New Delhi
Date: 320t prjy ey 03,252



7§, A VLA & ASSOCIATES Bs

Your Trusted Advisor

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31" MARCH, 2021
[Pursuant to Section 204( 1) of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

DMI Finance Private Limited
Express Building, 3"Floor 9-10,
Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg,
New Delhi - 110002

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by DMI Finance Private Limited (hereinafter
called “the Company™). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers. minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31 March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2021 according to the
provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

1. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI);
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v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

d.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015- To the extent applicable to Debt Listed
Company;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not applicable during the audit period
under review;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015- Not applicable during the audit period under review;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, ferstwhile The SEBI (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009]- Not applicable during the audit
period under review;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014- Not applicable during the audit period under review;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008:- To the extent applicable to Debt Listed
Company;

The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;- To the extent applicable to Debt Listed Company;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009- Not applicable during the audit period under review; and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018 - Not applicable during the audit period under review.

vi.  Other laws as applicable specifically to the Company:

a. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules, regulations & directions issued
from time to time.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICST) with respect to Board and General Meetings.
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(ii) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013

During the year under review the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
and Non-Executive Directors. There was no change in the composition of the Board of
Directors during the year under the review.

Adequate notices are given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

The resolutions were passed at all the meetings by the requisite majority and there were no
instances of the dissent which were required to be captured and recorded as part of the
minutes,

I further report that there arc adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Further T report that during the audit period, the Company has taken the following major
decisions:

I. Articles of Association of the Company were amended / substituted / inserted at
Extraordinary General Meeting (05" June, 2020 and 06" November, 2020) by passing special
resolution for the same.

2. During the financial year under review, the company made allotment of following
securities,

S. Date  of | Type of issue | Type of | No of security | Face Premium
No. allotment security allotted value (In Rs.)
(In Rs.)
L 23" April, | Right issue Equity shares | 6,59,20,419 10 106.36
2020
2. 29" April, | Right issue Equity shares | 1,50,29,262 10 106.36
2020
3, 30" June, | Private 9.00% Secured | 500 10,00,000 | -
2020 placement Rated
Listed Non-
Convertible
Debentures
4, 157 Preferential | Equity shares | 21,06,686 10
February, | allotment
2021
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For VLA & Associates
(Company Secretaries)

0
\;t,s\r‘”l Lr‘fﬁn

Vishal Lochan Aggarwal

(Proprietor)

FCS No.: 7241

Place: New Delhi C P No.: 7622
Date: 03.09.2021 UDIN: F007241C0008%20739

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure-1" and
forms an integral part of this report.
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VLA

Your Trusted Adwsor

To,

The Members,

VLA & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Annexure-1

DMI Finance Private Limited
Express Building, 3rd Floor, 9-10,
Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg,

New Delhi — 110002

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management's Responsibility:-

Maintenance of secretarial records and other records under the scope/ambit of
Secretarial Audit (hereinafter called ‘Record’) is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these records based on

my audit.

2. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

Auditor's Responsibility:-

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and
procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

4. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's
management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. |
have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

5. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer:-

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.
5S0C : 33 LA
bl - "\m hVAS,
> (C:P.No. TE22) Vishal Lochan Aggarwal
T\ NEW DELR! f£2
C"..\\ _ Q;‘ (Proprietor)
""'73';',1;?5“:;:6?55/ FCS No.: 7241
Place: New Delhi C P No.: 7622
Date: 03.09.2021 UDIN: F007241C000890739
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DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEE OF THE COMPANY:

Name AXxis Trustee Services Limited

Address The Ruby 2nd Floor, SW 29 Senapati Bapat Marg,
Dadar West Mumbai- 400 028

Phone 022-62300420

Email Compliance@axistrustee.com




